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PART I

Item 1 - Business

Geostar Corporation (the "Company") operates a nation—
wide mobile positioning and two-way digital message satellite
communications system which was being used as of March 1, 1990 by

approximately seventy-five trucking companies and government
agencies. As of that date, these customers transmitted approxi-
mately 65,000 messages per day through the Company's satellite
transponders and computer-communications network. User terminals
for the Company's current system are produced by Sony Corporation
of America ("Sony"), Hughes Network Systems, Inc., a subsidiary
of General Motors Corporation ("Hughes") and Kenwood Corporation
("Kenwood") and marketed principally by Sony and Hughes. The
Company was incorporated in Delaware on February 18, 1983 to de-
velop and operate a system (referred to herein as the "GEOSTAR
System" or the "System") to provide radio determination satellite
service ("RDSS"). RDSS means the determination of the position,
velocity or other characteristics of an object, or the obtaining
of information relating to these parameters, by means of the
propagation properties of radio waves, including ancillary data
communications. The Federal Communications Commission ("FCC")
has permitted the Company to provide other-data communications
services as well so long as the primary purpose of the Company's
satellites is RDSS. The GEOSTAR RDSS System will employ satel-
lites in geostationary orbit, a ground station known as GEOSTAR
Central and user terminals to determine and transmit the location

and other data from a user terminal, which may be stationary or
on a car, truck, boat, aircraft or railcar, or hand carried, and

to provide two-way communications between user terminals or be-
tween a user terminal and a user's central control site.

_ In May 1989, the Company signed an Exclusive Patent
License and Technology Transfer Agreement with a European company
to establish a compatible RDSS system covering Europe, the Med-
iterranean, the Middle East and Africa. The shareholders of the
European company approved an increase in its capitalization in
March 1990 to enable that company to begin the development of its
3355 program. The Company currently has a 7.5% percent ownership
interest in the EurOpean company and has the right to share in
its revenues and designate a member of its Board of Directors.

C In June 1989, a United States patent was issued to the
aggpany covering a vehicle navigation system using two satellites

a digital terrain map. See "Patents."

ti _ In September 1989, the Company began commercial opera-
on Of its two-way System 2C mobile positioning and satellite

_ :L
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communications service. System 2C permits position determination
and fully integrated two-way communications between mobile users
and central control sites. See "Products and Services -- GEOSTAR
systems 2.0 and 2C (Phase 1)."

g‘ In October 1989, the GTE satellite carrying the Com-
~ pany's two L-band transponders, which was launched in September

1988, reached its proper orbital location. The satellite is
operational and is estimated to have a life of up to five years.
One transponder will provide coverage for the Caribbean basin,
including Central America and northern South America, while the
second transponder will provide back-up coverage for the conti-
nental United States.

In December 1989, the Company amended its satellite
construction contract with General Electric Corporation, Astro

Space Division ("GE Astro") to include the construction and
delivery of two single beam satellites to precede the construc-
tion and delivery of the three multiple beam satellites original-
ly contracted for. Once operational, these two single beam
satellites and a digital terrain map will permit commencement of
the Company's RDSS service. Subsequent to the signing of this
agreement, the Company decided to defer construction of the
satellites for at least one year. See "Products and Services --
GEOSTAR RDSS (Phase 2)."

The Company believes it can meet its financing require-
ments through the end of the second quarter of 1990 from revenues

; from operations and existing funds (assuming no repayment of
‘ existing indebtedness payable on demand) and is in the process of

h exploring and evaluating financing alternatives for operations
subsequent to that date. There can be no assurance that the
Company will be successful in obtaining such financing. See
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations."

The Company's operations are currently in one industry:
position determination and mobile satellite communications.

Products and Services

The Company's revenues are generated from (i) contracts
with agencies of the United States government; (ii) the licensing
of the Company‘s technology to foreign entities when approved by
the appropriate government agencies for export; (iii) the sale of
software and hardware for use in connection with GEOSTAR System

services; (iv) the provision of GEOSTAR System services; and (V)
the provision of related technical services and equipment. The
following are descriptions of systems currently being operated by

3
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the Company and the status of systems being developed by the Com—
pany. The services provided by each system being developed or
operated by the Company generally represent or will represent

progressive enhancements to position determination capabilities,
message transfer or other capabilities or capacity over services
currently being offered.

GEOSTAR Systems 2.0 and 2C (Phase 1). In March 1988,
the Company's primary and back-up L—band transponders for its
system 2.0 were successfully placed in orbit aboard the GTE
satellite, Spacenet 3R. System 2.0, which commenced commercial

operation in July 1988, provides position information and one-way
messaging consisting of up to 100 characters per transmission

from mobile users located anywhere in the continental United

States through one of the Company's L—band transponders to the
Company's central computer facility ("GEOSTAR Central") (inbound)
for transmission to the user's central control site.

GEOSTAR System 2C service, which is the Company's
anationwide satellite-based, positioning and two—way message ser-
vice, commenced operations in September 1989. As in System 2.0,
positioning and message data are transmitted to GEOSTAR Central

through one of the L-band transponders (inbound). In contrast to
System 2.0, the System 2C terminals, through an additional omni-

directional antenna connected to a receiver unit, receive digital
messages from GEOSTAR Central (outbound) which have been trans-
mitted through a relay station and a C-band transponder on board
an existing satellite. Those messages, which are addressed to
each user individually through a unique identification code, can
be communicated to the mobile user and can be printed or shown on
a liquid crystal display unit. The primary L-band and C-band
transponders being used by the Company are both located on the

Spacenet 3R satellite. The Company owns the C-band transponder
on Spacenet 3R. The Company also leases a back-up C-band tran-
sponder aboard another satellite.

Position information in Systems 2.0 and 2C is obtained
through the use of Loran-C units which provide position informa-
tion to an accuracy that varies from one-sixteenth of a mile to
one mile. Position information could also be obtained through
Global Positioning System ("GPS") units, which the Company's li-
censed manufacturers may offer for sale when the GPS System is
Operational, which is expected to occur by the end of 1991. See
"Competition." Processed information can be sent from GEOSTAR

Central to the users' central control sites by conventional dial—
up telephones, very small aperture terminals ("VSAT") satellite
dishes or public data networks. Personnel at the customer's cen-
tral control sites, using personal computers or an integrated
computer system and software developed by third parties in
éssociation with the Company or its vendors, locate their veh-

lcles on maps which provide various levels of detail (nationwide,

4.
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quadrant or local) that may be selected by the user, and read
messages from each vehicle on the computer screen.

Although System 2.0 one-way service remains available
for customers of the Company, most existing accounts are being

a converted to, and new orders are generally for, the two-way capa-
bility of System 2C. The Company has licensed Sony, Hughes and
Kenwood to manufacture user terminals for GEOSTAR System 2C.

Systems 2.0 and ZC service, hardware and software revenues ac-
counted for approximately 34% and 22% of the Company's revenues
in 1989 and 1988, respectively.

The Company's second and third L-band transponders, one
of which will provide coverage for the Caribbean basin, including
Central America and northern South America, were launched on

September 8, 1988 aboard another GTE satellite. When the satel-
lite failed to reach its proper orbit as a result of a malfunc-
tion, the on-board fuel normally used to keep a satellite in its
proper orbit was used to boost the satellite into geosynchronous
orbit. Although the useful life of the satellite was reduced
from the normal life of ten years to approximately five years by
this procedure, the satellite was placed in geosynchronous orbit,
and the transponders are operational. Because of the launch mal-
function and the resulting reduced satellite life, the Company
filed a constructive total loss insurance claim relating to the

two transponders and, in March 1989, receiVed insurance proceeds
of $5 million, $1.75 million of which was used to repay certain
obligations. As a result, the insurance carriers are entitled to
50% of any revenues (net of all costs associated with the oper-
ation of such transponders) generated by the Company from the use
of the transponders. The Company is not currently providing com-
mercial service through the transponders, but is using them for
testing and back-up. The Company expects to provide commercial
service through one of the transponders to the Caribbean basin in
1990.

Elements of risk related to the GEOSTAR System, as well
as other satellite-based systems, include the possibility of sig-
nificant delays in the launch of satellites, the possibility that
the launch of a satellite may fail and the possibility that one
or more transponders or satellites may cease to operate or may
not cperate according to specifications once in orbit, with no
possibility of repair.

GEOSTAR RDSS (Phase 2). GEOSTAR RDSS (also known as
System 3.0) will be a complete two-way service capable of provid-
ing precise position information and two-way transfer of messages
(consisting of up to 110 characters per transmission) between low
cost, miniaturized, portable user terminals. Rather than relying
on external sources such as Loran-C or GPS, RDSS position infor-
mation will be determined through triangulation (or 
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bilaterization with a digital terrain map) calculations utilizing
the times of arrival of radio signals received from the Company‘s
satellites and satellite transponders. System 3.0 can operate
utilizing at least one satellite operated entirely by the Company
(a "dedicated satellite") and the Company's existing trans-
ponders. System 3.0 would provide more precise positioning,
higher transmission speeds, miniaturization of user terminals and

greater system capacity than Systems 2.0 and 2C. One single beam
satellite has the capacity to serve 500,000 user terminals, pro-
vided that GEOSTAR Central has sufficient capacity. The Company
plans to increase the capacity of GEOSTAR Central as required tomeet customer demand.

In December 1989, the Company amended its satellite
construction contract with GE Astro to provide for the construc-
tion and delivery of two single beam dedicated satellites by GE
Astro at an aggregate cost of $86,575,000. The construction of
the single beam satellites would precede that of the three mul-
tiple beam satellites originally contracted for. The amended
agreement calls for monthly progress payments in varying amounts
to be paid during the construction period. The amended agreement
also calls for a decrease in the cost of the multi-beam satel-
lites from $161,575,000 to $155,000,000. If the delivery of the
satellites by GE Astro or the launch of the satellites is de-
layed, the Company can postpone for specified periods certain
payments to CE Astro, depending on the reason for and the length
of the delay. The Company is currently negotiating an
arrangement with GE Astro which would allow the Company to defer
construction of the satellites for at least one year. See
"Regulatory and Governmental Matters."

The Company's contract with the National Aeronautics
and Space Administration ("NASA") for the launch of dedicated
satellites provides for the deferral of payment of the launch
costs of those satellites. Such payments will be made over a
five year period beginning two years after launch with the final
payment being made in the sixth year after launch. The contract
provides that such deferred launch costs shall have that priority
equal to at least the highest priority among unsecured creditors.
The amount of such launch costs will equal NASA's price at the
date of launch (the Company estimates that NASA's current price
is approximately $36 million per launch). In addition to these
costs, the Company would be required to purchase an upper stage
vehicle to boost the satellite into geosynchronous orbit, the

. cost of which is currently estimated at $13 million. That amount
' is not included in the NASA financing.

The Company is presently negotiating with NASA to sub-
stitute a dual launch, consisting of two single beam satellites,
in place of the first of the three single launches of multiple
beam satellites provided for in the original contract. The
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Company is negotiating a similar substitution for the second

launch. The Company is also currently negotiating with NASA to
reschedule the launches for the last quarter of 1993, 1994 and
1995.

‘ There can be no assurance that the Company will be able
to reschedule its launches or that the launches will occur on

their scheduled dates. Launch failures, satellite operation
failures, or significant delays in the construction or launches

of the Company's satellites or satellite capacity would have a
material adverse impact on the Company's revenues from GEOSTAR
RDSS.

The Company has licensed Sony and a joint venture con-
sisting of Hughes and Kenwood to develop, manufacture and sell
user terminals for GEOSTAR RDSS. The Company has entered into a
contract with the United States Government for the development of
miniaturized user terminals for GEOSTAR RDSS. That work has been

subcontracted principally to another manufacturer. That subcon-
tractor is developing a hand-held RDSS user terminal which would

be less than 6 inches long and weigh approximately 22 ounces.
Portions of the communications capabilities of a prototype of
that user terminal have been successfully tested through the Com-
pany's satellite transponders. Additional testing is scheduled.

International RDSS. The Company has had discussions
with various entities and countries throughout the world concern-
ing future implementation on a global basis of RDSS with GEOSTAR-
compatible technology. The Company intends to coordinate the

* ". operation of a network of compatible regional RDSS systems, owned
3 or licensed by the Company, that would require a minimum of six

orbital transponders or satellites and three central ground sta—
tions. During 1988, the Company and various governmental and
commercial entities from Western Europe formed a European com-
pany, Locstar, S.A. ("Locstar"), to establish a compatible RDSS
system covering the area consisting of Europe, the Mediterranean,
the Middle East and Africa. The Company acquired an initial
11.5% ownership interest in Locstar for approximately $1,176,000
entitling it to a share in Locstar's gross RDSS revenues, re-
ceived a preemptive right as to subsequent stock offerings to
increase its ownership interest to up to 15% and nominated one
director to serve on the Board of Directors of Locstar. In “

December 1989, the shareholders of Locstar approved a proposal to
double its contributed capital. The Company participated in this
offering and reached agreement with Locstar to maintain the Com-

Pany's share in Locstar's‘RDSS revenues and the Company's Board
seat with a 7.5% ownership interest. Locstar and the Company
Signed an Exclusive Patent License and Technology Transfer Agree-
ment and a Technical Services Agreement in May 1989 which pro—
vides for payments to the Company in the amount of 6.745 million
European Currency Units (equal to approximately $8,070,000 at

-7- . 7
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March 1, 1990) payable over several years upon the occurrence of
certain events or the achievement of certain GEOSTAR System per-
formance milestones. In 1989, the Company accrued revenues of

approximately $3,350,000 pursuant to these agreements which ac-
counted for approximately 31% of the Company's total revenues for
the year.

The Company and the Australian Telecommunications Com-
mission ("Telecom") executed a Memorandum of Understanding in
March 1989 for the license of the Company's RDSS technology and
the assignment of the Company's Australian patent rights to Tele—
com. As part of the proposed agreement, the Company and Telecom
would form a joint venture to pursue further RDSS technology

agreements in Australia and Asia, excluding Japan. The Company
has also entered into discussions with a major Japanese company,

with the goal of creating a Geostar Japan and with a major
Spanish company, with the goal of creating a Geostar Latin
America.

GEOSTAR DLMSS (Phase 3). The Company's wholly-owned
subsidiary Geostar Messaging Corporation ("GMC") has requested
the FCC to allocate frequencies for a Digital Land Mobile Satel-

lite Service (“DLMSS”), which would include voice, facsimile and
volume data transmission capabilities. In February 1990, the FCC
issued a notice of proposed rulemaking for the allocation of fre-
quencies for mobile satellite service (of which DLMSS is a sub-
set). If the FCC allocates those frequencies, CMC would seek a
license to launch and operate satellites providing DLMSS. A
DLMSS system would provide two—way digital communications ser-
vices to a wide variety of users who would be equipped with mo-
bile or portable (brief case type) terminals which would communi-
cate Via the satellite with their home office, a host computer,
or another mobile terminal.

Products. The Company expects that the user terminals
for the GEOSTAR System will be sold principally by its licensed
manufacturers. However, the Company has, subject to the
satisfaction of certain production and performance conditions,
guaranteed the sale of 5,000 user terminals for use in connection
with System 2C by December 30, 1990 by one manufacturer and the
sale of 5,000 System 2C receiver units by December 31, 1991 by

another manufacturer. As of January 1990, the Company and its
licensed manufacturers have installed approximately 1,500 user

terminals. As of January 31, 1990, the Company and its manufac-
turers have contracts for the installation of approximately 7,000

additional user terminals. The Company believes that the major—
ity of this backlog of orders for user terminals will be filled
during 1990. Although this unit backlog represents future users
of GEOSTAR System services, no dollar amount of service revenues
for the Company can be attributed to those units since they are
being sold by the Company's licensed manufacturers. The Company

3
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believed that the backlog of orders as of January 31, 1989 was
not firm because the orders were subject to successful two-waytesting of the terminals.

 
The Company licenses software that has been developed

for it by independent software writers specifically for use in
connection with current GEOSTAR System services. The software
consists of a United States Highway System map and communications
and database software. The Company will also license similar
software for System 3.0 service. '

Government Contract. In 1986, the Company entered into
a contract with the United States Customs Service (the "Customs
service") to develop and sell to the government miniaturized
electronic tag devices (user terminals) which would determine and
report position and provide two—way communications in the western
hemisphere through GEOSTAR RDSS. The total contract price is
approximately $21 million, of which approximately $19.2 million
has been allocated for expenditure. As of March 1, 1990, the
Company had billed the Customs Service $15.9 million pursuant to
that contract. The government has the right to terminate the
contract at any time, subject to payment of all costs incurred to
the date of termination plus profits, and the program remains at
all times subject to the current availability of government fund-
ing. The Company's contract with the Customs Service is not sub-
ject to renegotiation of profits except with the consent of the
Company. Revenues from this contract accounted for 34% of the
Company's revenues in 1989, 78% of the Company's revenues in 1988
and 96% of its revenues in 1987. Under the contract, the govern-
ment has an option to purchase up to 20,000 of the tag devices at
a price to be negotiated. The Company, as prime contractor, has
subcontracted the development of these devices, which are pro-
posedlto be manufactured in a hand-held size. See "GEOSTARRDSS.'

Markets 

The primary market for GEOSTAR System 2C service is in
the management of mobile assets. System 2C (Phase 1) service is
targeted for the "heavy" commercial transportation markets, such
as the trucking, aviation, rail and maritime markets. The Com-
pany believes that GEOSTAR RDSS (Phase 2) will be useful in addi«
tional transportation markets, such as private fleets, rental and
"light" trucking, specialized and conventional trailers, and spa-
cialized railcars. In addition, the Company believes that addi~
tional markets for GEOSTAR RDSS include: control of field opera-
tions; transaction services; fixed site and mobile remote moni-
toring and control of equipment; business communications; and
goVernment communications, command and control services.
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The Company believes that the GEOSTAR System enables
commercial fleet owners to increaSe asset utilization, reduce

deadhead miles, shorten billing cycles, improve just-in—time de-

liveries, enhance security, lower insurance premiums, reduce com-
munications costs, perform real-time operations and maintenance
monitoring, scheduling, and controlling to achieve more efficient

operations and reduce operating costs. Most of the Company's
current customers are long distance trucking companies.

The Company believes a market exists in the construc-
tion, civil engineering, utility, agriculture and natural re-
sources industries for GEOSTAR System services because its real-
time location and status reporting, operations monitoring and

control, scheduling, emergency assistance and data base queries
will result in more efficient field operations.

The Company believes a market exists in the insurance,
financial and retail industries for GEOSTAR System services be-
cause its real-time nationwide mobile processing of insurance
claims, point-of-sales, credit verification, and funds transfer
transactions will reduce financial and information float decision
delays.

The Company believes that a market exists in the oil

and gas, utility, terrestrial communications, security, weather,
environmental and traffic control industries for the GEOSTAR Sy-
stem as the core of nationwide mobile and remote fixed site com-
munications, command and control networks. It will allow for

economic increases in equipment population, monitoring and con—
trol, reduce operations and maintenance costs and achieve im-

proved equipment and system reliability and performance.

The Company believes that a market exists for profes-
sional people and industries with nationwide mobile marketing,
sales or field service staff. In these situations, the GEOSTAR
System could be used as a nationwide support for electronic data
interchange (EDI) central data base queries, ordering, schedul-
ing, status reporting and invoicing. The GEOSTAR System can re-
duce information float decision delays resulting from unavailable
data. It will also provide mobile business professionals and
staff access to central mainframe computing power and data bases
much in the same way that office local area networks tie individ-
ual offices into a company's central computer facility. More
efficient business communications will cut operating.costs, im-
prove customer service and offer users a competitive edge.

The Company believes that an application exists for
GEOSTAR RDSS for precision navigation, collision avoidance, pre-
cision landing approach and operational communications services
for aircraft. For the past several years, the Company has been
working with the Radio Technical Committee for Aeronautics, which

-10- /O
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stablished a special committee to set the standards for the
:viation applications of radio determination satellite service.

Distribution”'_________

In July 1989, the Company implemented a system inte-
gration marketing program whereby Sony, Hughes and value-added
resellers sell hardware, software and GEOSTAR System services,
and provide installation and repair support, direct y to end user
customers. Sony and Hughes have established sales, installation
and service centers across the United States. This marketing
strategy does not preclude the Company from selling directly to
end user customers through the sales efforts of its own staff.

The Company has agreements with Railstar Control Technology In-
corporated ("Railstar"), a subsidiary of the New England-based
railroad, Guilford Transportation Industries, Inc., which grant
Railstar the exclusive right to develop and market applications
of the GEOSTAR System to the fixed route transportation ("FRT")
market (which consists primarily of rail transportation). In
addition, Railstar has the right to distribute GEOSTAR System
services on a non-exclusive basis outside the FRT market. The

Company and Railstar are currently negotiating a distribution
agreement in connection with‘the non-FRT market. See "Legal
Proceedings." -

In general, a customer must pay for products or ser-
vices provided by the Company within 30 days of the date of in—voice.

The Company, which is primarily responsible for sales
to government agencies, plans to meet the unique requirements of
the various government submarkets with tailored systems installed
and maintained under contract between the Company or its licensed
manufacturers and the government agency involved. The standard
GEOSTAR System will be sold to government agencies through the
Company's licensed manufacturers or distributors. The Company
plans to bid for future government contracts as the prime con-
tractor using as subcontractors the aerospace and telecommunica—
tions firms currently working on the GEOSTAR System.

Competition

The competition which the Company believes it faces or
will face for the services provided by the GEOSTAR System can be
divided into three major categories -- combined communications
and positioning systems; communication systems; and mobile
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positioning systems. Some of the Company's existing and poten-
tial competitors are substantially larger and have far greater
financial, marketing and technological resources than the

Company.

Combined Systems. One competitor is operating commer-

cially a positioning and two-way communications system which re—
ceived FCC approval on a secondary, non—interference basis (the
competitor's system must stop operations if it interferes with
VSAT users) in February 1989. That system uses leased satellite
transponders on existing satellites to provide two-way communica-
tion between mobile users utilizing rotating antennas. That sys-

tem determines the position of the mobile user by using Loran-C,
but recently proposed to determine position information by relay-
ing signals to and from transponders on two satellites and multi-
ple fixed sites on the ground. While the user terminals and
other hardware for the GEOSTAR and this competitor's system are
similarly priced, the Company believes that its charges for
similar message transmissions are lower than the competitor's and
that the Company's omnidirectional antenna affords less
transmission delay than the competitor's rotating antenna which
must first locate and fix onto the satellite. In addition, the

Company believes that, as a result of a much higher bit rate,
customers of System ZC can send more data in a given time period
from mobile terminals to GEOSTAR Central than customers of the

competitor's system can from the competitor’s mobile terminals to
its hub. Although the competitor's recently proposed positioning
system purports to be more accurate than the Loran-C positioning
used by the competitor's existing system and by System 20, the
Company believes that, once developed and operational, GEOSTAR
RDSS will provide radio determination service with more accuracy

(less than 50 meters) and less transmission delay than the
competitor's system and will utilize miniaturized mobile user
terminals.

In addition to the Company, three other companies had
been granted licenses by the FCC to provide RDSS, which were sub-
sequently returned to the FCC. However, any company can apply or
reapply to the FCC for an RDSS license, subject to FCC approval
procedures.

Another company has proposed to link its specialized
terrestrial radio services into a controlled network serving ma-

jor metropolitan and industrial areas as well as the.interstate
highway system. The service would combine existing product lines
(voice, facsimile, data and positioning) to create regional and
national mobile communication coverage targeted at the
transportation market. The product distribution and service will
be handled through that company's large dealer network and
national account force. The Company believes that the large num-

bers of interconnections required to integrate the varied
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will be inherently less reliable
verage y's satellites. In addition,

lobally compatible.
equipment for national co
and more expensive than t
that technology will not be g

other companies which are offering or
tems employing meteor burst communica-

osition information. These com-
osition information using the Loran~C

unications, which do not utilize
dio signals off of the

panics generally obtain p
network. Meteor burst comm
satellites. involve the reflection of re I
ion trails of burning meteors as they enter the earth 3 atmos-
phere. The Company believes that meteor burst communications are
more limited in range, are subject to time delays to transmit
data and are not as reliable as satellite-based systems, such as
the GEOSTAR System.

Communications Systems. A consortium of eight com—
panies was licensed by the FCC in May 1989 to provide voice
oriented land mobile satellite service (”LMSS“). The consortium
intends to provide conventional channelized communications,
primarily for voice service but with data capability, through
satellites. The Company believes that the consortium intends to
provide position information using Loran-C. The Company also
believes that the consortium will utilize leased capacity on an
existing satellite in order to commence limited operations for
data cemmunications in 1990 and is planning to build a dedicated
satellite for launch in 1994. The services proposed to be
provided by LMSS will be similar to the services provided by
cellular telephone. The Company believes that the consortium has
entered into arrangements with one company for the manufacture of
user terminals and another company for the distribution of the
product and service. The Company believes that LMSS will be
expensive (with the system cost estimated to be in excess of $700
million) and will require more expensive user terminals and will
only be able to serve a relatively small subscriber base
(thousands to tens of thousands), thereby causing this service to
be more expensive than that of the Company's RDSS, which is ex”
pected to serve a larger subscriber base.

Cellular telephone and other terrestrial radio systems
provide mobile communications capability; however, these services
are currently limited to urban areas and are believed to be sig-
nificantly more expensive'than the cost of GEOSTAR System 20 ser-
viCe or the expected cost of GEOSTAR RDSS. Cellular service is
also complementary to the GEOSTAR System because cellular users
could utilize GEOSTAR System capabilities to locate "roamers,"
and to control operating charges by limiting cellular use to only
those instances when prolonged voice communication is necessary.

Paging systems, including nationwide paging systems,
provide a competing means of communicating information to mobile
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units in local area; however, they lack three GEOSTAR System
features: mobile-to-headquarters transmission capability;
nationwide coverage; and position determination or reporting

capability.

An international organization owned by companies and

governmental entities from approximately 55 countries that oper-
ates a maritime mobile communications system has amended its
charter to allow it to provide a land mobile message transfer

system similar to that which would be provided by the Company's
DLMSS. That organization would be required to obtain regulatory

approval before its system could be used to provide land mobile
services within the United States. To the best of the Company's

knowledge, any such use of that system for land mobile services
within the United States will be limited to interim operations

until satellites operated by United States companies could be
launched.

Mobile Eositioning Systems. There are several types of
mobile positioning systems now operating, some of which serve
locally based vehicle fleets while others serve long distance
transportation fleets.

Positioning information for local fleets may be pro—

vided by self-contained dead-reckoning devices that use systems
on board the vehicle to calculate position without reliance on
exterior radio signals. Several companies offer such systems.
Positioning information for local fleets can also be provided
using special receivers that pick up Loran-C radio signals.
Loran-C signals provide relatively low-precision navigational in-
formation over most of the area of the continental United States

and are used extensively for marine and aeronautical navigation.
These signals are provided free of charge and can be decoded by
equipment that must be purchased. The Company is currently using
Loran-C receivers as part of its user terminals for GEOSTAR
System 2.0 and 20. Loran—C based vehicle location systems are

presently offered by several companies. However, the dead
reckoning and Loran-C based positioning systems both provide the
positioning information only to the particular vehicle in which
the equipment is located. Some other means must be utilized to
transmit that information to the vehicle's central fleet head-

quarters.

Another satellite-based positioning system, GPS, will

eYentually provide navigational service to governmental and
Civilian users. GPS is expected to be available on a worldwide
continuous two-dimensional (latitude and longitude) basis by the
end of 1991 and a three dimensional basis (latitude, longitude

and altitude) basis by the end of 1993. Like Loran-C, GPS ser-
Vice will be free, although the user will still have to purchase

CPS receiving equipment. GPS only provides its information to
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the user terminal. The Company believes that the primary advan-
tages of the GEOSTAR System over GPS are (i) the GEOSTAR System's
different architecture which eliminates ionospheric and certain
other sources of positioning errors; (ii) the location of the

‘ data base in GEOSTAR Central computers, so that updates can be
made at one site rather than having to be made in the field at
all user terminals; and (iii) the GEOSTAR System's ability to
communicate position information to a central control site and to

communicate digital messages to and from users. GPS is comple-
mentary with the GEOSTAR System because the GEOSTAR System is an
inexpensive way to transmit GPS coordinates to control centers.
The Company anticipates that user terminals for System 2C will be
produced incorporating GPS units when that service is available.

Begulatory and Governmental Matters

} The field of satellite-based navigation and position
reporting is subject generally to federal regulation by the FCC
and international regulation by the International Telecommunica-
tions Union (the "ITU"), an international body of 160 countries
which develops international telecommunications standards. More-

‘ OVer, provision of GEOSTAR System services to certain markets
i will require additional government approvals.

: GTE is licensed to operate through 1999 the
. transponders used by the Company for System 2.0 and System 2C.
fl The Company has contracted with GTE to use these transponders and
' is presently licensed by the FCC to operate 50,000 mobile
' terminals through these transponders. The number of mobile

terminals authorized may be increased by application to the FCC.

In 1986, the FCC also licensed the Company to launch
dedicated satellites and to use specific frequencies with a 33
megahertz width allocated to provide RDSS on a primary basis.
The terms of the Company's RDSS license required that the Company
begin construction of the first satellite by August 1987 and the
remaining satellites by August 1988, launch the first satellite
by March 1992, and have the system operational by August 1993.
The Company has met the deadlines for commencing construction of
the required satellites for the system. Because of the Company's
plans for construction of its satellites and the estimated launch
dates of the Company's satellites, the Company is currently nego-
tiating with the FCC to obtain the necessary extensions for the
other deadlines.

In October 1987, the ITU granted a worldwide allocation
0f frequencies for RDSS in the same frequency bands licensed to
the Company by the FCC. That allocation is on a primary basis
(CO-equal status with existing users) in the Western Hemisphere
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and on either a primary or secondary basis in Europe, Africa and
Asia. In order to operate an RDSS system outside of the United
States, the Company will be required to obtain approval from
regulatory agencies of the countries in which the system is to
operate. The Company has received a license from the FCC to

h. operate in maritime areas of the Caribbean basin and has filed an
'4? application for authority to operate throughout North and South

America.

In June 1988, Geostar Messaging Corporation petitioned
the FCC to allocate frequencies for DLMSS using a 33 megahertz
width L—band frequency (different from that assigned to the eight
company consortium for voice oriented LMSS) and applied to the
FCC for a license to launch and operate satellites providing

DLMSS. In February 1990, the FCC issued a notice of proposed
rulemaking to allocate frequency bands for mobile satellite ser-
vice (of which DLMSS is a subset).

Patents

In November 1982, a United States patent was issued to
Dr. Gerard O'Neill, the Founder of the Company, covering a satel-
lite-based position determining system, its method of operation,
and the design of the user—carried terminals that are tracked by
the system; this patent expires in 1999. In November 1984, the
Company purchased from Dr. O'Neill that patent and all rights and
technology owned by Dr. O'Neill relating to the GEOSTAR System.
In June 1989, a United States patent was issued to the Company

' covering a low—cost vehicle navigation system using two satel-
~ lites and a digital terrain map. This patent expires in 2006 and

is pending worldwide. The Company owns or has applied for a num-
ber of United States and foreign patents relating to various as-

pects of GEOSTAR RDSS. The Company considers its patent protec-
tion important for its business.

The Company has licensed its patents to its manufac-
turers in the United States and to Locstar, the European company

licensed to operate an RDSS system in ITU Region 1.

Research and Technolo Develo men

The Company has conducted various research and develop-
ment work relating to the implementation of the GEOSTAR System.
The Company's current research and development programs relate to
improvements to the user terminals and GEOSTAR Central for System
2.0 and System 2C service and development of the user terminals,
GEOSTAR Central and spacecraft segment needed for GEOSTAR RDSS.
The Company coordinates and monitors the development work being
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conducted by the various third parties with which it has con-
tracted for certain portions of that work.

During 1989, 1988 and 1987, the Company spent approx-

imately $1,001,000, $2,462,000 and $1,166,000, respectively, on
Company sponsored research and development, which included de-
velopment of various components of the GEOSTAR System. During
1989, 1988 and 1987, approximately $3,241,000, $6,773,000 and
$3,467,000, respectively, was spent on customer-sponsored re-
search and development primarily for the development of minia-
turized user terminals. That work has been performed by subcon-
tractors of the Company.

Employees

As of March 1, 1990, the Company had a total of 67

full-time employees, none of whom is represented by a union.

Item 2 - Bronsrties

The Company's executive offices and GEOSTAR Central are
located in an office building at 1001 22nd Street, N.w., Washing-
ton, D.C. The Company has five leases covering approximately
29,000 square feet of space at that address. The annual rental
for that space is approximately $850,000 (subject to annual ad-
justment). Four of those leases have an expiration date of Au-
gust 31, 1992, with three containing an option to renew for five
years. The fifth lease expires on August 31, 1993. The Company

is currently exploring the possibility of relocating the Com-
pany's executive offices and GEOSTAR Central to a location in the
suburbs of Washington, D.C.

Research and development activities by or on behalf of
the Company are conducted at GEOSTAR Central and at the facil—
ities of the various third parties with which the Company has
contracted for such research and development work. The Company
considers these facilities currently adequate for such purposes.

Item 3 — Legal Proceedings

On September 18, 1989, Railstar brought an action
against the Company in Superior Court for Hillsborough County,

New Hampshire seeking injunctive relief, declaratory relief and
money damages in connection with a dispute between Railstar and
the Company over the terms of a series of agreements between the
two companies. Timothy Mellon, a director of Railstar and the
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prinCiPal stockholder and chairman of the board 01" Railstar's
parent: is a former director of the Company and is the beneficial
owner of more than five percent of the Company's outstanding
shares of Common Stock. On September 20, 1989, the Company began

, a similar action against Railstar in the Superior Court of the3 District of. Columbia, which was subsequently stayed pending reso—
lution of the New Hampshire action. Following the issuance of
such stay, the Company filed a counterclaim against Railstar in

and a National Service Subscription Agreement entered into by
Railstar and the Company in October 1986 (the ”NSA").

The Company and Railstar entered into a Stipulated
Order on February 2, 1990 which terminated this litigation with
prejudice and provided that: (i) the 1985 Agreements remained in
effect; (ii) the NSA was terminated subject to a series of pro-
visions relating to user terminals in service as of the date of

‘ the Stipulated Order; (iii) the Company and Railstar agreed to‘ divide certain monetary amounts that ware in dispute between
Railstar and the Company; (iv) Railstar was granted a non-exclu-
sive right to purchase, market and sell GEOSTAR System service in

Item 4 — Submission of Matters to a gate of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holdersduring the quarter ended December 31, 1989.
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PART I

Item 5 - Market for Registrant's Common Equity and
Belated Stockholder Matters
 

6
There is no established public trading market for the

common Stock of the Company. The Common Stock is not quoted on
any inter-dealer or other recognized quotation system. Trades of
the Company's Common Stock consist of isolated private sales by
stockholders, As of March 1, 1990, there were approximately 848
holders of record of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company.

The Company has not declared or paid any cash dividends
on its Common Stock. Certain of the Company's convertible deben—
tures prohibit the payment of a dividend if the Company has de-
faulted on any interest or principal payment on such debentures.
In connection with the Company's bridge financing completed in
December 1989, the Company agreed not to pay any dividends prior
to the repayment of the financing.

Item 6 - Financial Information

Selected Finangial Data

dated financial statements of the Company, which have been audited
by KPMG Peat Marwick, independent certified public accountants.
Their report thereon contains explanatory paragraphs regarding

the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, deferral of
a satellite construction contract and a change in accounting

policy. The consolidated financial statements as of December 31,
1989, 1988 and 1987, related notes and the auditors' report
thereon (the "Financial Statements") are included in Item 14.
The following selected financial data should be read in conjunc-
tion with the Financial Statements. The selected financial data

presented below are not covered by the auditors' report.

i I. The following table has been derived from the consdli-

'19“ N
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Statement of
QuaiEMLEfiy

Revenues

operating Expenses

Direct Costs

Space and Ground
Sggleflt Operating
Expenses

Selling. General
and Adlinistrativa
Expenses

Depreciation and
Anortization

Research and
Development Costs

Total Operating Expenses

Loss fro. Operations

Interest Expense. Net

Nonoperating Losses

Interest and Other Incose

Loss Before Cumulative
Effect of a Change in
Accounting Principle

Cu-ulative Effect of a
Change in Accounting
Principlelll

Net Lossll)

Loss Per Cannon Share(1)

flglancg Sheet Data:

Horking Capital (Deficit)

Total Assets

Long-tern Obligations

Shareholders' Equity(Deficit)(2|

w——————_____________

 

___ Years Ended December 31,
1989

910.667.140

5.780.663

2.675.935

6.871.334

1.631.935

1,000,696

17,960,563

7.293.423

3.658.570

563.065

986,594

10.528.464

10.528.464

.92

( 7.677.905)

78.226.708

46.484.072

12.955.087

1988

610.041.279

8.187.083

999.813

5.190.766

536.206

2,461,824

17 375 692

7.334.413

2.188.039

5.149.769

879,534

13.792.687

13.792.687

1.44

11.634.074

75.473.223

44,178,161

21.057.362

1987

8 4,144,614

3.486.473

127.981

2.935.832

296.908

1,165,613

8,012,807

3.868.193

989.550

392 213

I

4.465.530

1,016,909

3.448.630

.48

(4.952.534)

33.379.143

26.023.775

(895.9131

_ 1955

8 120.464

109.093

5.142.376

217.296

248 025

5,716,790

5,596,326

1.357.713

12.948.915

484,919

19.448.040

19.448.040

3.09

4.742.545

24.432.942

25.798.195

[4.639.888)

198

2.031.736

147.303

1,019,535

3,198,574

3.198.574

66.437

30,223

3.234.788

3.234.788

.66

(675.946)

9.316.314

1.361.513

6.089.095

11’ During 1937. the Conpany began to capitalize costs of internal labor and related overhead expenses in
connection with the construction of the GEOSTAR Systel.
applied retroactively.

Financial Stateaents.

If this change in accounting principle had been

34 the net loss and loss per cannon share for 1987 and 1926 would have been.465.S30 and 3.62 and 518.431.140 and 52.93. respectively. See note 20 of the notes to the CompanY'S

‘23 The Ceepany has not declared any dividends on its Cannon Stock since its inception.

-20-
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Item 7 — Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

Results of Operations. Revenues increased to

f ' $10,667,140 in 1989 from $10,041,279 in 1988 and $4,144,614 in
.éky 1987. The net increase in 1989 revenues is due to (1) an increase

of 190% in 1989 service revenues over 1988 resulting from in—
creased subscribership, (2) an increase of 31% in sales of hard—
ware and software by the Company, (3) international technology
licensing revenues of $3,348,442 resulting from the achievement
of milestones relating to the Locstar contracts which were signed
in 1989 and (4) an offsetting decrease in government contract
revenues of 53% due to reduced activity under the government con-
tract as a result of the completion of certain phases of the con-
tract. Commercial revenues as a percentage of total revenues

increased to 66% in 1989 as compared with 22% in 1988.

The increase in 1988 revenues from 1987 revenues is due

to the beginning of commercial operations of System 2.0 in June
1988 and increased activity under one of the Company's contracts
with the United States government. Commercial revenues as a per-

centage of total revenues increased to 22% in 1988 as compared
with 4% in 1987. The Company had no material revenues prior to
1987.

Direct contract costs and software and hardware costs

("direct costs") represent subcontract costs under the government
contract and the international technology licensing contracts and

, the cost of hardware and software sold. Direct costs were
' $5,780,663 in 1989 as compared to $8,187,083 in 1988 and

$3,486,473 in 1987. Such costs as a percentage of total revenues
decreased to 54% in 1989 from 82% in 1988 and 84% in 1987. The
percentage decrease in such costs in 1989 is attributable to the
increase in service revenues which carries no direct contract

costs and the international technology licensing contracts which
bear little direct contract costs. The direct costs increased in

1988 compared with 1987 as a result of increased activity under
the Customs Service contract and the costs associated with the
increased hardware and software revenues. However, such costs

decreased slightly in 1988 as a percentage of revenues due to the
addition of System 2.0 revenues for which there are no direct
costs.

Space and ground segment operating costs increased to
$2,675,935 in 1989 from $999,813 in 1988 and $127,981 in 1987.
The increases are due primarily to increased lease expenses for
satellite transponder services and in-orbit insurance costs which
began upon commercial operation.of System 2.0 in 1988 and System
2C in 1989. In addition, in 1989 the Company contracted for
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additional space and ground segment components which provide for
additional system redundancy.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased
to $6,871.334 in 1989 from $5,190,766 in 1988 and $2,935,832 in

1987. The increases in such expenses are due primarily to in-
creased marketing and advertising, increased facilities rent,

increased legal fees and increased personnel-related costs.

Research and development costs decreased to $1,000,696
in 1989 from $2,461,824 in 1988 and $1,165,613 in 1987. The in-
crease from 1987 to 1988 is due primarily to System 2.0 software
and hardware development costs. Development costs during 1988
and 1989 relate primarily to development of the two-way communica-
tions hardware and additional user headquarter software.

Interest expense increased to $3,658,570 in 1989 from
$2,188,039 in 1988 and $989,550 in 1987. The increase from 1988
to 1989 is due to an increase in capital lease obligations, the

purchase of a transponder which is being financed by the seller,
an increase in interest relating to space segment obligations,
and interest related to an aggregate of $12.1 million of loans
received and deferred payments committed to in November and Decem-
ber 1989 of which $9,975,500 was outstanding at December 31, 1989.

The increase in interest expense from 1987 to 1988 was due to
increased commercial bank borrowing and an'increase in the amount

of space segment obligations and decreased capitalization of in-
terest resulting from commencement of operation in 1988 of the
Company's primary and back—up RDSS transponders.

In December 1988, the Company and one of its launch
providers agreed to terminate two launch service agreements re-
sulting in the Company expensing deposits (which may be taken
into account in the event the Company uses that launch provider

in the future) and capitalized interest totalling $1,304,405. In
addition, the Company expensed $3,108,173 resulting from the mal-
function of the satellite carrying the Company's back-up L-band
transponders and also expensed additional capitalized costs re-
lated to the GEOSTAR System amounting to $737,191. These amounts
were included in nonoperating losses in 1988.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96, Accounting

for Income Taxes, effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 1991. The Company expects to implement Statement

No. 96 in 1992. The Company does not anticipate any adverse im-
pact from implementation of this pronouncement.

Li it a d Ca ital Resou es. In December 1989, the

Company completed a financing transaction in which it obtained
loans and commitments to defer payments aggregating $12,100,000

 
 —-—--—H-—-—._=.—_—__—-=—--——-————_ - ks- . -mL—.____

Page 000023

 



Page 000024

 
2369-90-20204

from various entities with which it does business and certain of
its stockholders, including members of the Board of Directors or
their affiliates. The loans and amounts deferred bear interest

at a rate equal to 1% over the prime rate and are secured by cer-
tain of the Company's assets. Purchasers of promissory notes
with a maturity date of January 15,1991 aggregating $1,100,000
received warrants to purchase 27, 500 shares of the Company' 3 Com-
mon Stock at $8.00 per share. Loans and deferrals aggregating
$10,000,000 for which no warrants were issued and which had an
original ;«turity date of March 31, 1990 are currently payable
upon the demand of the lender Another promissory note for
$1,000, 00 with an original maturity date of March 31,1990 has
been extev:jed to June 30,1990.

The Company will continue to incur significant payment
obligations for launch costs and transponder lease payments for
its RDSS transponders (see notes 11 and 13 of the notes to the
Company's Financial Statements), as well as for the completion of
GEOSTAR Central for System 3.0. Furthermore, the Company cur-
rently has outstanding convertible subordinated debentures in the
principal amount of $14, 420, 000; $2, 820, 000 of which matures in
1991 and $11, 600,000 of which matures in 1996. In January 1989,
$650,000 of convertible subordinated debentures outstanding at
December 31, 1988 were converted into Common Stock. See note 12
of the notes to the Company's Financial Statements.

The Company's contract for the construction of dedicated
satellites requires substantial payments. The Company is cur—
rently negotiating an agreement with the manufacturer which would
allow the Company to defer the construction of the single beam
dedicated satellites for at least one year. See note 5 of the

notes to the Company's Financial Statements. If such deferral is
obtained, the Company believes that it will have no material
financial commitments pursuant to this contract through the end
of 1990.

The Company's working capital decreased to a deficit of
$7,677,905 at December 31, 1989 from a positive working capital
position of $11,634,074 at December 31, 1988 primarily as a result
of the net loss that the Company incurred for 1989. As of Decem-
ber 31, 1989, the Company's material financial contractual com-

mitments (excluding current liabilities of $18,787,549 at Decem-
ber 31, 1989) for the next twelve months totalled approximately
$8,644,000. The Company believes that it can meet its financing
requirements through the end of the second quarter of 1990 from
existing funds and revenues from commercial operation of Systems
2.0 and 2C, sales of GEOSTAR technology and contracts with United
States government agencies, assuming no repayment of existing
indebtedness payable upon demand. The Company will require addi-
tional financing for its operations subsequent to that date. The
Company is in the process of exploring and evaluating financing
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alternatives which may be availabie to it. There can be no assur-

ance that the Company will be successful in obtaining such
financing.

3 Item 8 - 'na ia tatements a Su eme tar Data

See Item 14(a) of this report incorporated herein byreference.

Item 9 - Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on

Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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PART III

Item 10 — Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

9 The following are the directors and executive officers
of the Company:

ame Age Position

William E. Simon 62 Chairman of the Board of Directors

Martin R. Snoey 46 Director; President; Chief Operating
Officer; and Acting Chief Executive
Officer

Michael J. Breslin 44 Director; Senior Vice President, Sales

Joel R. Alper 52 Director

John N. Irwin, III 36 Director

Bernard M. Oliver 73 Director ‘

Gerard K. O'Neill 63 Director

John N. Palmer 55 Director

James C. Wheat, Jr. 69 Director

David E. Wine 53 Director

Robert D. Briskman 57 Senior Vice President, Engineering &
Operations

Donald E. Brown 44 Senior Vice President, Corporate &
International

T. Stephen Cheston 48 Executive Vice President,
Governmental Affairs

Mary A. DiMarco 28 Treasurer; Senior Director, Finance

The term of office as members of the Board of Directors

of Messrs. Simon, Snoey, Breslin, Wheat, and Wine will expire at
the 1990 Annual Meeting of Stockholders ("Annual Meeting"); the
terms of Messrs. Oliver, O'Neill, and Palmer will expire at the
1991 Annual Meeting; and the terms of Messrs. Alper and Irwin will
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expire at the 1992 Annual Meeting. Officers serve at the discre-

tion of the Board of Directors. There are no family relationships
between any directors or executive officers of the Company.

Mr. Simon has been a director of the Company since Jan-
uary 1986 and Chairman of the Board of Directors since September
1986. Mr. Simon has been Chairman of the Board of WSGP Inter-

national, Inc. and William E. Simon & Sons, Inc., private invest-
ment companies, since 1986 and 1989, respectively. He was Chair-
man of the Board of Wesray Corporation, a private investment com-
pany, between 1981 and 1986. He is President of the John M. Olin

Foundation, a charitable organization, and is past President of
the United States Olympic Committee. He served as Deputy Sec-
retary of the Treasury of the United States in 1973, the first
Administrator of the Federal Energy Office between 1973 and 1974
and Secretary of the Treasury between 1974 and 1977. Mr. Simon
is currently a director of Xerox Corporation and Worldtrade
Bancorp. He is also Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the
United States Olympic Foundation and a member of the Board of

Trustees of Lafayette College and the University of Rochester.
See "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions."

Mr. Snoey has been President, Chief Operating Officer
and acting Chief Executive Officer of the Company since October
1989 and a director since July 1989. He had been President of

the Company's Transportation Division from‘July 1989 to October
1989. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Snoey held senior manage—
ment positions with two companies in the transportation industry.
From 1984 to 1989, he was the head of sales, marketing and opera-
tions for Kenworth, a division of Paccar, Inc., an international
manufacturer of heavy duty trucks. Mr. Snoey was Regional Vice
President for Freightliner Corporation, a wholly—owned subsidiary
of Daimler Benz, the world's largest manufacturer of heavy duty
trucks, from 1981 until 1984. Mr. Snoey is a registered pro-
fessional engineer in California, Washington, Oregon and North
Carolina and has published several technical papers.

Mr. Breslin has been a director of the Company since
September 1985 and Senior Vice President, Sales since July 1986.
Previously he served as Vice President for Marketing, Treasurer
and Executive Vice President of the Company at various times from
November 1983 through July 1986.

Mr. Alper has been a director of the Company since Sep-
tember 1987. Mr. Alper has been at times President and Vice Presi-

dent of various divisions within Communications Satellite Corpora-
tion ("COMSAT") since 1984. He has been the President of COMSAT

Systems Division since November 1987. Mr. Alper represented COMSAT
on the Board of Governors of INTELSAT from 1980 to 1986, serving
as the Board's Chairman from 1985 to 1986. COMSAT has entered

into several agreements with the Company. See "Certain Relation-
ships and Related Transactions."
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Mr. Irwin has been a director of the Company since June
Since 1984, he has been Managing Director of Hillside Cap—

ital Incorporated, a privately—held company with subsidiariesinesses in the manufacturing and chemical industries.
Mr. Irwin is currently a director of Ampex Group Incorporated andQ'Neill Communications, Inc. See "Certain Relationships and Re-

“ lated Transactions. "
Dr. Oliver has been a director of the Company since

September 1986. Dr. Oliver has been the Vice Chairman of theBoard of Directors of Biosys Inc., a developer of biological pest-
icideS. since November 1988 and was Chairman from the time thathe founded that company in December 1982 until November 1988. Hen the Deputy Chief of the SETI Program Office at the
NASA/Ames Research Center since March 1989 and was previously the
Chief of the SETI Program Office since 1983. For twenty-fiveears, he was a Vice President of Hewlett Packard Corporation and
for twenty-nine years, Director of the Hewlett Packard Corporate
Laboratories. Dr. Oliver was a director of Hewlett Packard from1973 until he retired in 1981. Dr. Oliver was awarded the National
Medal of Science in 1986.

Dr. O'Neill has been a director since he founded the
Company in 1983. Dr. O'Neill was the Chairman of the Board of
Directors from formation until September 1986 and Chief Executive
Officer from formation until July 1986. Dr. O'Neill was also
President of the Company from formation until July 1985. He is
currently the Chairman of the Board of Directors of O'Neill Com-
munications, Inc., a company he founded to develop a wireless
telephone communications system for use within buildings and was
its Chief Executive Officer until June 1989. Dr. O‘Neill was a

’ member of the faculty at Princeton University from 1954 to 1985,becoming a full professor of physics in 1965. In 1985, he re-
tired from Princeton, becoming Professor Emeritus of Physics. In
1985, he was appointed a member of the National Commission on
Space and served for the duration of the Commission.

Mr. Palmer has been a director of the Company since
February 1987. Mr. Palmer was the Chairman of the Board andChief Executive Officer of Mobile Communications Corporation of
America ("MCCA") from 1973 until April 1989 and has been the
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Mobile Tele-
communication Technologies Corporation ("Mtel") since October
1988. Both companies provide radio common carrier and other
telecommunication services. Mr. Palmer is a director and member
of the executive committee of Depoeit Guaranty Corporation and a
director of Mississippi Power 8 Light Co. MCCA and Mtel (into
which its predecessor, COM/NAV Marine, Inc., was merged) have
entered into agreements with the Company. See "Certain Relation-
ships and Related Transactions."
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Mr. Wheat has been a director of the Company since Jan-

uary 1986. Mr. Wheat has been an investment banker for more than
forty years. He is Chairman of WFS Financial Corporation and
chairman of the Executive Committee of its subsidiary, Wheat,
First Securities, Inc., which is an investment banker of the Com-
pany. Mr. Wheat is a limited partner in Atlantic Venture Part-
ners, an affiliate of Wheat, First Securities, Inc. He is a mem-
ber of the board of directors of the following public companies:
Bassett Furniture Industries, Noland Company, Richfood, Inc. and
S & K Famous Brands, Inc.

Mr. Wine was instrumental in the formation of the Com—

pany and has been a director of the Company since its formation
in 1983. Mr. Wine has been the President and Chairman of Florida
Boat Company, Inc., a company applying high technology propellers
to the poWer boat industry, since January 1987. In addition, for
the last five years, Mr. Wine has been actively involved in in-
vestments including real estate.

Mr. Briskman has been Senior Vice President, Engineer-

ing and Operations of the Company since December 1986. Prior to
that time, he had been Vice President, Engineering since April
1986. Mr. Briskman was employed by COMSAT from 1964 through 1986.
During the last five years at COMSAT, he was responsible for pro-
viding technical services in the areas of satellites, earth sta-
tions, communications systems, launch vehicles, teleconferencing
and related software. His title was Vice President, System Imple-
mentation of COMSAT General Corporation. Prior to COMSAT, Mr.
Briskman was employed by NASA, IBM and the Army Security Agency.

Mr. Brown has been Senior Vice President, Corporate &
International since November 1988. Prior to that time, he was
Senior Vice President and General Counsel since September 1987
and Treasurer since March 1988. Since joining the Company in

August 1985, he was at various times Vice President, Corporate
Affairs, Project Coordinator and Director of Contract Administra-
tion. Mr. Brown was self-employed as a photographer from 1984 to
August 1985. From 1972 to 1979, be practiced law with Paul Weiss,
Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison in New York City, Bogle & Gates in
Seattle, and Rosenfeld, Meyer & Susman in Beverly Hills, special-
izing in anti-trust, unfair competition, contracts, securities
and libel litigation. Mr. Brown is a member of three state and
seven federal bars.

Dr. Cheston has been Executive Vice President of Govern-

mental Affairs since October 1989 and prior to that time had been
President of Geostar Messaging Corporation, a wholly-owned sub-

sidiary of the Company, since October 1988. Since joining the
Company in July 1983, Dr. Cheston has been at various times a
director, Senior Vice President for International and Government
Affairs, Vice President for Government Affairs, Vice President
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for Administration, Treasurer and Secretary for the Company. Dr.
Cheston holds a Ph.D. in History from Georgetown University and
has studied corporate financial management at the Wharton School
of Business at the University of Pennsylvania. He has served as
Associate Dean and Acting Dean of the Graduate School of
Georgetown University and has authored numerous works on the im-
pact of space technology and satellite communications technology.

Ms. DiMarco has been Treasurer of the Company since
December 1988 and Senior Director of Finance since June 1989.

Previously she had been Director of Finance since March 1988 and
Controller and Manager of Finance since joining the Company in
March 1987. From 1984 until joining the Company, Ms. DiMarco was
employed as a certified public accountant with KPMG Peat Marwick,
the Company's auditors. ’
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Item 11 ~ Executive Compensation.

The following table sets forth the cash compensation
paid by the Company for services rendered during the year ended
December 31, 1989 to each of the five most highly compensated
executive officers of the Company whose cash compensation exceeded
$60,000 and to all executive officers as a group:

Name of Individual

or Number of Persons Cash
In Group Capacities in which Seryed Com ensat 0

Martin A. RothblattCl) President, Chief Executive $225,567
Officer

Robert D. Briskman Senior Vice President, $161,000(2)
Engineering and Operations

Donald E. Brown Senior Vice President, $130,000
Corporate & International

T. Stephen Cheston Executive Vice President, $115,000
Governmental Affairs ‘

Michael J. Breslin Senior Vice President, Sales $113,490

All executive officers $870,613
as a group (7 persons)(3)

 

(1)

(2)

(3)

Mr. Rothblatt resigned as President, Chief Executive Officer and a Direc-
tor of the Company effective October 1989. Mr. Rothblatt acts as a con-
sultant to the Company. His cash compensation includes only amounts paid
during the period of his employment with the Company.

Amount includes $31,000 bonus.

In July 1989, Martin R. Snoey entered into an employment agreement with
the Company to serve as the President of the Company's Transportation
Division. That agreement was subsequently amended in October 1989, to
provide that Mr. Snoey will serve as President, Chief Operating Officer
and acting Chief Executive Officer of the Company at a minimum annual
salary of $187,500. The agreement, which expires on December 31, 1992,
entitles Hr. Snoey to certain cash bonuses and options to purchase shares
of the Company's Common Stock upon the occurrence of certain events.

-30-
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Compensation of Directors

In November 1989, all non-employee directors of the
Company or their employers received options to purchase 1,000
shares of the Company's Common Stock at $8.00 per share exer-
cisable for a period of fiVe years following the grant of the
option. In addition, each chairman of a Board committee received
an Option to purchase an additional 3,000 shares and the Chairman
of the Board received an option to purchase an additional 16,000
shares. Under this formulation, options for the following number
of shares were awarded: Mr. Simon, 20,000 shares; Messrs. Irwin,
Oliver, Palmer and Wheat, 4,000 shares each; and Messrs. Alper,
O'Neill and Wine, 1,000 shares each. All out of pocket expenses
incurred by directors in attending meetings of the Board of Direc—
tors are reimbursed by the Company.

401(k) Tax Sayings and Retirement Plan

The Company's 401(k) Tax Deferred Savings and Retire-
ment Plan (the "401(k) Plan") became effective July 1, 1988.
Employees who have attained age 21 and who have completed at least
6 months of service with the Company are eligible to participate,
provided they have at least 1,000 paid hours in a 12 month eligi—
bility computation period. Under the 401(k) Plan, participants
are permitted to defer on a before-tax basis up to 15% of their
qualified earnings, which deferred amount will be contributed to
the 401(k) Plan by the Company. The Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended, limits an individual's annual before—tax de-
ferral to $7,627 beginning January 1, 1989 and to $7,979 beginning
January, 1990, subject to periodic increases thereafter. All
participant deferrals vest immediately.

Under the 401(k) Plan, the Company presently contri-
butes a matching amount equal to 50% of the participant's deferral
not in excess of 5% of the participant's qualified earnings. The
Company's contributions vest at a rate of 25% for each full year
of service, with contributions being completely vested for partic-
ipants with more than four credited years of service. The Com-
pany granted to all individuals employed by the Company on
March 11, 1988 one credited year of service in the 401(k) Plan.
The Company may also make additional discretionary contributions
for allocation among participants in proportion to their respec-
tive amounts of qualified compensation, but no such contributions
have been made. Contributions to the 401(k) Plan are invested
among a Guaranteed Long Term Account, a Guaranteed Short Term
Account and a Common Stock Account, as directed by the partici-pant.
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The Company made the following contributions which
vested in 1989: Mr. Rothblatt, $2,344; Mr. Briskman, $1,478,
Mr. Breslin, $1,778; Mr. Brown, $941; Dr. Cheston, $1,781; and to

all executive officers as a group, $8,845.

Amended and Restated 1983 Stock Option Plan

The Company maintains an Amended and Restated 1983 Stock
Option Plan (the "Option Plan"), previously approved by the stock-
holders, pursuant to which non-qualified options and incentive
stock options may be granted to officers, managers and other em-
ployees of the Company who have the capacity to contribute in a
substantial measure to the success of the Company. The Company

has approximately 67 eligible employees. As of February 28, 1990,
771,500 shares of Common Stock were reserved for issuance pursu-
ant to the Option Plan. The Option Plan will continue in effect
until December 29, 1993.

The Option Plan is administered by the Board of Direc—
tors' Personnel and Compensation Committee (the "Committee"),
which is responsible for selecting option recipients and for
determining the number of shares of Common Stock that will be

subject to each option.

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

\

Principal Features of the Option Plan. The Option Plan
provides for the grant of options that qualify as incentive stock
options under Section 422A of the Code and of non-qualified op-
tions. The price per share at which shares of Common Stock may
be purchased pursuant to any option granted under the Option Plan
is 100% of the fair market value of such shares on the date the
option is granted, except that for an incentive stock option
granted to any person who owns stock representing more than 10

percent of the total combined voting power in the Company, the
exercise price must be at least 110% of the fair market value of
such shares on the date that option is granted. Fair market value
is, if the shares are publicly traded, the mean between the high-
est and lowest reported selling price of a share or, if such prices
are not reported, the mean between the bid and asked prices of a
share. If the shares are not publicly traded, fair market value
is determined by the Committee based on all relevant facts and
circumstances. There is currently no established public trading

market for the Common Stock of the Company. The Common Stock is
not quoted on any inter—dealer or other recognized quotation sys-
tem, and any trades of the Company's Common Stock consist of iso-
lated sales by stockholders.

The aggregate fair market value (as of the date of
grant) of shares with respect to which incentive stock options
granted on or after January 1, 1987 may become exercisable for

‘32- 33.
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the first time by an optionee during any calendar year (whether
granted under this Plan or any other plan of the Company) may not
exceed $100,000.. No incentive stock option granted before Jan-

uary 1, 1987 may be exercised by an optionee while an incentive
stock option previously granted to such optionee is outstanding.

The option term is determined by the Committee and may
not exceed ten years. Options are not exercisable for the first
year after the date of grant except in the event of death, re-
tirement or disability, as described below. The exercise of out-
standing options may be accelerated by the Committee in the event
of a change in control of the Company. The options are not trans—
ferable, and are exercisable while the optionee is employed by
the Company. In the event of termination of employment by reason
of an employee's death, disability or retirement with the consent
of the Board, any outstanding option becomes immediately exercis-
able and remains exercisable (unless it expires earlier in accor-
dance with its terms), in the case of death, for a period of six
months, in the case of disability, for a period of six months
after the commencement of disability or, in the case of retire—
ment with the consent of the Board, for a period of three months.
In the event of termination of employment for any other reason,

any outstanding option, to the extent it was exercisable on the
date of termination, remains exercisable for three months after

such termination. The Option Plan has antidilution provisions by
which the number of shares authorized and issuable upon exercise

of options thereunder can be adjusted in certain circumstances,
such as stock splits, mergers and similar events.

Options granted. As of February 28, 1990, of the 67
employees eligible to participate in the Plan, 59 employees held
outstanding options to purchase 634,475 shares of Common Stock
and options to purchase 28,500 shares of Common Stock had been
exercised pursuant to the Option Plan. The following table sets
forth, as of February 28, 1990, the number of shares of Common
Stock subject to outstanding options under the Plan, the option
exercise prices and expiration dates for such options.

Common Stock Exercise

Subject to Price Per Range of
Options Share Expiration Date

28,800 $ 3.125 May 18, 1994

468,375 $ 8.00 July 17, 1995 to November 28, 1999
132,800 $12.00 December 1, 1998 to March 1, 1999

4,500 $14.00 June 28, 1999

During 1989, options to purchase 196,000 shares of Com-
mon Stock at an exercise price of $8.00 per share, 10,000 shares
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of Common Stock at an exercise price of $12.00 per share and 5,450
shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $14.00 per share
were awarded to the Company's employees. During 1989, options to
purchase 8,675 shares of Common Stock at $8.00 per share were
exercised when the fair market value was $12.00 to $14.00 per
share. During 1989, options were awarded as follows:

Number of Shares

ame Subject to Option

Michael J. Breslin ...................... 6,500
Robert D. Briskman...................... 16,000
Donald E. Brown ......................... 16,000
T. Stephen Cheston ...................... 8,000
All executive officers as a group ....... 134,500

Other Compensation Plans

The Company maintains disability and life insurance
plans for all its employees and its executive officers. The
amount of insurance purchased for each executive officer is based

on such person's annual compensation. Amounts paid for insurance
under the plans for executive officers during 1989 were as fol-
lows: Mr. Rothblatt, $2,955; Mr. Breslin, $5,368; Mr. Briskman,
$8,312; Mr. Brown, $4,186; Dr. Cheston, $4,426; and all executive
officers as a group, $30,551.

Item - 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
aners and Management,

The following table sets forth certain information re—

garding the beneficial ownership of the Company's Common Stock as
of February 28, 1990 by (1) each person known by the Company to
own beneficially more than 5 percent of the outstanding Common
Stock of the Company; (2) each member of the Company's Board of
Directors; and (3) all directors and officers of the Company as a
group. Under rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commis-
rion, a person is deemed to be a beneficial owner of securities

with respect to which he has or shares: (1) voting power, which
includes the power to vote or to direct the voting of the secu-
rity; or (ii) investment power, which includes the power to dis-
pose of, or to direct the diSposition of, the security. A person
is also deemed to be the beneficial owner of share of Common Stock
which may be acquired within 60 days upon exercise of stock op-
tions, warrants, rights to acquire Common Stock or conversion
privileges.

234- 34
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Common Stock Held as eb 9 0

Number Shares

of Shares Beneficially
Name and Address Beneficially Owned But Not Percent
f Benefic 81 Owner M). @2111 L123“)

Space Studies Institute(2) ....... 1,649,732 - 14.4%
P.0. Box 82

Princeton, New Jersey 08542

Mobile Telecommunication

Technologies Corp.(3) .......... 833,750 368,875 7.0%
200 South Lamar Street
Suite 900

Jackson, Mississippi 39201

Timothy Mellon(h) ................ 725,250 368,750 6.1%
P.0. Box 715

Amherst, New Hampshire 03031

Directors:

John N. Irwin, III(5) ............ 580,592 258,592 4.9%

Dr. Gerard K. 0'Neill(6) ......... 339,000 ‘ 10,500 2.9%

David E. Wine(7) ................. 334,397 93,750 2.9%

William E. Simon ................. 243,438 140,313 2.1%

Michael J. Breslin ............... 123,500 ‘ 106,900 1.11

Dr. Bernard M. Oliver ............ 32,375 13,625 .31

James C. Wheat, Jr.(8) ........... 17,375 11,125 .21

John N. Palmer(9) ................ 1,000 1,000 -

Joel R. Alper(10) ................ - - -

Martin R. Snoey .................. ~ - -

A11 directors and officers .

as a group (18 persons)(11).... 2,001,647 905,530 16.1%

 

(1) Unless otherwise indicated, each of the stockholders has sole voting and
investment power with respect to the shares beneficially owned.
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(3)

(9)

Includes 700 shares held in a benefit plan for employees of SSI. SSI is
a nonprofit organization founded by Dr. O'Neill in 1977. Dr. O'Neill is

the President of SSI and Chairman of the Board of Trustees. The power to
vote the shares of Common Stock owned by SSI is currently held by SSI's
Board of Trustees. The ten trustees include Dr. O'Neill, Dr. Cheston and
six stockholders of the Company. Although Dr. O'Neill and Dr. Cheston
participate in the exercise of the power to vote those shares of Common

Stock, they disclaim beneficial ownership of those shares. The SSI Board
of Trustees is elected by the Members of SSI. The eleven Members include

Dr. O'Neill; his wife; Dr. Cheston; James Laramie, the Secretary and a
Stockholder of the Company; Mr. Wine, a director and stockholder of the

Company; and three other stockholders of the Company.

Includes 339,875 shares subject to a warrant which expired on December 31,
1989, but which the Company and Mtel are negotiating to extend to Decem-
ber 31, 1991. Mr. Palmer, a director of the Company, is the Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Mtel. See "Certain Relationships
and Related Transactions."

Includes shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by Railstar, a subsid-.
iary of Guilford of which Mr. Mellon is the principal stockholder and

Chairman of the Board of Directors. See "Certain Relationships and Re-
lated Transactions." Also includes 6,250 shares of Common Stock held by
Mr. Mellon's wife.

Includes 371,842 shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by an affil-
iate of Mr. Irwin and 75,000 shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by
trusts for Mr. Irwin's benefit.

Includes 20,500 shares of Common Stock held by Dr. O'Neill's wife as cus-
todian for the benefit of their minor son. Dr. O'Neill has granted
another son, Dr. Roger A. O'Neill, a proxy to vote his shares if he is
unable to vote those shares.

Includes 37,575 shares of Common Stock held by Mr. Wine's wife for which
Mr. Wine disclaims beneficial ownership.

Does not include any shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by Wheat,
First Securities, Inc. ("WFS") of which Mr. Wheat is Chairman of the Exec-
utive Committee. WFS owns warrants to purchase 154,759 shares of Common
Stock. In addition, NFS is under common control with an entity that bene-
ficially owns 263,889 shares of Common Stock.

Does not include 833,750 shares owned beneficially by Mtel for which Mr.
Palmer disclaims beneficial ownership. Mr. Palmer is Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of Mtel. See "Certain Relationships
and Related Transactions."
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(10) Does not include 372,775 shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by
CONSAT for which Mr. Alper disclaims beneficial ownership. Mr. Alper is
the President of a division of COMSAT. See "Certain Relationships andRelated Transactions."

(11) Includes 20,192 shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by a trust, of
which the Secretary is a trustee and a beneficiary. Also includes 28,000
shares of Common Stock owned by an investment company controlled by mem-
bers of the family of the Secretary for which the Secretary disclaims
beneficial ownership.

"37.
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Item 13 — Certain Relationships and Related Transaction .

In December 1989, the Company completed a financing
transaction in which it obtained loans or commitments to defer

' payments aggregating $12,100,000 from various entities with whichit does business and certain of its stockholders, including mem-
bers of the Board of Directors or their affiliates. The loans
and amounts deferred bear interest at a rate equal to 1% over the
prime rate and are secured by certain of the Company's assets.
The following table sets forth the amounts of each loan made by
more than five percent stockholders, directors or their affiliates,
which loan is currently payable upon the demand of the lender.

Lender Loan ount

William E. Simon $1,000,000
Communications Satellite Corporation 300,000
Mobile Telecommunication Technologies Corp. 1,000,000
Hillside Industries, Inc. 1,000,000
WES Financial Corporation 500,000

In November 1984, the Company purchased from Dr. O'Neill
the patent and all rights and technology oWned by Dr. O'Neill
relating to the GEOSTAR System being deployed by the Company (the
"Technology"). The Company has paid to Dr. O'Neill for the Tech-
nology a fixed payment of $500,000 and agreed to pay Dr. O'Neill
a royalty equal to the greater of $50,000 per calendar quarter

@ (commencing with the fourth quarter of 1986) or one percent ofK the gross revenues of the Company or any transferee from the use
or license of the Technology. The maximum amount of royalties

payable to Dr. O'Neill is $4,400,000. Pursuant to this arrange-
ment, the Company paid Dr. O'Neill royalties for the Technology
of $200,000 from January 1, 1989 through February 28, 1990.

The Company is required to purchase key man life insur-
ance on Dr. O'Neill in an amount equal to $2.5 million less

amounts paid to Dr. O'Neill that are applied against the maximum
$4.9 million payment for the Technology. Upon Dr. O'Neill's
death, the proceeds of the life insurance in an amount equal to
the difference between $2.5 million and any payments made to Dr.

O‘Neill up to that time for the Technology would be paid to his
estate. Upon the payment of those proceeds to Dr. O'Neill's es-
tate or if Dr. O'Neill had already received $2.5 million prior to
his death, the Company would have no further obligation to make
payments for the Technology. If the Company abandons commercial
development of the GEOSTAR System and attempts to sell the Tech-
nology, Dr. O'Neill has a right of first refusal to match any
third party offer to purchase the Technology. The Company paid
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$30,859 in premiums for the life insurance policy from January 1,
1989 through February 28, 1990.

Dr. O'Neill has an employment contract with the Company
that provides that he will act as an advisor to the Company until
age 65 at an annual salary of $120,000 plus life and medical in-

surance benefits. In addition, the Company agreed to reimburse
him for the cost of office space outside the Company's office and
for the salary of one administrative assistant hired by Dr.
O‘Neill. From January 1, 1989 to February 28, 1990, the Company
paid Dr. O'Neill approximately $184,840 in salary, benefits and
reimbursements for office space and the salary of the administra-
tive assistant. Dr. O'Neill's employment contract provides that
the Company is granted all rights to future inventions and im-

provements relating to GEOSTAR System created by Dr. O'Neill while
he is employed by the Company. The agreement also provides that
Dr. O'Neill is prohibited from competing with the Company's busi-
ness while employed by the Company and for two years thereafter.
or while receiving payments from the Company for his rights to
the Technology.

In May 1985, the Company entered into a stock purchase
agreement with Railstar, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guilford
Transportation Industries, Inc., of which Timothy Mellon, a former

member of the Board of the Company who beneficially owns more
than five percent of the Company's Common Stock, is Chairman and
the principal stockholder. Pursuant to that agreement, Railstar
has agreed to purchase in installments up to 625,000 shares of
the Company's Common Stock at $8.00 per share, subject to the
Company's meeting certain milestones. Railstar purchased 256,250
shares of Common Stock and is obligated to purchase the balance
of 368,750 shares of Common Stock for $2,950,000 when two-Gay
GEOSTAR System service is operational and available to FRT
Systems.

The Company has granted Railstar the exclusive right in
North America (and those other territories which the Company may
designate) and the non-exclusive right throughout the rest of the
world (subject to certain exceptions) to use and sublicense the
use of the GEOSTAR System by FRT Systems. Railstar will receive

10 percent of all revenues from use of the GEOSTAR System by FRT
Systems and the Company will receive 90 percent of such revenues.

The Company has agreed to pay Railstar 10 percent of all royalties,
licensing fees or other payments which the Company receives for
any form of GEOSTAR System service in territories in which Railstar

is not the Company's exclusive licensee for FRT Systems. This
amount is reduced by commissions received by Railstar from use of
the GEOSTAR System by FRT Systems in those territories in which

Railstar has a nonexclusive license. From January 1, 1989 to
February 28, 1990, the Company paid Railstar $385,407 in con-

nection with the Company's foreign revenues. The Company and
Railstar reached a settlement in connection with litigation
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339,875 shares of Common Stoc

ment that will amend the 1987 Agreement.February 28, 1990, $106,331 was paid to Mtel for pagers and pag-
ing service fees in connection with that agreement.
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Item 14 — Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and
Reports on Form B-K

(a) (1) Financia State nts.

Page

Independent Auditors' Report F—l

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 1989
and 1988 F-3

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years
ended December 31, 1989, 1988 and 1987 F-4

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders'
Equity (Deficit) for the years ended December 31,
1989, 1988 and 1987. F-6

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the

years ended December 31, 1989, 1988 and 1987. F-7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-9

(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedule V - Property, Plant and Equipment F-26

Schedule VI - Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization of Property, Plant and Equipment F-27

Schedule IX - Short Term Borrowings F-28

Schedule x - Supplementary Income Statement Information F-29

Other schedules are omitted because of the absence of
conditions under which they are required or because the required
information is given in the financial statements or notes thereto.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

One report on Form 8-K, dated December 29, 1989 and
disclosing that the Company had obtained bridge financing aggre-

-42- all
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gating $12.1 million, was filed during the quarter ended Decem-
ber 31, 1989.

(c) Exh;bits.

3
The Exhibits are listed in the Index to Exhibits on

page 8—1.

-43- I715
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The Board of Directors

Geostar Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Geostar
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareholders' equity

(deficit), and cash flows for each of the years in the three—year period ended
December 31, 1989. In connection with our audits of the consolidated
financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedules
as listed under Item lh(a). These consolidated financial statements and

financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing

standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant_
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Geostar
Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the results of

its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year

period ended December 31, 1989 in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial

statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and schedules for 1989 have

been prepared assuming that Geostar Corporation and subsidiaries will continue
as a going concern. As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial

statements, the Company's recurring losses from operations, net working
capital deficiency and the need for additional financing raise substantial
doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.. Management's
plans in regard to these matters are also described in note 2. The

consolidated financial statements and schedules do not include any adjustments
relating to the recoverability and classification of reported asset amounts or

the amounts and classification of liabilities that might result from the
outcome of this uncertainty.

1'70
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Aa discussed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. the Company
is negotiating an agreement with the manufacturer of its dedicated satellites
which would allow the Company to defer the construction of the satellites for
at least 1 year. In the event the Company subsequently terminates the current
contract, certain termination payments would be required and capitalized costs
associated with this contract would be expensed.

As discussed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company
changed its method of accounting for internal costs associated with the
Geostar System in 1987.

Km 53,! 7M
KPHG Peat Marwick

Washington, D.C.
April 6, 1990 
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year! ended December 31, 1989, 1988 and 1987

128212831931

Revenues:

Technology license revenue 3 3,368,422 - -
Government contract revenue 3,666,817 7,827,115 3,995,831
Service revenues 1,418,637 689,289
Software and hardware sales _2‘2§54265 _1;ZZ&;815 ___13iQQQ

Total revenues 10,662,190 10,991,222

 
Operating expenses:

Direct government and technology
contract costa 3.620.830 6,772,857 3,467,h73

Software and hardware cont- 2,159,833 1,hlh,236 19.000
Space and ground segment operating

expenses 2,675,935 999,813 127,981
Selling, general and administrative

expenses (note 20) 6,871,335 5,190,766 2,935,832
Depreciation and amortization 1,631,935 536,206 296,908
Research and deVelopment coats _1JQQQ,§3§ _145§1,§2§ 1*1§1;613

Total operatins expense: mm mm 9.211.591

Lous from operations 2.293.523 Z.339.913 34fl§§;123

Interest expense and related borrowing
costs, not of capitalized interest
(note 6) __ 3,658,570 2,188,039 989,550

Nonoperating loases (note 19) 563,065 5,1h9,769 -
Interest and other income M911) M35) Jim)

Loss before cumulative
effect of a change in
accounting principle lfl,§2§‘§§5 13.222,§§Z 4,955,539

Cumulative effiect on the prior year of
a change in accounting principle
(note 20) __ ._- _ . _-__.. (1.915.109)

$W mm mm

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year: ended December 31. 1989. 1988 and 1987

Revenues:

Technology license revenue
Government contract revenue
Service revenues

Software and hardware aales

Total revenues

Operating expenses:
Direct government and technology

contract costs

Software and hardware costs

Space and ground segment operating
expenses

Selling, general and administrative
expenses (note 20)

Depreciation and amortization
Research and development coata

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Interest expense and related borrowing
costs. net of capitalized interest
(note 6) M

Nonoperating lossem (note 19)
Interest and other income

Loss before cumulative
effect of a change in
accounting principle

Cumulative effiect on the prior year of
a change in accounting principle
(note 20)

F-h

1232 lflflfl 12§1

48.h22
hh,817
18,637

3,995,831
115,783

_._3liQQQ

7,827,115
h89,289
 

3,620,830 6,772,8h7 3,h67,h73
2,159,333 1,41h,236 19,000

2,675,935 999.813 127.981

6,571.33a 5,190,766 2,935,832
1,631,935 536,206 296,908

_llflflflléfifi .2l5514825 liléilfilfi

11l2§Ql5§3 lziaziihzz 849124891

.Zizaaikza .14335l513 liflhflilafi

3.658.570 2,188,039 989,550
563,065 5,1h9,769 —

_ci2&§i52&) __13124§3&) .1322l213)

19‘528iflhk 134122;§fl1 Alkfiiiiifl

(llfllfiiflflfl)

fiafiifiafllfl

_ _.
_.__.__..——— _—_——

$ lflliZEliii lillizlfifll

(Continued)
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GEOSIAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations, Continued

 
1282 19.8.8. 1.181

Loaa per common share:
Lona before cumulative effect of a

change in accounting principle $ .92 l.hh .62
Cumulative effect on the prior year

of a change in accounting principle __= - (415)

Net lose 3 ‘22 1‘55 ‘5fl

Weighted average number of share-
outstanding 11.5mm 4.21141: M

See accompanying notea to conaolidated financial atatementa.

W

___,__H____W
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GEOSIAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement.

December 31, 1989, 1988. and 1987

s (1)11u11nau_and_&imifinsnt_Atnnmnnaniiniu
(a) Business

 
Geostar Corporation (the Company) was organized on February 18, 1983,
to develop and operate a radio determination satellite service (RDSS)
that provides position determination and message transfer services
using a system of satellites. ground stations. and user terminals.

On November 26. 1984, the founder of the Company (the founder) sold to

the Company the patent and all rights and technology relating to the
Geostar System (Technology) for $500,000. In addition, the Company is
required to pay the founder royalties equal to the greater of 1
percent of the Company's gross revenues or $50,000 per calendar
quarter, commencing in the fourth quarter of 1986. until the founder
receives a total of 3h.400,000 in royalty payments. The Company has
entered into an employment agreement with the founder, which grants to
the Company all rights to future inventions and improvements relating
to the Geostar System created by the founder while he is employed by
the Company. If the Company abandons commercial development of the
Geostar System and attempts to sell the Technology. the founder has a
right of first refusal to meet any third-party offer to purchase the
Technology.

During the 3 years ended December 31. 1989, the Company operated a
one—segment business. Sales to its major customer, a consortium of

i agencies of the federal government. accounted for 3h percent. 78percent and 96 percent of the Company's sales in 1989. 1988. and 1987.
respectively.

(b) 2rinoinlsa_ifi_flnnanlida£inn

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(c) Rmmstrnitinn

(d)

(e)

(f)

The Company has cost plus fixed fee contracts with the federal
government. Revenues under these contracts are recorded as
reimbursable costs are incurred and include estimated earned fees

recorded on the percentage of completion basis. Provisions for
estimated losses, if any. are made in the period in which such losses
become known and are estimable. Contract revenue paid in advance is
deferred and recognized as income when earned.

Revenue from position determination service is recognized when

services are provided. Service revenue received in advance is

recognized using the straight-line method over the 3-year estimated
period of service.

Revenue from the sale of software and hardware is recognized when
shipped to customers based on signed sales contracts.

InInstmnns

The Company's investment in the equity securities of a foreign company
is stated at cost.

WWW

All research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

mwmmmm

Geoster System. construction in progress and equipment are stated at

cost. Equipment under capital lease is stated at the present value of
minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease. Interest costs
are capitalized on qualifying assets during the period of
construction. Internal direct labor and associated overhead are

capitalized as construction in progress.

Geostar System costs are depreciated over the estimated useful lives
of the assets of 10 years using the units in service method. Under
this method the annual depreciation is calculated on the ratio of

units in service to date to the total expected units to be in service

over the estimated useful life. Depreciation of equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method over the 3 to 5 year
estimated useful lives of the assets.

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(3) WW

(FCC) licenses and costs incurred in connection with obtaining
International Telecommunications Union (ITU) frequency assignments are
stated at cost less amortization computed on the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. Patents are being amortized over
15 years. FCC licenses and ITU costs are to be amortized over 10
years, commencing with the launch and operation of the Company's
dedicated satellites.

6 Patents for the Geostar System, Federal Communications Commission

(h) Wham

Loss per share amounts are based on weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year. Common shares issuable under
exercise of stock options and warrants and on conversion of
outstanding convertible subordinated debentures are excluded from the

- loss per share computation because they are antidilutive.

(2) Linuidiix

As of December 31, 1989, the Company had recurring losses from operations,
a net working capital deficiency of $7,677,905 and material financial
contractual comitments as discussed below, which raise doubts as to the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Company believes
that it can meet its financing arrangements through the second quarter of
1990 through current assets, revenues from commercial service and sales of
technology, assuming no repayment of existing debt. The Company will

6 require additional financing for its operations subsequent to that date.The Company is in the process of exploring and evaluating financing
alternatives which may be available to it.

(3)W

The Company‘s policy is to invest cash in excess of operating requirements
in income producing investments. For purposes of the statement of cash
flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with
maturities of 3 months or less to be cash equivalents.

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(A) Announta_3ecaixabls

Accounts Receivable at December 31:

Government contracts receivable:
Billed
Unbilled

Total government contracts
receivable

Technical licensing receivable
Position determination services

and hardware receivable

Total accounts receivable

Less allowance for doubtful accounts

Accounts receivable, net

1232 lfiflfl

S 864,127 590,274
liQaliififl silliiné

1.911.691 1,ass,31o

1,705,725 —

145154.153 14334531

5,192,969 3,0h8,8h7

___20iQQQ ___954900

$ W2 1.211.591

Unbilled contracts receivable of $557,873 represents costs and fees which
are billed in the subsequent month upon receipt of proper documentation
necessary for billing purposes. The balance of unbilled contracts

receivable represents unbilled subcontractor costs. All unbilled contract
receivables are expected to be collected within 1 year.

(5) Commitments

(a)W

In December 1989, the Company amended its dedicated satellite
construction contract to provide for the construction and delivery of
two single been dedicated satellites at an aggregate cost of
$86,575,000. The amended agreement provides for monthly payments due
prior to launch which is currently expected to occur in late 1993.
The construction of the single beam satellites would precede that of
the three multiple beam satellites originally contracted for. The
amended agreement also calls for a decrease in the cost of the

multi-beam satellites from $161,575,000 to $155,000,000. As of
December 31, 1989, the Company had paid $7,825,000 on this contract.
Either party to this contract may terminate, subject to certain
conditions, for convenience upon payment of costs incurred to date.

(Continued)
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 (b)

GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Subsequent to year end, the Company began negotiating an agreement
with the manufacturer which would allow the Company to defer the
construction of the single beam dedicated so ellites for at least 1
year. If the Company subsequently terminates the contract, associated
capitalized costs of approximately $11,100,000 as of December 31, 1989
would be expensed.

The Company has signed an agreement for three launches with the

National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) which permits the
Company to defer launch cost payments until 2h months after launch;
such payments will be based on the current market value. The Company
is obligated to pay the deferred launch cost over a 5-year period
beginning 2 years after launch. Interest on the deferred launch costs

will accrue at Treasury bill rates. The first NASA launch is expected
to occur in late 1993.

In October 1989, the Company entered into a contract for construction

of certain ground segment equipment totalling $825,000, of which
$125,000 was paid as of December 31, 1989.

MW

In December 1985, the Company entered into contracts with a
manufacturer to produce, license and market the user terminals for

Geostar System 2.0 and 3.0 service. The Company is obligated to pay
the manufacturer between 3.5 percent and 2.5 percent of grass revenues
from certain services from subscribers using the user terminals plus
.75 percent of System 3.0 service revenues irrespective of source.
Under certain circumstances, the Company has agreed to pay the
manufacturer 10 percent (in lieu of the previous percents) of service
revenues for sales and support services provided by the manufacturer.

In October 1985, the Company contracted for the development,
manufacture and licensing of Geostar System 2.0 user terminals with a

second manufacturer. Subject to minimum production quotas being met
and other performance conditions of the agreement, the Company has
guaranteed the sale of 5,000 System 2.0 user terminals by December
1990. In addition, the Company has guaranteed the sale of 5,000
System 20 receiver units by December 1991. The Company will pay the
manufacturers a total of 3.5 percent of gross revenues from certain
services to subscribers. assuming certain production quotas are met.

In July 1987, the Company entered into a contract with an unaffiliated

joint—venture to produce, license and market the user terminals for
Geostar System 3.0 service. The joint venture will incur all research

and development costs for the units. The Company is obligated to pay
to the joint-venture 2.5 percent of gross revenues from certain
services for subscribers using the joint venture's user terminals.

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(7) musings;

In December 1988, the Company invested $1,176,270 in a European company
which was formed in October 1988 to provide RDSS in Western Europe, Africa
and the Middle East. As of December 31. 1989 the Company had
approximately 11.5 percent of the voting rights and has appointed a member
of the board of directors of the European company. During 1989, the
Company recorded revenue of approximately $3,400,000 on the license of its
Technology to the European company.

(8)W

In June 1988, a warrant to purchase 339,875 shares of common stock (at
$9.75 per share) was exercised. Due to adjustments under the antidilution
provisions of the warrant, the shares were issued at a price of $9.63.
The Company received a note from the purchaser in the amount of $1,616,106
for a portion of the purchase price of the shares which is shown as a
deduction from shareholders' equity. The note was secured by 167,995
shares of the Company's common stock which were purchased upon exercise of

the warrant. The note principal and interest was due and paid on June 30,
1989. '

(9) WW

There were no notes payable to bank as of December 31, 1989.

The notes payable to bank as of December 31, 1988 were as follows:

Prime plus 1% (11.51 as of December
31, 1988) term loans due in June
1989 and January 1990; interest

payable monthly 3 3,500,000
12.75% lease financing; 12 monthly

principal and interest payments
of $14,613 due through December
1989; remaining unpaid principal
due in January 1990 435.267

12.001 lease financing; twelve monthly
principal and interest payments of
$18,675 due through November 1989;
remaining unpaid principal due in
December 1989 53§.2§§

Notes payable to bank 4,h71,533

Less — current portion 241§Q,1l§

Notes payable to bank - long—term 3 ZIZLL,91§

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of December 31, 1988, the above debt was secured by certain assets.
(10) Hams—211M113

The notes payable — other as of December 31, 1989 and 1988 are as follows:

1282 1280

Prime plus 11 notes (see below) 3 9,975,500 -
Noninterest bearing promissory note

(implicit rate of 121) payable in
monthly installments of $104,500
through December 1992 and $112,000
from January 1993 to July 1993;

secured by a satellite transponder 3,60h,369 h,435,000
Prime plus 2.51 note; monthly interest

only payments due through June 1990.
Secured by user equipment and related
sublease ahd service receivables and

$250,000 security deposit _lJQflQ4QQQ .___:_.a_

Total 15,579,869 b.435,000

Less - current portion lg4hfi14333 __Z§Za§i3

Notes payable - long-term 3 mm mm

The prime plus 1 percent notes payable are held by various entities and
certain stockholders including members of the Board of Directors or their
affiliates. These notes are secured by the Company's investment in
equity securities of a foreign company and a portion of Geostsr System
Central hub and technical equipment. Included in the balance outstanding
as of December 31, 1989 are $8,875,500 of notes originally due on March
31, 1990 which were amended such that $7,375,500 plus accrued interest is
due upon demand and $1,000,000 plus accrued interest is due on June 30,
1990. The remaining balance of $1,100,000 is due in 1991, and interest
is payable semi—annually commencing on May 1, 1990. The Company has
agreed not to pay any dividends until the total balance of prime plus 1
percent uotes payable has been repaid.

(11) Wilma

In 1985, the Company contracted for the transportation of its initial
relay on board a host satellite. The initial relay was launched in March
1986; however, due to a malfunction shortly after becoming operational in
May 1986, the relay failed, and accordingly, the costs were expensed.
Despite the relay failure. the Company is obligated to pay .8 percent of
the Company's revenue from the Geostar System for 10 years commencing
with the operational date of the relay.

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In 1985, the Company also contracted for the transportation of the
Company's primary and back-up transponders on board a host satellite.
These transponders were launched in March 1988 and became operational in
May 1988. The Company is obligated to pay an additional 1 percent of the
Company's revenue from the Geostar System for 10 years commencing with
the operational date of the satellite.

The Company's second and third back-up transponders which were launched
in September 1988 on board a host satellite reached proper orbit in
October 1989. The host satellite is expected to have a life of 4-5
years. The Company is obligated to pay an additional 1 percent of
certain of the Company's gross service revenues and 10 percent of certain
other Company's gross service revenues, with a minimum payment of
$125,000 per year.

In accordance with the contracts, the Company is also required to pay
space segment obligations during the 8-year periods commencing on the
operational date of each satellite. The present value of the future
payment stream was capitalized at the date of each launch. The Company
incurred a total present value obligation of $5,665,000 in 1989 and
$10,910,000 in 1988. In addition. approximately $10,100,000 was included
in the 1986 loss on failure of the initial relay.

The future payments under these obligations are as follows:

WM,

1990 $ h,270,250
1991 5,756,250
1992 7,257,250
1993 8,757,000
1994 6,31h,250
1995 and thereafter 9.885LZEQ

Total fixed payments 37,239,750

Less amount representing interest (at 101 - 121) 19412&;319

Present value of payments 27,0h5,h20

Less current installments of obligation 1,522,552

Obligations, excluding current

installment 3 3§a§13a§fi1

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(12)WW

During 1986, the Company issued three series of convertible subordinated
debentures which are

money borrowed from financial institutions:
subordinated to the payment of indebtedness

D, DA and DB series.

 

for
The

balances outstanding at December 31, 1989 and l988 are as follows:

The D series matured in 1989, prime plus 11
interest, payable semi-annually;
convertible at the option of the holder

at an initial conyersion price of $8.00
per share, subject to adjustment in certain
events; issued with detachable warrants

to purchase a total of 22,750 shares of

common stock for $8.00, exercisable until
January 15, 1991.

The DA series matures in 1991I 10% interest,
payable semi-annually; convertible into
common stock at the option of the holder
at an initial conversion price of $8.00
per share, subject to adjustment in certain
events: not callable for 3 years after the
issue except in certain events, callable
in the fourth year at 120% and callable in

the fifth year at 1101 of par plus accrued
interest.

The DB series matures in 1996, 101 interest.
payable semi—annually; convertible into
common stock at the option of the holder at

an initial conversion price of $9.70 per
share, subject to adjustment in certain
events; callable for the first sixty months

only after certain events at 1201 of par,
callable after the sixtieth month at par.

Total convertible subordinated
debentures

lemma

3 — 650,000

2,820,000 2,820,000

WWW

$WW In January 1989,
converted into 81,250 shares of common stock.

all D series convertible subordinated debentures were

The Company incurred debt issuance costs of $1,046,668 in 1986. This is

being amortized over the terms of the related debt using the effective
interest method.
1988.

F—18

The amortization expense was $127.22h in 1989 and in

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

At December 31, 1989, the Company had reserved l.5h8,349 shares of common
stock for the conversion option of the debenture holders. subject to

certain adjustments under the antidilution provisions of debentures.

(13) Leases

(a)W

The Company is obligated under various capital leases for data
processing equipment and office and technical equipment that expire
at various dates during the next 5 years. At December 31. 1989 and
1988, $2,211,275 and $1,670,626, respectively, of capital leases were
included in property. plant and equipment, net of accumulated
amortization.

The Company also has several noncancelable operating leases,
” primarily for office space, that expire over the next 5 years and

provide for renewal options.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases
and the present value of future minimum capital lease payments as of
December 31, 1989 are:

Capital Operating
leases leases

Year ending December 31:
1990 s 936.123 932.900
1991 898,390 940,200
1992 661,330 635,700
1993 591.759 6h,100
l99h LQ33225 ____:____

Total minimum lease payments 3,191,527 3 agilzgggg

Less amount representing interest (at
various rates between 61 and 1h!) QZQ.211

Present value of net minimum

capital lease payments 2.571.316

Less current installments of obligations
under capital leases §§&,§12

Obligation under capital leases,
excluding current installments $ 1,292,522

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Total rental expense for operating leases in 1989, 1988, and 1987,
including contingent rentals and net of sublease payments received,
was approximately $850,000, $680,000 and $397,000. respectively.

(b)W

The Company is also obligated under cancelable and noncancelable
operating leases for transponders. The future minimum operating
lease payments under these leases us of December 31, 1989 are:

Year ending December 31,
1990 s 3,562,560
1991 3,562,560
1992 3,562,560
1993 2,956,560
1999 and thereafter 5.225.180

Total 51 W

Total rental expense for space segment leases in 1989 and 1988 was
‘approximately $1,A55,000 and $646,000, respectively. There was no
corresponding expense in 1987.

InmmeJaxn

At December 31, 1989, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $5h.700.000 for financial reporting purposes and
$35,800,000 for federal income tax purposes which will expire between
1998 and 2003. The primary differences in the amounts are the
capitalized launch cost expensed for financial reporting purposes
relating to the failed relay in 1986 and all costs expensed for financial
reporting purposes in 1988 relating to the failure of the second and
third back—up RDSS transponders. Under the Tax Reform Act of 1986,
utilization of the net operating losses may be subject to limitations in
the event of significant changes in stock ownership of the Company.

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In December 1987, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
_ Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96, Accounting for Income

3 Taxes, which will require a change from the deferred method to aliability method in accounting for income taxes. In 1989, the FASB
amended Statement No. 96 to delay its mandatory effective date from
January 1, 1990 to January 1, 1992. This action was taken to allow

companies and their auditors more time to study, understand and apply the
Statement's provisions. The FASB has identified a number of specific
implementation issues it plans to incorporate, together with guidance on
the issues, in a future Special Report. The Company expects to implement
Statement No. 96 January 1, 1992. The Company does not anticipate any
adverse impact from implementation of this pronouncement.

(15) WW

Summaries of changes in shares under warrant or options for 1989 and 1988
are as follows: '

 

 
  
 

1232 1255

 

  
  

Shares:

Outstanding January 1, 1,836,074 l.hhl,006
Granted 252,375 734,943
Exercised (20,000) (339,875)
Cancelled __15QL2§Q) -
 
 

 

Outstanding December 31, ZJQZ§;122 liflliinfl

Expiration of warrants/options 1990 — 1997 1989 - 1997

 

  Warrants/options price range
at December 31, :3 3.12 — $ 3.12 —

s 1h.oo 3 13.20  

 
(Continued)

 
   

l Ty-gxg-d-ufiv n:.. '-: mung-.- um: ;- :-:..s-.r;.:,..;



Page 000066

(16)

 
GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In 1989 and 1988. respectively. options to purchase 39,000 and 69,575
shares of common stock were awarded to the Board of Directors or their
affiliates. There was no compensation expense attributable to these
options.

All shares under warrant and option are exercisable at December 31, 1989
and 1988 and are subject to certain adjustments under the antidilution
provisions of the warrants.

StQch_Qatias_and.EmnlnlssL£anafiit_£lana

The Company has a Stock Option Plan (the Plan) for substantially all
employees and officers. The option exercise price must be at least the
fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant and at least
110 percent of the fair market value for any option granted to any
officer or other employee who owns stock of the Company possessing more
than 10 percent of the total combined voting power of all classes ofstock.

Summaries of changes in shares under option for 1989 and 1988 are as
follows:

lfifli lflfifi

Shares:

Outstanding January 1: 611,h25 526,625
Granted 211,450 156,700
Exercised (8,675) (19,200)
Cancelled (llfl;12§) iiZaZQQ)

Outstanding December 31. fijfi‘flli fill;flfi§

Expiration of options 199k to 1999 1994 to 1998

Options price range at December 31. 3 3.125 - 3 3.125 -
3 14.00 3 12.00

Options exercisable at December 31, th.075 h5h,725

Options under the Plan available

for grant at December 31 115‘525 lfifiglifl

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

During 1988, the Company adopted a 401(k) Savings Plan for all employees
of age 21 and older and with 6 months of service. Participants in the
Plan may contribute up to 15 percent of compensation with a maximum

contribution of approximately $7,000. The Company contributes $.50 for
every $1.00 contributed up to the first 5 percent of compensation
contributed by the participant. The Company's expense in 1989 and 1988
was $51,606 and $22,54h, respectively.

(17) Canital.£tnck

As of December 31, 1989, the Company had A,591,373 shares of common stock
reserved for the following purposes:

Warrants and options 2,023,199
Convertible subordinated debentures l,5h8,3h9

Stock option plan 636,075
Contractual commitments __318,ZiQ

Total shares reserved 5,521,323

(18) Stock_£nrchssa_Asxssment

(19)

In May 1985, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with
another company for the sale, in installments corresponding to certain
milestones, of up to 625,000 shares of common stock at $8.00 per share.
The other company has agreed to develop and market railroad applications
for the Geostar System. The other company is entitled to receive 10
percent of the revenues from use of the Geostar System by railroad
users. During 1986 and 1985, Geostar sold 62,500 and 31,250 shares of
common stock, respectively, corresponding to‘ first and second
milestones. In 1986 the other company purchased an additional 62,500
shares of comon stock in anticipation of the third milestone. This

acceleration of the third closing entitled the other company to receive
service credits of approximately $1,000,000. In 1988, the other company
purchased 100,000 shares in anticipation of the fourth milestone which

entitles the other company to receive service credits, the amount of
which will be determined based on future events.

NonnnarathMLlasass

In September 1988, the Company's second and third back-up RDSS
transponders on board another company‘s satellite was launched; however,
due to a malfunction, the satellite failed to reach its proper orbit.

(Continued)
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GEOSTAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Due to the expected reduced life of the satellite, the Company filed a
total loss claim against its $5 million asset value insurance coverage on
the two transponders and in March 1989, received insurance proceeds of $5
million. Since the insurance proceeds were not sufficient to recover the
capitalized costs of the two transponders, such costs in the amount of
$3,108,173 were expensed in 1988.

In October 1989 the satellite reached its proper orbit and is expected to
have a useful life of approximately 4—5 years. As a result of insurance
payment, the insurers are entitled to 50 percent of any revenues (net of
associated costs) generated from the use of the transponders.

In 1986, the Company entered into two launch service agreements for the
launch of shared payload satellites. Upon execution of these agreements,
the Company paid deposits of $1,050,000 which were capitalized as
construction in progress. In December 1988, the Company and the launch
provider agreed to terminate these agreements due to the acceleration of
NASA launches. favorable credit available, and increased confidence in

NASA based on recent launches. Accordingly, the deposits and related
capitalized interest in the amount of $1,304,405 were expensed in 1988.

The company expenaed additional capitalized costs related to the Geostar
System amounting to $737,191 in 1988.

W

In 1987, the Company began to capitalize, as part of construction in
progress and licenses, all directly associated internal labor and related

overhead expenses. Previously, these costs were expensed as incurred.
The Company believes the new method is preferable and will better reflect
the Company's investment in these assets and will appropriately match the
costs of constructing the Geostar System and obtaining the related
licenses with the expected revenues to be generated from the system. The
effect of the change in 1987 was to decrease the net loss by $1,931,562
or 3.27 per share. The effect on 1986 of $1,016,900, or 3.16 per share,
is included in the 1987 net loss as a cumulative effect adjustment. The
pro-forma effect on net loss and net loss per common share had the new
method been applied retroactively, is:

___fi___JQBZfi_____
Actualtrninrma

Net loss 3 iaflflflafiifl flaflfiiaiin

Net loss per common share _ 3 453 ‘fiz

(Continued)
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(21) WW

During 1989. i988. and 1987, cash payments for interest, net of amounts

capitalized, were $3.395,h23, $3,800,000 and $2,152,000, respectively.

During 1989. 1988. and 1987, the Company incurred capital lease
obligations for equipment of $1,385.203, $1,638,000 and $333,000,
respectively. 
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Gooslar Corporation and Subsidtarios
Proporty. Plant and Equipment SCl-EDULEV

Veins Endod December 31. 1089. 1988 and 198?

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  

 
 

 

7,0,..__________.___.——-...__-t___ .__.....—  

  
Batanoa at Wu»: Cltanous-

Baglnntnq 01 Additions Al add (doducl) Balance at End
Parlor] Classilrcation ___fi”_ uflflorroo Cm..‘.__________ll'lll_lmnwnls _ t 1 1 of Period

1987 Construction in Progress
Central Hub $5,396,474 $5,525,987 $10,922,461
SpacaSogrnent 58,401,351 $6,114,727 $14,516,578

Technical Equipment $489,996 $429,016 $919,012
Olfice Equiprnenl $178,080 $06,553 $274,633
Furniture 5 Fixtures $145,715 59,010 $154,725
Aircralt $31,000 (331,000) so
Leasehold Improvements 131,779 $119,576 $151,355
User Terminals Held lor Lazasns < $321,082 $321,082

Totals 1997 ”314574 395 12515951 (£31000) so Q27 259 846

198 B Gooslar System:
Central Hub $12,210,498 $12,210,498
Space Segment $4,683,000 $15,807,978 $20,690,978

Construction in Progress
Central Hub 510322.461 53.492.347 ($12,210,406) $2,204.310
SpaceSegnxant 314.516.5713 320,393,085 (39,912,578) ($15,807,978) $9,189,108

Technical Equipment $919,012 $1,202,360 $13,121,372
Office Equipment $274,633 $30,684 $305,317
Furniture 5 Fixtures $154,725 $35,942 $190,667
Leasehold Improvements $151,355 $11,569 $162,924
User Terminals Haldlor Loasm; $321,082 $1,584,156 ($323,738) $1,581,500

Totals 1988 - $27 259 846 $31 63314-1 [510 236.3161 __ $0 $48 656 674

19 89 Goostar System:
Central Hub 512.210.1498 $8,320,221 $18,530,719
SpaoeSogmont 520.690.9713 $5,665,000 $26,355,978

Construction in Progress.
Central Hub $2,204,310 $4,824,947 ($5,320,221) $709,036
Spoca Sogmont $9,189,105 $1,898,300 $11,087,408

Technical Equipment $2,121,372 $2,166,039 ($62,757) $4,224,654
Office Equipment $305,317 $18,832 ($6,969) $317,150
Furniture 5. Fixtures 5190.667 $26,614 $219,281
Lnasehold lrnprovomonu; 3162.924 1529.702 (531.779) 5160.847
UsarTarrninaLs Haldlor Leases $1,581,500 51.137.581 ($703,339) $2,015,742

Totals 1989 748,656,674 $15,769 1315 5804,8441 $0 563 520.845W

(1) Reflects translar 01 Construction in Progress to Geostar System.  
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Accumulalud Dupmcration and Amortization 01 Property. Plant and Equipment
Geoslar Corporation and Subsidiaries SCHEDULE V1

Yuars Ended Duwmber 31, 1989. 1988 and 1987

 

 

    

 
1997

 

 
 

  

 
 
 
 
  

  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 

1988

1989

Period Classification
 

 
 

Balance at

Baglnnlng 01 Additions at Other Chanqos- Balance at End
Period Cost Retirements add [deduct] 01 Period 

Construction in Progress
Central Hub
$9306 Segment

Tachnical Equipment
Office Equipvnent
Furniture A Fixtures
Aircrall
Leasehold improvements
User Terminals Held tor wages

Totals 1987

Geostar System
Central Hub
Space Segment

Construction in Progress
Contra] Hub
Space Segment

Technical Equipment
Office Equipment
Furniture 5 Fixtures
Laasehold Improvements
User Terminals Hold lor Leases

Totals 1988

Geostar System:
Central Hub
Space Segment

Construction in Progress
Central Hub

Space Segment

Technical Equipment
Office Equ1prnent
Furniture 5 Fixtures
Lsasalrold lrnprovamonts
User Tsnninak Hold lor Leases.

Totals 1909
 

 

so
so

5151.047 3140.435 5300.493
537.137 $63,439 3100.575
513.342 535.760 579.102
317,557 51551 1519.110) 30
$31,093 814.672 545.765

so 517.595 317.595
__ _____r.___.___._.__—-—

_vjzso1ss 5282.454 (519 118) go 5543 522

$552 $552
$079 $679

so
so

5300.453 5219.311 3519.794
5100.576 555.410 5195.994

379.102 542.792 3121.994
545.765 525.519 371.284
$17,596 $128,901 (301.235) 555.252

_____fi“__________.____._______

M 351 235 50 5954449

5552 39.702 $10,254
51379 319.204 519.943

so
$0

5519.794 5653.572 51.172355
$195,994 593.571 5279.565
3121.994 553.332 3175.215

571.29A 333.524 (531.779) 573.029
565.262 5734.924 1599.503) 3701.553

$964,449 $150? 389 [$130 2132 $0 $2 432 056
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Geostar Corporation and Subsidiaries
Short Term Borrowings SCHEDULElX

Years Ended December 31. 1089, 1988 and 1987

Category 01 Weighted Maximum Out- Average Arnomt Weighted Average
Year Ended Aggregate Short Balance at End Average Handing during Outstanding during Interest Rate

December 31: Term Borrowings of Period Interest Rate the Period the Period (1) during the Period (2)

1087 - Bank Loan (3) 51,000,000 9.75% $1,000,000 $833,333 9.45%

Note: Payable (4) 52,113,629 14.50% $2,113,629 $895,262 14.50%

1968 Bank Loan (3) $1,600,000 11.50% $3,500,000 $2,550,000 10.46%

Notes Payable (4) $0 - $2,113,629 $540,992 14.50%

1989 Bank Loan (3) $0 - $3,500,000 51,750,000 12.17%

Notes Payable (4) 59,875,500 11.65% $9,875,500 31,895,917 12.55%

(1) The average balance outstanding during the period was calculated based on the sum 01 the month-end balances throughout the
year divided by 12.

(2) The weighted average interest rate during the period was calculated as the sum ol the weighted average monme interest
rates based on be month-end balance.

(3) Bank loans bear interest iii 1% above the bank's prime rate The bank loan outstanding at December 31,1987 was due
in January 1989 and was extended in 1988 to January 1990. All bank loans outstanding at December 31, 1988 were
repaid in July 1989.

(4) The 14.5% Notes Payable in 1987 and 1988 were lor construction 01 the Geostar System and were due and paid in
three equal installments during 1988. Included in the balance outstanding as 01 December 31, 1989 are $8,875,000 01
notes originally due on March 31, 1990 which were Intended such that $7,875,000 is due upon demand and $1,000,000
is due on June 30, 1990. The remaining balance ol 31,000,000 bears interest at prime plus 2.5% and is payable
interest only through June 30, 1990. 
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Geostar Corporation and Subsidiaries SCHEDLLEX
Supplementary income Statement Information

Years Ended December 31, 1989, 1988 and 1987

 
Charged to Costs and Exanses

Item 1989 1938 1987"“*‘—‘—'-—*"'""-H_--—-—-————.___.

Maintenance and repairs $295,855 ' "

Depreciation and amortization

of intangible assets, praoperating
costs and similar deierrals

Taxes, other than payroll and
income taxes

Royaitios $200,000 $200,000

Advertising $299,673 $311143

‘Less than 1% oi total revenues lrom continuing operations

"Revenues were not ol significant amount
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10

10.
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10.

10.

1
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IQ

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description

Certificate of Incorporation of
the Company (as amended)

By—laws of the Company (as
amended)

lndenture dated February 28,
1986

Assignment Agreement between the
Company and Dr. Gerard K.

O'Neill dated November 26, 1984
(as amended)

Amendment No. 3 to Assignment
Agreement dated October 1, 1988

Employment Agreement between
the Company and Dr. Gerard K.
O'Neill dated November 26, 1984
(as amended)

Settlement Agreement between the
Company and Dr. Gerard K.

O'Neill dated September 19,
1986

Amendment Agreement between the
Company and Dr. Gerard K.

O'Neill dated September 19,
1986

Stock Purchase Agreement between
the Company and Railster dated
May 2, 1985

Incorporated
by Reference to

Exhibit 19.1 to

June 30, 1989 Quar-
terly Report on
Form 10-Q

Exhibit 19.2 to

June 30, 1989

Quarterly Report on
Form 10nQ

Exhibit 10.1 to Reg-
istration Statement
on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

Exhibit 10.1(3) to

Form 10-K for year
ended December 31,
1989

Exhibit 10.2 to Reg-
istration Statement
on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

Exhibit 10.4 to Reg-
istration Statement

on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

Exhibit 10.5 to Reg-
istration Statement
on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

Exhibit 10.6 to Reg-
istration Statement

on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988
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 Exhibit Incorporated Page

Nyflbg; Descgiptiigu by Reference to No.

D 10.6 Lease Agreement between Ie Com- Exhibit 10.7 to Reg-
pany and 22nd & K Street Office istration Statement
Building Limited Partnership on Form 10 effective
dated July 15, 1987 (as June 28, 1988
amended)

10.7 Lease Agreement between the Com- Exhibit 10.8 to Reg-
pany and 22nd 8 K Street Office istration Statement
Building Limited Partnership on Form 10 effective
dated July 15, 1987 (as amended) June 28, 1988

10.8 Lease Agreement between the Com- Exhibit 10.9 to Reg-
pany and 22nd & K Street Office istration Statement
Building Limited Partnership on Form 10 effective
dated April 6, 1988 June 28, 1988

10.9 Sublease Agreement between the Exhibit 10.10 to Reg-
Company and Roberts 8 Holland istration Statement
dated August 29, 1987 on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

10.10 Sublease Agreement between the Exhibit 10.11 to Reg-
Compnny and Standard Oil of Ohio istration Statement
dated March 10] 1988 on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

10.11 Amended and Restated 1983 Stock Exhibit 10.13 to Reg-
OpLion Plan istration Statement

on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

10.12 Description of Officers' Life £55
and Disability Insurance Plan

10.13 Master Task Agreement between Exhibit 10.16 to Reg-
the Company and COHSAT istration Statement

on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

10.1A Agreement among the Company, Exhibit 10.17 to Reg-
Hobile Communications Corpora- istration Statement
tion of America and National on Form 10 effective

Satellite Paging, Inc. dated June 28, 1988
January 29, 1987
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Exhibit
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IO.

10‘

10.

10.

10.

10

10.

10.

15

16

17

18

19

.19(a)

20

21

2369—90—20204

Description

Application Development Agree-

ment between the Company and
Railstar dated May 2, 1985 (as
amended)

Technology License Agreement
between the Company and Railstar
dated May 2, 1985

System License Agreement between
the Company and Railstar dated
May 2, 1985

Transponder and Occupancy Lease
Agreement between the Company
and GTE Spacenet Corporation
dated March 4, 1985 (as
amended)

Transponder and Occupancy Lease
Agreement between the Company
and GTE Spacenet Corporation
dated December 20, 1985 (as
amended)

Revised Transponder and Occu-
pancy Lease for CSTAR 111 with

GTE Spacenet Corp. dated Nov. 3,1989

Transponder and Occupancy Lease
Agreement between the Company
and GTE Spacenet Corporation
dated June 27, 1985 (as
amended)

Amendment No. 1 to Geostar

Satellite Construction Contract

between the Company and General
Electric Company

5—3

 
Incorporated Page

by Reference j;_ No.
 

Exhibit 10.18 to Reg-
istration Statement

on Form 10 effective
June 28, 1988

Exhibit 10.19 to Reg-
istration Statement
on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

Exhibit 10.20 to Reg-
istration Statement
on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

Exhibit 10.21 to Reg-
istration Statement
on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

Exhibit 10.22 to Reg-
istration Statement
on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

Exhibit 10.23 to Reg-
istration Statement
on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

Exhibit 19.2 to

June 30, 198B Quar-
terly Report on Form
10-Q

76
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Exhibit

mm

10.21(a)

10,22

10.22(a)

10.22(b)

10.23

10.24

10.2h(a)

10.25

10.25(a)

Description

Amendment No. 2 to Geostar

Satellite Construction Contract

with General Electric Co. dated

Dec. 4, 1989

Agreement for Licensing. Hanu-

facturing and Joint Marketing
of Link One Units between the

Company and M/A-Com DCC, Inc.
dated October 14, 1985 (as
amended)

Amendment Number Nine to the

Agreement for the Licensing,
Manufacture and Joint Marketing
of Link One Units dated Novem-
ber 15, 1988

Letter Amendment to Link One

Agreement dated August 29, 1989

Core Unit License Agreement be-

tween the Company and a joint
venture of H/A-Com Telecommuni-
cations Inc. and Kenwood Cor-

poration dated July 24, 1987

Contract between the Company
and U.S. Customs Service dated
September 30, 1980

Amendment dated September 1,
1989 to contract with U.S. Cus-
toms Service

Subcontract Agreement between
the Company and Motorola dated

September 18, 1987 (as amended)

Amendment dated May 5, 1988 to
Subcontract Agreement between
the Company and Motorola, Inc.

Incorporated
by Reference to

Exhibit 10.29 to Reg-
istration Statement
on Form 10 effective

June 28, 1988

Exhibit 10.22(a) to
Form 10-K for year
ended December 31,
1989

Exhibit 10.30 to

Registration State—
ment on Form 10 ef-

fective June 28,
1988

Exhibit 10.31 to

Registration State-
ment on Form 10 ef-

fective June 28,
1988

Exhibit 19.2 to

September 30, 1989

Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q

Exhibit 10.32 to

Registration State—
ment on Form 10 ef-

fective June 28,
1988

Exhibit 19.7 to June

30, 1988 Quarterly
Report on Form 10-0

Page
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Exhibit
Number

10.25(b)

10.25(c)

10.26

10.27

10.27(a)

10.28

10.28(a)

10.29

Description

Amendment to Subcontract Agree-
ment between the Company and
Motorola, Inc.

Amendment dated August 25, 1989
to Subcontract Agreement with
Motorola, Inc.

Launch Agreement between the
Company and NASA dated Novem-
ber 12, 1985

Geostar Prime Agreement between
the Company and Sony
Corporation of America dated
December 4, 1985 (as amended)

Secondary Amendatory Agreement
dated July 22, 1988 to Geostar
Prime Agreement between the
Company and Sony Corporation of
America dated December 4, 1985

Link One Agreement between the
Company and Sony Corporation of
America dated December 4, 1985
(as amended)

Third Amendatory Agreement
dated July 22, 1988 to Link One
Agreement between the Company
and Sony Corporation of America
dated December 4, 1985

Assignment Agreement among the

Company, Mobile Communications
Corporation of America, Na-
tional Satellite Paging, Inc.
and COM/NAV Marine, Inc. dated
June 30, 1988

E-S

Incorporated
by Reference to

Exhibit 19.2 to

September 30, 1988
Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q

Exhibit 19-3 to

September 30, 1989
Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q

Exhibit 10.33 to

Registration State-
ment on Form 10 ef-

fective June 28,
1988

Exhibit 10.34 to

Registration State-
ment on Form 10 ef-

fective June 28,
1988

Exhibit 19.4 to

June 30, 1988 Quar-

terly Report on Form
10-Q

Exhibit 10.35 to

Registration State-
ment on Form 10 ef-

fective June 28,
1988

Exhibit 19.3 to

June 30, 1988 Quar-
terly Report on Form
10-Q

Exhibit 19.6 to

June 30, 1988 Quar-

terly Report on Form
10-Q

Page 
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Exhibit
Number

10

10.

10

10.

10.

22

24

25

.30

31

.31(a)

32

33

Description

Exclusive Patent License and

Technology Transfer Agreement
with Locstar dated May 26, 1989

Employment Agreement with
Martin R. Snoey dated July 24,
1989

Amendment dated October 24,

1989 to Employment Agreement
with Martin R. Snoey

Agreement with Kenwood Corp.
for Purchase, Production and
Distribution of 2C Receiver

Units dated September 7, 1989

Bridge Financing Agreements
dated November and December
1989

Subsidiaries

Consent of Independent
Accountants

Powers of Attorney

 

Incorporated
by Reference to

Exhibit 10.19 to

June 30, 1989 Quar-

terly Report on Form
10-Q

Exhibit 10.1 to

September 30, 1989
Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q

Exhibit 19.1 to

September 30, 1989
Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q

Exhibit 10.2 to

September 30, 1989
Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q

Page
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Geostar Corporation

[ndenture dated February 20, 198

Geostur Corporation agrees to fursir

upon request, a copy of the Indenturc datao '
between Geostar Corporation and Bank oi Virng

D

1 .
to the Commission,

:ruary 28. 1986
in Trust Company.
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Geostar Corporation

Description of Officers' Life and
Disability Insurance Plan

 
The Company maintains a disability and life insurance

plan for its executive officers. Each officer covered by the
plan receives life insurance equal to five times his annual

salary and disability insurance equal to his annual salary.
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REVISED TRANSPONDER AND OCCUPANCY LEASE BETWEEN
GTE SPACENET CORPORATION AND GEOSTAR CORPORATION

FOR GEOSTAR’S RECEIVE/ONLY PAYLOAD ON THE
GSTAR III SATELLITE

This Revised Transponder and Occupancy Lease between GTE Spacenet
Corporation and Geostar Corporation For Geostar’s Receive/Only (”R/0')
Payload on the GSTAR III Satellite is entered into as of the'fié—of November,
1989 by and between GTE Spacenet Corporation ("STE"), a Delaware corporation
having its principal place of business at 1700 Old Meadow Road, McLean,
Virginia 22102, and Geostar Corporation ('Geostar'), a Delaware corporation
having its principal place of business at 1001 22nd Street, N.H., Suite 840,
Washington, D.C. 20037.

WHEREAS, Geostar entered into a Transponder and Occupancy Lease
with GTE, dated December 20, 1985, (the 'Lease") whereby GTE would provide
certain services to Geostar, including technical consultation during the
construction and integration of the R/O Payload by GE Astro; and

WHEREAS, on September II, 1987, GTE and Geostar amended the Lease
to provide for the deployment of a second Geostar Receive
Antenna/simultaneous receive path and update the Scope of Work originally
incorporated into that Agreement; and

WHEREAS, on September 8, 1988, the GSTAR III Satellite was
launched but failed to immediately achieve its intended orbit, which failure
caused a dispute between the parties as to the effect of the failure on the
continued enforceability of the Lease; and

WHEREAS, on September 30, 1989, the GSTAR III Satellite arrived
at its assigned orbital position; and

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed that it would be in their mutual
best interests to resolve the dispute regarding the Lease in a manner that
allows Geostar to use the R/O Payload on GSTAR III.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the
mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto
agree as follows:

I. R V AS

(a) For the purpose of this Revised Lease, the following terms have
the meaning ascribed to them:

"Collateral" has the meaning set forth in Section 5(f)(i).

GSIII-llO3/Rvsd Lease -1-
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'Lien' means any mortgage, deed of trust, pledge, security
interest, hypothecation, assignment, assigned deposit,
encumbrance, encroachment, lien (statutory or other), right of
way, easement, purchase right, or preference, priority or other
security agreement (including, without limitation, any
conditional sale or other title retention agreement, any
financing lease having substantially the same economic effect as
any of the foregoing, and any financing statement under the UCC
or under the comparable law of any other Jurisdiction).

"Northern Beam" means the components and systems which comprised
the original single antenna configuration as described in the
GSTAR 111 Transponder and Occupancy Lease between the parties
dated December 20, 1985 as more fully described in Annex A.

"Person" means an individual, partnership, corporation, business
trust, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated association,
joint venture, governmental authority or other entity of whatever
nature.

"Original Lease" means that GSTAR III Transponder and Occupancy
Lease between the parties dated December 20, 1985, as amended by
Amendment No.1 dated September 11, 1987.

”Revised Lease“ means this Revised Transponder and Occupancy
Lease.

”R/O" means the receive only payload comprised of the Northern
Beam and the Southern Beam.

"Shared Revenues" means the gross service revenues (as that term
is defined by Generally Accepted Accounting Practices) from the
sale of Geostar’s System 2.0 and System 3.0 services (as those
systems are described in Geostar’s Private Placement Memorandum

dated May 9, 1988, or as they may in the future be re-designated
or re-named) including:

(A) all value-added and 'extra message' revenues, and
(B) Geostar System 2C revenues, and
(C) Southern Beam Revenues,

but excluding revenues from terminal equipment leases and non-
Geostar system services sold by Geostar (e.g. National Satellite
Paging services).

”Southern Beam Revenues“ means the gross service revenues (as
that term is defined by Generally Accepted Accounting Practices)
from the sale of Geostar’s System 2.0 and System 3.0 services (as
those systems are described in Geostar’s Private Placement

Memorandum dated May 9, 1988, or as they may in the future be re-

._.-v~—., w ---r.--
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designated or re-named) which services use the Southern Bean,
A including

(A) all value-added and "extra message' revenues, and
(B) Geostar System 2C revenues,

‘ generated on such Southern Beam, but excluding revenues from
5. terminal equipment leases and non-Geostar system services sold

by Geostar (e.g. National Satellite Paging services).

"Southern Beam” means those components and systems (as described
in the Original Lease pursuant to Amendment No. 1 and as more
fully described in Annex B of this Revised Lease) added to the
receive only payload to implement a second antenna designed to
be pointed generally toward the Caribbean.

'SPACENET III Lease Agreement“ means that Agreement for a Receive
Only Payload between the parties dated June 27, 1986, as amended
by amendment dated April 30, 1987 and as further amended by
amendment No.1 dated July 2, 1987.

(b) Except as explicitly provided below, this Revised Lease
supercedes in its entirety the Original Lease.

(c) The following obligations of the Original Lease survive the
termination of the Original Lease and are obligations under this
Revised Lease:

E (1) Payment by Geostar of the sum of $360,000 pursuant to
, Article 4.1.1 (a) of the Original Lease for partial payment
i of additional launch services provided by GTE.

 
(ii) Payment by Geostar of the sum of $198,800 pursuant to

, Article 4.1.2 of the Original Lease for costs associated

i with the design, hardware construction, integration, and
‘E testing of the second antenna.

i (iii) Title and risk of damage or loss to the equipment and
3 hardware comprising the Dual Antenna Configuration passed

to Geostar upon launch attempt of the GSTAR III satellite.

(iv) With respect to the equipment comprising the Southern Bean,
GTE agrees to exercise on behalf of Geostar any warranty
which GE Astro provides to GTE (subject to any conditions
or limitations imposed on such warranty by GE Astro).
Nothing in this Section 1(c)(iv) shall relieve Geostar of
its obligations to pay GTE as required by this REVised
Lease. This warranty does not extend to any components of
the Northern Beam configuration or to any failure of
performance not directly attributable to a defect in the

materials or workmanship of the equipment comprising the

GSIII-1103/Rvsd Lease ~3-
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Southern Beam. THIS HARRANTY IS A LIMITED HARRANTY AND IS
IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER HARRAHTIES EXPRESS OR IMPLIED.

%.. INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED To, THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY.
-3 PERFORMANCE 0R UTILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR
: PURPOSE.

Ilil! 2. IEEH
The term of this Revised Lease shall be for five (5) years from the
signing of this Revised Lease or for the operating life of the GSTAR

I III satellite, whichever is longer.

i 3. OEIIgATIQNS QF GTE

(a) Commencing with the operational date of the GSTAR III satellite,
GTE will make available to Geostar satellite services on one Full

Period Full Transponder on GSTAR III (currently located at 93'
? H.L.) for the purposes of linking the R/O to Geostar's central

facilities. Such satellite services shall be provided in
5 accordance with GTE’s Satellite Service Agreement (attached
i hereto as Annex G) and with Section 5(c) herein. (All associated
3 ground facilities will be provided by Geostar.) Geostar
. acknowledges that GTE has disclosed that the GSTAR III satellite
; in a geosynchronous inclined orbit of approximately 1.9' and that

T such inclination will increase at a rate of approximately 0.9'
a per year. As a consequence, Geostar agrees that the use of the
i Transponder may require earth station equipment capable of

tracking the GSTAR III Satellite and that such inclined orbit

shall not, in accordance with the provisions of the Satellite
Service Agreement, constitute a default by GTE.

I!!!E (b) Geostar has represented that the orbital location of the GSTAR
" III Satellite precludes the use of the Northern Beam except as

a back-up system for services currently provided on GTE’s
SPACENET III satellite pursuant to the SPACENET III Lease. In
consideration of this use limitation, GTE’s compensation for the

occupancy of the R/O on the GSTAR III Satellite (as provided in
Section 5(3) below) has been reduced. Geostar agrees that it
will use the Northern Beam of the R/O only for back-up facilities
for its RUSS services provided on SPACENET III or for testing or
demonstration purposes and that the Northern Beam of the R/O
shall not be used for any other purpose without GTE’s express
written permission and an equitable adjustment to GTE’s
compensation under Section 5(3).

A
(‘3

V GTE will make available to Geostar such operational information
as it obtains on the health and status of the R/O on the GSTAR
III satellite. This information will be available for delivery
to Geostar at GTE’s control center, and will consist of monthly
written reports. unless a significant anomaly is detected, which
would be communicated to Geostar promptly by telephone. Geostar

GSIII-IlO3/Rvsd Lease -4-
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will deliver in writing any functional commands applicable to
.. its R/O package to GTE at GTE’s control center in McLean,

3 Virginia, and GTE will transmit those commands to the satellite.
All operating procedures developed by Geostar for its use with
the R/O affecting the performance of the GSTAR III satellite,
directly or indirectly, shall be subject to receipt of written

- ’ approval of GTE, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.
a Geostar and GTE agree that any notice to Geostar or comands to

the satellite pursuant to this Section shall be made by GTE as
part of its normally scheduled satellite operations and without
interfering with other activities in the GTE, HcLean, Virginia,
control center determined to be essential by GTE at its sole
discretion.

(d) GTE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, OR ANY OTHER TYPES OF DAMAGE.

(e) In no event shall GTE’s total liability in connection with the
performance of this Revised Lease exceed an amount equal to the
sums actually paid to GTE by Geostar pursuant to this Revised
Lease.

4. OBLIGATIONS 9F QEQSTAR

(a) Geostar will pay GTE the sums due GTE under this Revised Lease
in accordance with this Revised Lease. ‘

(b) Geostar will not transmit or otherwise act in any manner that
shall interfere with the use of the satellite by GTE or its
customers, or cause physical harm to the satellite. Geostar
shall comply with all FCC and other governmental laws, rules and

fi regulations, as well as this Revised Lease and all GTE Operations
Procedures. Geostar shall be responsible for providing necessary
uplink, downlink and terrestrial transmission facilities and
shall provide to GTE all technical characteristics of Geostar—
provided equipment, communications signals or interfaces used for
transmission through the satellite in connection herewith in
order to maintain the quality of service and minimize outages.

GSIII-IlO3/Rvsd Lease -5-
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5. MP H AT N T R Y

(a) Annual Payments

For the five (5) year period commencing on November 1, 1989, as
compensation for the occupancy of the R/O on the GSTAR 111
Satellite, Geostar shall pay to GTE the annual amounts shown
below:

lea: 21mm

5 555.000

1,070,000
1,605,000
2,140,000
2,670,000

U1&WNI-'
These Annual Payments shall be paid in four equal quarterly
payments commencing on November 1, 1989 and subsequently on the
first day of each third month thereafter. Geostar’s obligation
to make Annual Payments that have not otherwise become due shall
terminate only if this Revised Lease is terminated as a result
of retirement of the GSTAR III satellite in accordance with
Section 9 of Annex C. The foregoing notwithstanding, in the
event of retirement earlier than five (5) years after the
Satellite Operational Date, the total Annual Payments shall be
prorated to reflect the actual life to retirement (e.g., if the
satellite were retired after 3 years, the obligation to make
Annual Payments would cease after three fifths of the above total
Annual Payments were paid).

GTE hereby acknowldeges receipt of payment of the quarterly
payment due November 1, 1989 in the amount of $138,750.

(b) v n ri m

(i) For the five (5) year period commencing on November 1,
1989, Geostar shall pay to GTE an amount equal to 1.0% (one
percent) of the Shared Revenues as defined in Section 1(a)
above. Such payments are to be made on a quarterly basis
and shall be based on the gross revenues received by
Geostar during the previous three (3) month period. These
payments are due on the fifteenth business day following
the end of each calendar quarter. Annually Geostar shall
furnish to GTE an audited statement, certified as accurate

and complete by an officer of Geostar, setting forth the
Gross Revenue earned by Geostar during the fiscal year.

GTE has the right to require an independent audit of the
calculation of gross revenues, at Geostar’s expense. If
a failure of the GSTAR 111 Satellite or the R/O occurs such

GSIII-llO3/Rvsd Lease -6-
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(c)

(11)

rn

(l)

(11)

(iii)

that Geostar cannot provide the services on the North Beam
as contemplated under this Revised Lease, then subject to
payment of all sums due GTE under this Section (5)(b)(i)
up to and including the date of any such failure, Geostar’s
future obligation to make revenue sharing payments under
this Section 5(b)(i) shall cease.

In addition to the sums owed GTE pursuant to Section

5(b)(i), Geostar shall pay GTE over the five (5) year
period commencing on November I, 1989, an amount equal to
ten (10) percent of the Southern Beam Revenues as defined
in Section 1(a) above. Such additional amounts shall be
calculated quarterly for each previous three month period
and are payable on the fifteenth business day following the
end of each calendar quarter. Each fourth quarterly
payment shall be adjusted as necessary to assure that GTE
receives on an annualized basis a minimum payment of
$125,000. If a failure of the GSTAR III Satellite or the
R/O occurs such that Geostar cannot provide the services
on the South Beam as contemplated under this Revised Lease,

then subject to payment of all sums due GTE under this
Section (5)(b)(ii) up to and including the date of any such
failure, Geostar’s future obligation to make revenue
sharing payments under this Section 5(b)(ii) shall cease.

n V

Commencing with the satellite operational date of the GSTAR
III satellite, Geostar shall pay GTE for Full Transponder
Service. The Service Charge for such Full Transponder
Service shall be $110,000 per month for the first 36
months. Thereafter, the Service Charge shall be increased
annually by 5% per year commencing with the 37th month
following the operational date of the satellite.

GTE's obligation to provide transponder service under this
Revised Lease is subject to its rights under the Satellite
Service Agreement attached hereto as Annex C, including the
right to retire the satellite. In the event the GSTAR III
satellite is retired, this Revised Lease shall terminate,

subject to payment of all sums due GTE under this Revised
Lease up to and including the date of any such termination
and provided that such termination shall not affect
Geostar's payment obligations under paragraph (a) above.

In addition to any right Geostar may have under the terms
of the Satellite Service Agreement (attached hereto as

Annex C) to terminate the Transponder Service provided by
GTE pursuant to this Revised Lease, Geostar may terminate
such Transponder Service on five (5) days written notice
to GTE if both the Hothern team and the Southern Beam of

GSIII—llOB/Rvsd Lease -7-
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the R/O fail such that Geostar cannot utilize either beam
to provide service to customers of Geostar. Such
termination shall not relieve Geostar of its obligation to
pay GTE any sums due under this Revised Lease (including
the Satellite Service Agreement) prior to the effective
date of such termination.

(iv) GTE hereby acknowldeges receipt of the sum of $114,400 as
payment of the Service Charges due November I, 1989 and as
partial payment of the Service Charges due Novemeber 30,1989.

(d) Arrearages

Not later than November 20, 1989, Geostar shall pay GTE the sums
owed GTE under the Original Lease as described in Section 1 of
this Revised Lease.

(e) Late Payment Charges

In the event that any sums are not paid in full by Geostar when
due, GTE reserves the right to charge Geostar a late payment
charge calculated on the outstanding balance then due at the
lower of 1.5% per month for each month or part thereof or the
highest rate permitted under the applicable Virginia law, plus
the costs of collection including reasonable attorneys fees.

(f) lla ral' i r

(i) In order to secure the payment and performance of its
obligations, and in order to induce GTE to enter into this

Revised Lease, Geostar hereby conveys,' pledges,
hypothecates, transfers and grants to GTE the following
security interest in the following Collateral: all of
Geostar’s right, title and interest in and to the R/O as
described in Annexes A and B.

 
Geostar agrees to execute all applicable UCC forms to

assist GTE in perfecting a security interest (or interests)
with respect to the Collateral. If GTE requests Geostar
to eXecute a financing statement pursuant hereto and
Geostar refuses, SEOSTAR HEREBY IRREVOCABLY NOMINATES AND
APPOINTS GTE AS ITS ATTORNEY-lN-FACT AND AGENT FOR THE SOLE
PURPOSE OF EXECUTING ON 115 BEHALF SUCH FINANCING

STATEMENTS (AND ANY APPROPRIATE ANENDNENTS THERETO) UNDER
THE PROVISIONS OF THE UNIFORM CONNERCIAL CODE RELATIVE TO
THIS REVISED LEASE AND THE R/O. SUCH APPOIHTHENT IS
COUPLED VITH AN INTEREST THAT IS IRREVOCABLE.

The security interest granted herein shall be senior to all
other security interests in the Collateral.

GSIII-IlOB/Rvsd Lease -8-
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(ii) Except for the security interest granted GTE, there are no
other lien holders which have any security interest in the
Collateral. Geostar shall not create, incur, assume or
suffer to exist any Lien upon the Collateral. Geostar

agrees to defend the Collateral, and the Lien created
hereunder in favor of GTE, against all claims and demands

. of all Persons at any time claiming the same or any
interest therein and pay all costs and expenses (including
attorney’s fees and disbursements) incurred in connection
with such defense.

G-QLDJBJJMLEQ

GTE shall have the right, at its sole discretion, to locate or to
relocate the GSTAR III satellite, or any other of its satellites, in

orbital locations between 69' and 125' as may be authorized by the FCC
that suit its business objectives.

7. Harm t9 GTE §at§llitg§

GTE retains the right, at its sole discretion, to terminate, reduce,
or alter Geostar’s services, if Geostar’s continued use of said

services occurs in breach of this Revised Lease or the applicable
regulations of the FCC or other governmental body having authority over

GTE’s provision of services and in GTE’s reasonable opinion Jeopardizes
the safety of the satellite; or interferes with or endangers GTE’s
operations or the services provided to other GTE customers on the same
satellite. Before taking such action, GTE shall endeavor, whenever
time and circumstances permit, to consult with Geostar, but any such
decision to terminate, reduce, or alter Geostar's services for the

, reasons specified in this Section shall be made at GTE’s sole,

@ reasonably exercised discretion.

8. QEFAQLT

(a) It shall be a Default hereunder if any one or more of the
following shall occur:

(i) Geostar shall fail to pay, when due, any sum payable
hereunder, including any late payment charge, and Geostar

shall fail to cure such Default within thirty (30) calendar
days after the date upon which GTE has sent written notice
of default to Geostar;

(ii) Geostar (A) becomes the subject of a voluntary or
involuntary bankruptcy, insolvency, or similar proceeding,
or makes a general assignment for the benefits of its
creditors or if a receiver is appointed on account of its

insolvency or if Geostar admits in writing that it is
unable to pay its debts when due; or (B) admits in writing
its inability to pay its debts as such debts become due;

GSIII-llO3/Rvsd Lease -9«
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(iii) The issuance of any material attachment or material

garnishment against Geostar, if Geostar is the debtor
unless such attachment or garnishment is dismissed within
thirty (30) days.

(b) If any one or more events of Default shall occur and be
continuing, then, in addition to all the rights and remedies
which GTE may exercise under applicable law, and in each and
every such case, GTE may exercise and/or enforce any one or more
of the following rights and remedies:

(i) Terminate GTE’s obligation to provide Service under this
Revised Lease (including the Satellite Service Agreement
attached as Annex C). In the event of such termination,
Geostar’s right to access the R/O and the Serving
Transponder shall terminate.

(ii) Take possession of any Collateral not already in GTE's
possession and exercise all of the rights and remedies
granted to a secured party under the Uniform Commercial
Code. In taking possession of the Collateral GTE may
proceed without legal process, if done without breach of
the peace. While in possession of the R/O, GTE shall have
the exclusive right to use the R/U. previously used to
provide service to Geostar, for any commercial purpose GTE
may elect. From such use GTE shall be entitled to retain
all revenues. Should GTE elect the forgoing remedy and
such remedy is held to be invalid or, in GTE’s opinion,
proves to be ineffective, GTE shall have the right to elect
any other remedy available to it under this Section 8.

9. Assignment

GTE may, by merger, consolidation or otherwise, assign or transfer this
Revised Lease to a corporate affiliate. Otherwise, this Revised Lease
may not be assigned without the prior written consent of both parties,
which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.

10. a 'i n

Captions herein are for convenience only, and are not to be used in
interpreting this Revised Lease.

11. invoice;

Invoices shall be addressed to Geostar at the address set forth in
Section 12. Geostar shall pay all amounts due to GTE under this
Revised Lease by forwarding payment to the address set forth in Section
12.

GSIlI-llO3/Rvsd Lease -10-
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12.

13.

14.
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basics;

Any and all notices, demands, requests or other communications required
or desired to be given, served or sent in connection with this Revised
Lease shall be in writing and shall be transmitted to the applicable
party by hand delivery or by U.S. certified mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, or transmitted by telegram or telex
addressed as follows:

Geostar: Geostar Corporation
1001 22nd Street, N.H.
Suite 840

Hashington, D.C. 20037

Attn: Chief Operating Officer
Telex:

GTE Spacenet: GTE Spacenet Corporation
1700 Old Meadow Road
McLean, VA 22102

Attn: Vice President, Satellite Services
Telex: 710-833-0309

Each party may designate by notice in writing, effective upon receipt,
a new address to which any notice, demand, request, or communication
may thereafter be so given, served, or sent. Each notice, demand,
request or communication which should be nailed, delivered or
transmitted in the manner described above shall be deemed sufficiently
given, served or sent and received for all purposes at such time as it
is delivered to the addressee (with the return receipt, the delivery
receipt, the affidavit of messenger or, with respect to a telex, the
answerback being deemed conclusive evidence of such delivery) or at
such time as delivery is refused by the addressee upon presentation.

gonfiggntiality

The parties agree that the provisions of this Revised Lease are
confidential and will not be disclosed to third parties without the
prior written consent of the other party, except as required by law.
The parties also agree that certain technical and confidential business
information will be disclosed by one party to the other in connection
with the performance of this Revised Lease, and that such information,
when written and marked confidential, will not be disclosed.

vra

In the event any one or more of the provisions of this Revised Lease
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions of this Revised Lease shall be unimpaired, and the
invalid or unenforceable provision shall be replaced by a provision
which, being valid and enforceable, comes closest to the intention of

‘
, \
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15.

16.

17.
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the parties underlying the invalid or unenforceable provisions.

Mi l

(a) GTE is in no way restricted by this Revised Lease from acting in
its own interests in its dealings with the FCC, or other
governmental authority, in commenting upon or opposing the grant
of licenses, permits, or authorizations of other entities to
construct and operate communications satellites, regardless of
whether Geostar takes transponder service from any such entity
or has placed or may place radio relay facilities providing
services essentially similar to those described in this Revised
Lease aboard said satellite(s).

(b) GTE is in no way restricted by the terms of this Revised Lease
in its rights to deal with or provide any or all of its services
to competitors of Geostar, provided such dealings or services do
not interfere with the Transponder performance committed to the
Geostar hereunder.

(c) A counterpart of this Revised Lease may serve as the original
copy of the Revised Lease for any purpose.

(d) In the event of any conflict between this Revised Lease and the
Original Lease, the provisions of this Revised Lease shall
control.

Relationship 9f the Parties

This Revised Lease is not intended to, and shall not be construed to,

constitute or create a joint venture, pooling arrangement, partnership,
agency or business organization of any kind. GTE and Geostar shall be

independent contractors for all purposes and neither party shall act
as or hold itself out as agent for the other or create or attempt to
create liabilities for the other party. Upon approval of this Revised
Lease by GTE, Geostar acquires only the right to utilize the Service
as herein described. Geostar does not acquire any legal interest in
the Transponder or other components of the Satellite (except those
components constituting the R/O as defined in Annex A and Annex 8) used
to provide the Service.

El] L l [3: Agreement

This Revised Lease, together with Annexes A, B, and C, comprises the
entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter
hereof and supersedes any and all prior and contemporaneous agreements,
understandings, arrangements or representations heretoforelnade between
the parties hereto and relating to this subject matter, including the
Original Lease. It does not, however, revoke or rescind any prior
agreements for transponder service which have been executed by the

GSIII-llO3/Rvsd Lease -12-
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parties. This Revised Lease may be modified. changed or amended only
by an express written agreement signed by duly authorized
representatives of both parties hereto stating that it is an amendment...‘._t-._‘_-.,..d.'u_-.-.___r_.=seem—.3. i

IN WITNESS HHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment

to Transponder and Occupancy Lease to be executed as of the date and year

a first written above.

3; GTE SPACENET CORPORATION . GEOST CORPO TION
‘: By- By'

Title: (gs prestggw‘i “tie:M

Date: v. 3 4? Date: _‘U1LLJ_E_7___

GSIH-llO3/Rvsd Lease -13-
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AMINDHENT '2

IO

CEDSTA] SATELLITI CONTRACT

(Ellie Contrlct dated 10/9/87)
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XEIEQDHEIIQE

This AMENDMENT l2 to the GLOSTAR Contract (originally entered into

10/9/37), made and entered into this 4th day of December 1989, by and

between GENERAL tLtcrnc comm. a New York corooration. actins throush

its ASTRO-SPACZ DIVISION, with its principal offices located in East

Windsor, New Jersey (herein after referred to as “the Contractor") and

CEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, with its principal offices

located in Washington, D.C. (herein after referred to as "GEOSTAR").

VHEREAS GEOSTAR desires to revise its technical requirements to implement

a Dual-Launch Satellite System which more closely matches its near-term

business needs; and

WHEREAS CE ASTRO has offered to construct and deliver two (2) Dual-Launch

GEOSTAR Satellites which would fulfill the GZOSTAR system requirements

for earlier implementation of the complete GXOSTAI system.

WHEREAS both CEOSIAR and GE ASTRO agree that the Single Launch Satellites

currently under contract can be delayed until the GZOSIAR business plan

requires the traffic capacity offered by the Single-Launch system; and

WHEREAS the parties agree that this Amendment '2 shall amend and

supersede their previous contract dated 10/9/87, and modified by

Amendment Number 1 dated 14 July 1988, to provide for the construction

and delivery of two (2) Dual-Launch Satellites to precede the

commencement of post—FDR phase development and construction of the three

(3) Single Launch Satellites as originally contracted.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements

herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, and intendins

to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows:

I.D. 2-03521 /00
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Chintz the Table of Content. to reed:

[mm "27.0 (nu. Article Deleted)“

"37.0 mm Article Deleted)"

121 "27.0 Lute Delivery”

"37.0 Customer Provided Provisions

Lb. 3-0352:
IO/
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Wu_.w:fi‘ . u..:..,e_...,..._n ,7

m Cover aheet of Contract:

Change rirat line:

[REEL AMENDMENT 1

I2; anznnnznr 2

M:

Add under WWW between Exhibit B and

Exhibit c:

"Exhibit 3-1, Technical Specification for the One Beam Spacecraft (Class

I Document)."

ARILELI_11__DEIILIILQE§

Article 1, Definitions:

Add after ”22) GEOSTAR RDSS Network (See Network)" the following:

”22 A) 'GEOSTAR A', 'CEOSTAR B', and 'GEOSIAH 6' mean the three (3)

Single Launch Spacecraft negotiated in the original Contract."

"22 3) 'GEOSTAR DS-l' and 'CEOSIAR DS-Z' means the two (2) Dual

Launch Spacecraft added in this Amendment #2.”

Article 1. Clause 46, chan¢e the third line to read:

1395; "Exhibit A to this contract.“

19; "Exhibit A as modified by Amendment :2 to thia Contract.“

Article 1, Clause so 5(b), change to read:

Inga; ’...txhihit B, the Technical Specification;"

191 '...2xhihit B and Exhibit 3-1, the Technical Specifications;'

1.n. A-OJSIJ /() El.
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Page000103



Page 000104

1mm: 1, Clauae so Ne). chmae to read:

[3953 -,__nxh1b1g a, the Technical Specification..."

IQ; : "...£x.hihit B or Exhibit B-l, the Technical SPQCHicationa, .,
applicable...."

WW

Article 2, Clauae 2.1, change to read:

IRQH; '...of Zahihit B, the Technical Specification. The Contractor

further acknowledges and understanda...of Exhibit B, the Technical

Specification, which shall...durin; the firat thirteen (13) months

AEDC,...".

IQ; "...of Exhibits B and 8-1, the Technical Specifications. The

Contractor...of Exhibits B and 3-1, the Technical

Specificationa,...durin3 the first thirteen (13) month: AIDC for

GBOSTAR A, I and C and thirty-three (33) months AZDC for GEOSTAR

DS-l and DS-Z."

W

Article 3.0, Clause 3.1, chanae to read:

£32m; “...thibit B, the Technical Specification,...“

Q ILL; ”...£xhibit B and B-l, the Technical Specifications.;."

Article 3.0, Clause 3.1 1), change to read:

[893; "...l) Definitization...£xhibit B..."

19; '...l) (a) For a Single Launch Satellite definitization (Jointly

vith CEOSTAR)...th1bita I and B-l..."

I.D. 5-0352J
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Add a new Paragraph 3.1 1)(b) to read:

1)(b) Definitization of a Dual-Launch Satellite Ihell take place
during a System Engineering Design Study, ending in a Sy.tem
Engineering Design ReViev (SID!) which will occur during the
thirtieth (30th) lonth AZDC. Failure of the Fifties to

achieve mutual agreement on the provisions of Exhibit A,
unseen—emu md Exhibit 3-1. Wm
upon completion of the $20! and prior to payment of Progress
Payment 25, shall permit either Party to terminate their

 

Article 3.0, Scope of work, change Clause 3.1 (2) to read:

EKQH; ”..Design, Manufacture, Testing and Delivery of three

(3)...deaignate GEOSTAR A, CEOSTAR I and CZOSIAR C and related
Equipment.”

101 '...Deaign, Manufacture, Testing and Delivery of five (5) ...
designated GBOSTAR A, GZOSTAI B, CEOSTA! C, GEOSTAR DS-l. GEOSTAR
05-2 and related Equipment.“

Change Clause 3.1 5) to read:

“ £2805: "...Launch/Hission Support Services and on—orbit testing for two
‘ spacecraft, crosnx a and czosru a."

19; "...Launch/Mission Support Services and on-orbit testing
(2) Dual-Launch and two (2) Single-Beam Spacecraft.

for two
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Ch‘nle Clauae ‘.3 to read:

EKQn13”...the Launch Vehicle decision...vhichever is earlier.»

IQ; n."!or I 51n‘1._L.unch Spacecraft...vhichever is earlier."

Add the {011ov1n‘ new plrl‘rlphl after Clause 4.3:

"3)(a) For a Dual-Launch Spacecraft I STS/PAH-DZ IIHHCh V111 be
Uled."

Ghana: 4.9 to read:

{395; "9)...or the orbital locations.

A) Flight ll — 30 months AIDC.

5) Flight #2 - 34 months AZDC.

C) Flight #3 - 33 months AIDC.

The Optimization-”withWm

..vithin the {allowing time periods:

IQ; "9)...of the orbital location...vichin thirty-font (34) month;
period to launch of any apacecraft.

The Optimization...V1tb - v u v

I .o. 1-0352:
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£1

-—..-...'.-..r_.'.....,-..-_:.-5L4“;:.n:.:.u‘..'-‘a&;u'...'e.;is.rl§=

“Ag—b.4329Av-.t..__..fi.\__.-_

‘'_' .:;'.'_:'.'__:d-.‘.-

na'a._.e_.-..Lu..._.«MAAnnaml‘L..

W

5-1 Add to the end of this clause the following:

(Applies to the Single-Launch Satellite effort prior to Amendment
:2).

5.2 Add to the end of this clause the following:

(Applies to the Sinsle-Launch Satellite effort prior to Amendment
:2).

5.3 Renumber to Clause 5.3.A and add underlined title as follows:
5.3.A fiinglg—Laungh figtglliges

Chant: price indicated in lines 1 and 2 to One Hundred Fifty—five
Million Dollar: ($155,000,000.).

5.3 Insert new Clause 5.3, precedine Clause 5.3.A to read as follows:

5.3 Progress Payment and Financing repayments for Sinsle-Launch
and Dual-Launch Satellites ahall be as follows:

5.3.3 Add new Clause to read as follows:

5-3-8 Wu”;

f

.. i

a GEOSTAR shall pay to the Contractor the sum of Eighty-six
_ Million, Five Hundred Seventy-five Thousand Dollars

*1 ($86,575,000.) in progress payments for the provision of two

(2) Dual—Launch Satellites in accordance with the applicable

I sections of Article 6.0, Elxment.

5.7 Line 3: Chanse from "Exhibit B" to “Exhibit: B and 5-1".

I.D. l-OJSZJ

/Ob
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Chan‘e the first aentenca of Clauae 5.! to tend a. follcv.;

"The l°tl1 PT1C¢ 0f 1he_ilnals:Launsh.inass&xals.nsxslsn_21 thil

Contract u set torch in Article 1.1.5 and Article 1.1 shall be

ernlnation at the time of Preliminary Design levleu

5.]

aubJect to tedet

I

i

i of the Shale-Launch Spleen-rtWW

.0. W»

Redesignate the termination provisions followin; Section 5.8.3 (on

page 1!) from 1) and 2) to a) and b)-

5.9 Chen;e line 2 of Clause 5.9 to read an follovu:

“...up to (iv: (5) additional 51331;;L12n5h Spacecraft and ...

I.D. 9-03523
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Delete the original wording and replace vith the following: .

Subject to the provisions of Article 5, GEOSIAR shall provide

progress paynents and financing payments in the amount specified in

5.] through 5.3 of Article 5.

Change line 3 of Clause 6.2 to read as follows:

"...pursuant to the Progress Payment Plan 1ng13g£g_11_§££112n_§*§

of this Article 6."
 

7 6.3 Change last word of 6.3 from Lilli t0 candirigns.

 

,I. 6.3.1) Delete in its entirety; replace with ”Not Used".
{13 6.3.2) Delete in its entirety; replace with "not Used”.
[3? 6.3.3) Delete in its entirety; replace with “Not Used".

.Fi 6.3.4) Change first sentence to read as follows: ,
'4) All post-FDR work for Single-Launch Spacecraft:'

"6) The unpaid portions of payments 1H, 2H, 3H, 4H 5H and 6! from

Progress Payment Plan H of this Article 6 shall be reinstated to CE

Astro in eleven equal increments over the payments specified in

sun--.-Note a of Progress Payment Plan 5."

Change first sentence to read as follows:

newwmmmnfl

WWW

' 6 is based on Contractors successful and timely achievement of each

 
milestone set forth in Attachment 3.J

u ?

[pg 6-5 In first sentence change from "Egragtgph 9.2" to "figggjgn glg".
i‘l

’ i

'_g
i I .0. 10.0352:

.11
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Delete snd replsce with the following:

6.6 kW!)

The Progress Psyment Plsn for this Contrsct is divided into two

(2) sepsrste sections ss follows:

1) Progress Payment Plsn H - Single-Lsunch Spscecrsft Program.

2) Progress Psyment Plsn S - Dusl-Lsunch Spscecrslt Ptogtsm

Construction Phase Psyments.

1.0. 11-03525
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"’.'-..'. Wfimeéum.._.‘-.;

44.....4..;...-(‘'

-_‘..-_m-u...Hiram.4543.

znxmen1_numhsx 2110.21.92nttess

1 Due Dete of Contract

2H 3

3H 6

0H 9

5H 13

6" 15

7M Inn

3” TDD +1

9M TDD +2

10” TDD +3

11H TDD +4

12H TDD +5

13H TDD +6

14” TDD +7

15H TDD +0

16M TDD +9

17" TDD +10

18H TDD +11

19” TDD +12

20H TDD +13

21H TDD +14

22H TDD +15

23” TBD +16

24” TDD +17

'UOTZ:

Part1e|.'

Honth Billed
After Effective 8 Anoumt Due

Hflnlh Cumulnxizs

8100.000

250,000 350,000

350,000 700,000

500,000 1,200,000

600,000 1,000,000

600,000 2,400,000

600,000 3,000,000

2,300,000 5,300,000

2,300,000 7,600,000

3,000,000 10,600,000

3,000,000 13,600,000

3,000,000 17,400,000

3,000,000 21,200,000

4,500,000 25,700,000

4,500,000 30,200,000

5,300,000 35,500,000

5,300,000 40,000,000

6,000,000 46,000,000

6,000,000 52,000,000

6,000,000 50,000,000

6,000,000 64,000,000

6,000,000 71,600,000

6,000,000 70,400,000

7,500,000 05,900,000

Due date for Payment 7! shall be nutunlly agreed between the

1.0. 12-03523
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WWW(Continued)

Month tilled After ltfectlve 3 Amount D“.

W Wm 115mm mmm

25m 250 410 7,500,000 93,400,000

26H 230 +19 15,000,000 100,200,000

1 27m 250 420 5,000,000 107,000,000

2514 1'50 421 4,500,000 111,500,000

1'17: 29H 1'50 422 4,000,000 115,500,000
' 3011 no +23 3,000,000 110,500,000

' 311-1 250 +24 3,000,000 121,500,000
1' 3214 nu +25 2,500,000 124,500,000
:1 Jim 2110 +25 12,500,000 126,500,000
.--‘ 34H :50 427 2,500,000 129,000,000

"1 35H m 423 2,000,000 131,000,000
-11 3011 no +29 2,000,000 133,000,000
1, 37M ran +30 2,000,000 135,000,000
1 30H :50 431 1,500,000 130,500,000

39H 250 +32 1,500,000 139,000,000

,_ 40H m 433 1,500,000 139,500,000

@ 4111 250 434 1,500,000 141,000,000
”1" 4211 run 435 1,500,000 142,500,000

1" 4311 120 430 1,500,000 144,000,000

44m 250 437 1,500,000 145,500,000

45m 250 430 1,500,000 147,000,000

,1 40H :00 +39 1,500,000 140,000,000
4m 2513 +40 700,000 149,200,000

" 40:1 250 441 500,000 149,700,000

1.0. 13-03521

 
Page 000112



Page 000113

Hench Billed

After Effective ‘ Anount Due

[1!01n1_lumh11 2111_1Ljfluu11£1 Hsnlh Salmflliils

09H TBD +42 500,000 150,200,000

50H TED +03 500,000 150,700,000

51H :50 +5! 1,500,000 152,200,000

52” TBD +45 500,000 152,100,000

53H TED 4&6 500,000 153,200,000

54H 150 +47 500,000 153,700,000

55H 130 +05 500,000 150,200,000

56H IBD +A9 500,000 15A,?00,000

57H 150 +50 500,000 155,000,000

1.3. 14-03523
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Honth Billed

Aftcr Effective

lsxmsns_numhsx 2112.21.92052255

15

25

as

as

55

as

75

as

95

105

115

125

135

145

155

_ 155

’*.-* 175

125

195

205

215

225

235

255

255

205

275

288

27 (December, 1959)

30

31

32

33

3A

35

36

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

8 Amount Due

1191111) 93711913111:

500,000 500,000

1,500,000 2,000,000

1,500,000 3,500,000

1,500,000 5,000,000

1,500,000 6,500,000

2,750,000 9,250,000

2,825,000 12,075,000

2,975,000 15,050,000

4,000,000 19,050,000

2,975,000 22,025,000

3,375,000 25,400,000

3,575,000 27,975,000

4,675,000 33,650,000

4,775,000 33,425,000

4,575,000 43,000,000

4,575,000 47,575,000

4,275,000 51,550,000

4,075,000 55,925,000

-3,075,000 59,000,000

2,975,000 61,975,000

2,075,000 64,050,000

2,575,000 07,425,000

2,775,000 70,200,000

2,375,000 72,575,000

1,975,000 74,550,000

1,275,000 75,025,000

975,000 75,200,000

775,000 77,575,000

1.0. 15—03521

Page000114
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2R95BI55_2AIHIELJfldflLJL:;DHAL:LAHEQH_§£A££CBAEI (Continued)

MW
295

305

315

325

335

345

355

365

375

385

IQI£§=

Paymént Number: 95 and 225 are paid in full at the time of the

eigning or the Contract Amendment l2. and are the eatinated amounta

1.

Q

flonth Billed

After lifective

55

56

57

58

59

6O

61

62

63

64

8 Amount

honth

975.000

1.075.000

975,000

1,075,000

575,000

1.275.000

075.000

575,000

600,000

1.000.000

Due

Cumulatixr

70,550,000

79,625,000

80,600,000

01,675,000

02,250,000

03,525,000

04,400,000

04,975,000

55,575,000

06.575.000

‘aeaociated with the work performed on the Transmit/Receive Contract
that is applicable and, therefore. credited to the Dedicated Satellite
Contract. Such paymenta ahell be retained by the Contractor in the

event of termination.

Engineering Deaign Review (SEER).

obligated to proceed with contract efforts following SEDR until

Progress Payment 815 ahall he made by GEOSTA! on the date of aigning

of this Contract Amendment '2.

3. Progress Payment 25 ahall be made following completion of the System
The Contractor ahall not he

receipt of Progreee Payment 25 from GEOSTAR.

4. Progress Paymenta #35 through :85, and I105 through 5105 shall he

increaaed by the amount of $150,000. each to reinatate the total

unpaid portion of Progreaa Payment! 13 through 6! of $1,650,000. It

required by Cleuee 6.3.6 of this Article 6.
In the event that thia

Dual Launch Satellite Program ie terminated at any time following

commencement of contract effort, the entire unpaid portion or the

31,650,000 aa deacribed in Clauae 6.3.6 ahall become due and payable
to Cl Aatro.

I.D. 16-03523

. u—u. a-—-a
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WEE—“mm
Add a new Clause 1.1 to read as follows:

7-1 WW
y to the incentive paymentsThe followin; provision shall IPP1

‘ saaoeisted with the Single-Launch Satellites:A - lenumher to he 7.1.A

B — Renunber to be 7.1.!

C - lenumber to he 7.1.6
in line 7 of Paragraph 3 of Clause 7.1.0, change paragraph
reference from "gunman—E" to ”W”.

D - lenumber to he 7.1.0

F - Renumher to he 7.1.3

Insert a new Clause 7.2 to read as follows:
7.2 a — a

The following provisions shall

associated with the Dual-Launch Satellites:

apply to the incentive payments

use 7.2.A as follows:Insert a new Cla

7-2-A W
W

“ If a Spacecraft following Launch Attempt of the Primary Launch‘1; Vehicle fails to achieve Successful Injection and such failure is
GEOSTAR shall pay $3,920,000.

not attributable to the Contractor,
undred eighty

cecraft to the Contractor within one Infor each spa

(180) days of such failure.
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Insert a new Clause 7.2.! as follows:
- 7.2.3 Mammal-11mm

L (1) Based upon Successful Operation of the Spacecraft, additional
incentive payments will be made as follows:
For each three month period that a Dual-Launch Spacecraft is
Successfully Operatin; as defined in Article 1. Definitions,
GEOSTAR will pay the Contractor $250,000. per Spacecraft.
These quarterly payments shall be continuously earned over a
five year period commencing with the start of Successful
Operation.

(2) if at any time it is determined that Successful Operation is
not being achieved or maintained, and that same is attributable
to the Contractor, GEOSTAR shall advise the Contractor of the
specific deficiency and the Contractor shall correct the
deficiency at Contractor cost as quickly and as technically
feasible. If the deficiency is deemed not correctable, and
GEOSIAR elects to use the Spacecraft, Clause 1.3.A of this
Article shall apply.

,1

Insert a new Clause 7.2.6 as follows:
7.2.C [gilgfl 39 lghigvg g: flajnggjn figgggggfyl Qngufigfl 1111211111 I9

WILKES-21

In the event the failure of the Spacecraft to achieve or maintain
Successful Operation prior to, durin; or after the initial
Operatin; Period is not attributable to the Contractor. GEOSIAR
shall pay the Contractor the sum of $3,920,000. for each
Spacecraft, less any payments already made to the Contractor
pursuant to this Article 7, which payment shall be full and final
payment for the Spacecraft and shall be in lieu of incentive
payments due hereunder.

.
‘
.,.

. .
.,

. ,-
5y..1.

'4‘.-(T-..
I!
1":

§1:.j...o.
:5.

a.
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Insert a new Clan-e 7.3 to read ll followe:

7.3 The following provisions shall apply to the incentive payment.

nesocleted with both Dunl-Lnunch Ind Sln‘le-Lnunch s.g.111¢..:
7.0 z'- nenmbe: to be 1.3.1;

7.0 G — lenumber to be 7.3.!

7.0 H - Renumber to be 7.3.6

1.0. 19-03525
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AIIIELI_1919_:_QZIIQE§

Chang; Clause 10.0 to read:

"10.1 The following options apply to the Single-Launch Spacecraft only."

"In the event that...”

Hf' Add after each option caption (new numbering):
10.1 (1) - 10.1 (16) the following:

"Single-Launch Spacecraft only.

Add new Clause 10.2 to follow Clause 10.1.

Add: “10.2 Dual-Launch Spacecraft 0ption(s).

l. Dual—Launch Spacecraft.

10.2.1 ua a a

Q- GEOSTAR may, at its option to be exerciaed in writing at any

i time within thirty-nine (39) months of the atart of contract

I effort on Amendment 2-to this Contract, direct the Contractor

to provide additional Dual-Launch Spacecraft in accordance with

Exhibit 3-1 or this Contract at the prices indicated in the

followin; Option Summary Table:
 

g, Q!!! E EX:IE1!! HQDSD 129 (z) EEQEQSIII! [out (4) fipggggzglg
27 - 33 343,000,000. 335,000,000.

34 - 37 47,000,000. 90,200,000.

38 - 42 50,600,000. 95,100,000.

43 — 48 54,300,000. 100,000,000.

49 - 54 58,500,000. 105,400,000.
55 - 66 ‘ 3

' Pricea for Optional Spacecraft procured after month fifty-four (54)

ahall be based upon the month 49 - $4 option prices with inflationary

impact adjustment based upon the average composite percentage increase or

decrease in Bureau of Labor Statisticl Indices VPl 1178NS and 816 Code

3662 for the came time period.

 
Lo. 20-03525 ”g

..A:.!..'“"I.-_. ’1.|l;.‘ a fibf"-""‘ 'J’ 3. . ,. ' . ‘t- ... . a .'“ “. .. .. _ h ,1}...
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fhe above prices are exclusive of launch aupport coat and performance

incentives. Performance incentives shall be added in accordance with

Article 7. |Option apacecraft ordered under this Clause 10.2.1 sha11.be

delivered in pairs thirty (30) months after authorization to proceed. or

six (6) months after the preeedins delivery, whichever is later.

10.2.2 Add Clause 10.2.2 as follows:

10.2.2 Dual Launch Spacecraft Launch Support Options

For optional spacecraft promised under Clause 10.2.1. GEOSIAR

may procure optional launch aupport services {or STS/PAH-DZ

launches at the prices indicated in the following Table:

W

La2n£h_fl2n1h Qntign_£rlsr_let_haunsh

60 - 66 34,100,000.

67 - 72 4,200,000.

73 - 78 4,400,000.

79 - 34 4,500,000.

Change 10.2 (from Basic Contract) as follows:

£39m; "10.2"

IQ; "10.3"

AEI1ELE_l149_:_IEéIlEEl_1E§£££IIQE_AED_A&§££IA!§E

Change the references in Clauses 13.1 and 13.2 to read:

[EQU1 "13.1 Equipment turnished...with Exhibit B...Product Verification
Plan."

ERQH; “13.2 The Contractor's...by Exhibit E...compliance with Contract

requirements.‘l

:2; "13.1 Equipment furnished...uith Exhibits 3 or B-l...compliance

with Contract requirements.

IQ; “13.2 The Contractor's ...by Exhibit B or B-l...conplianee with

Contract requirements.’I

I s D s 21-0352:

Ina-1nd '

//’?

Page 000120
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Change Clauses ls.6 (d) and 14.7 (b) to reed:

[195; ”d)...ob3ectives of Exhibit 3....“

”bf...spprove changes to Exhibit 3...“

19; “d)...ob3ectives 0! Exhibit B or 3-1....”

"b)...approve chanses to Exhibit B or 3-1...“ 
AEIIQL; 11 - HABEAEI}

Chan3e Clause 17.5 to read:

[395; "17.5...of Exhibit B..."

19; “17.5...ot Exhibits 5 or 5-1..."

WWW!!!“

Add the following after Clause 18.4:

Add: "13.4 For the Dual-Launch Spacecraft option only, the monthly

construction phase payments shall be made as tine-phased progress

payments end shall not be conditioned by milestone accomplishment.
In the event of non-payment on the part of GIOSIAR, GE Astro shall

have the right to stop work. retaining all payments made to date by

GEOSTAR, and, if deemed appropriate by Astro, terminate the
contract effort. In the event of such termination, s11 work in

process and residual inventory shall become the property of GEOSIAR
and neither Party shall hsve further clsim or recourse against the

other Party."

ARIIQLE_25_:_§BAEEI§

Change the followin; under the Article 25 caption:

11531; ‘...endin; thirteen (13) months AZDC,... within Contract
Exhibit 3,...-

I9; '...endin; thirteen (13) months AEDC. (twenty-seven (27) Ionths
ALDO {or a Dual-Launch Spacecraft)...vithin contrsct Exhibit B or

B‘lsso'

1.0. 22-03523
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Change Clause 25.! to read:

[3951 ”...!xhibit I, the let
of Inhibit s..."

19; "...txhib1t s or 3-1, t
modification of Exhibit B or 3-1...“

hnical Specification...with the modification

he Technical Specifications...with the

A3IlELI.Zl_:_LdI£_D£L1!EBX

Add new Article as follows:

ABI1§L£_21l2__LdI£_D£LI!IBI
with respect to the purchase of two (2

following provisions apply for late delivery:
27.1 In the event that late delivery by GE Astro (beyond 30 nonths after

Payment 25) causes GEOSTA! to miss thereceipt of Proareas

scheduled launch date, GEOSTAR shall be entitled to stop payment
for a period at six (6) months. if, at the end 0! the six month
period of non-payment. the satellites have not begun launch site

GEOSIAR may continue to withhold payment from GE Aatro,
launch site processing, at

) Dual-Launch Spacecraft the

processing,

until the satellites have begun their
which time the GE Astro payment schedule shall be resumed.

27.2 For each thirty (30) day period beyond the 30 nonth delivery date
that the Dual Launch Spacecraft remain undelivered, Astro shall pay
a consideration of $200,000.. up to a maximum of $1.2oo.ooo., at
the end of six (6) months. This consideration shall apply only in
the event that the late delivery of GE Astro has caused the
reschedulin; of the contractually scheduled launch date. The
contractually scheduled launch date shall be cospatible with

t earlier than thirty (30) months

Spacecraft.

27.3 The considerations described in Clauses 27.1 and 27.: shall he the
sole remedy for late delivery on the part of G! Aatro.

Page000122



Page 000123

27.a in the event that the launch vehicle ia not availabe to aupport

launch lite activitiea following the timely availability of the

Dual Launch Spacecraft for delivery. GBOSTAR ahall be entitled to

.uspgnd acheduled payaenta (Paynenta 358 through 385) until the

delivery takea place, or for a period of one (1) year. whichever

fir-t occurs. purine the period in which the Dual Launch

Spacecraft remain undelivered due to launch vehicle unavailability,

GEOSTAR ahall make payments of $100,000. per month to CE Astro to

maintain care and custody of the Spacecraft.

~ 0 0V 0V

This Article is applicable only to the purchase of two (2) Dual-Launch

Spacecraft provided as an option in 10.2 (1).

37.1 For Dual—Launch Spacecraft, procurement of launch and launch site

services. Perigee Stage, launch insurance and in-orhit life

inaurance ahall be the responsibility of GEOSTAR.

AEI1QLI_Ji_:_9£IBAIIQEAL;IE!IRQEHEEI

Chan;e paragraph followin; caption to read:

£39m; '...Technical Specification contained in lxhibit 3...”

191 "...Technical Specifications contained in Exhibit: I or 3-1...“

C aa -

Add the following to Clauses 44.]. and Add:

Clause 44.1 followin; ”8)” add:

"81) Exhibit 3-1 Technical Specification"

Clause 44.3 following "(3)" add: .

"SA Technical Specification (Exhibit 3-1)

I .9. 20-0352: /22
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WM

 
Title to en invention conceived exclusively by the employees of one
Petty, es veil es to eny petent epplicetions end petents thereon,

zech Perty shell heve en equel. undivided
shell be in thet Perty.

one—helf interest in sny inventions conceived Jointly by one or
f both Perties under this Asreenent (“Joint

es in petent epplicetions end petents thereon
more employees 0

Inventions”), es well

in e11 countries.

If e Joint Invention is nede. GE shell heve the first right to
t epplicetion thereon, end GEOSIAR shell then

heve the second rieht. The Perty preperins. filins end prosectin;
eech spplicetion shell'beet the expenses thereof. tech Perty

to obtein such petent. end to

r neintenence fees due on en

A Petty thet does not

elect to file s peten

egrees to reesonebly essist the other

pay one-half of say texes, ennuities o

eppiicstion or petent to s Joint Invention.
hell relinquish to the other Petty who

continues such peynents, its shere of the title to such epplicetion
end pstent, but shall retein for itself end its subsidieries e
paid—up, nonexclusive, nonoessisnehle license to neke. heve nede,
use, leese end sell, spperetus end/or uethods thereunder. tech
Perry thet peys its shere of the texes, ennuities or nsintenence

ion or petent shell here the right to erent

nonexclusive licenses thereunder end to retein eny consideretion it
without eny obligetion to eccount to the other Party,

entins of such nonexclusive

meke such peynents s

fees on such epplicet

nsy receive,

end eech Perty hereby consents to the gr

licenues by the other Perty.

I .D s 25-0352, /9-3
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In uzruzss HHIREOP, the Parties have duly executed this
fire: above written.

Agreement the day

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

 BY: ‘fijk'
H. SHOE?

TITLE: PRESIDENT AND CHIEF OPERATING O FICER

  

GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY
ASTRO SPACE DIVISION

3!:

L. I. GREENWOOD

TITLE: DIVISION VICE-PRESIDENT

I.D. 26-03filj

flat
—- o-u —- ... . . ..—.. -. .— .——.,.—-._ — --—.,.. . . .,——__-——_.__._ —_ - .
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AIIAEHUIEZJLI

Hodify the first sentence below the title blocks to reed as follows:

"The following is list of Principal Deliverables and Associated sales

Vlluel WWW"

Item 1: Change Indicated Sales Value from ifi‘ili to :9;ll

Total: Change Total Price from ilfiltili to iljngQQl

AIIAQHHEEI_£2

Modify the first sentence below the title block to read ss follows:

"This List is a summary of all Cost ltens s;1gg11;gfi_!1;h_thg

Change Title to read as follows:

"PIOITGSS Payment P1!“ - £inals:L13n&h_£21ct£11£t“

Change the first sentence below the Title Block by modifying line A as
follows:

£32m; ”GEOSTAB IDSS Space Segment"

I91 'GEOSTAR Hulti-Bean Spacecraft"

EQIE§_IQR_AIIA&HHIEI_31

Change this heading to read as follows:

WWW
Delete Sub-paragraph 3.

AIIAQHHEII_£§

Delete this Attachment in its entirety.

1 .0. 27-03525
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W

Delete thia Attachment in ita entirety.

Update referenced documents to reflect current (as of August, 1989) 5'15
Documentation Standards.

'..r
W

This Attachment pertaina to Dual-Launch Spacecraft only. It provides a

list of the principal deliverables and their aaaociated aalea values:

P.

.i
a.

i:
*5.

*9.4

a»;
V.
'5':

2".
at

‘i
a;i.4?.-

=5»!
3::

'4 .'
'1:

at“
fl.

156

Minn: mam g
1. Preliminary Deaign Review Honth 3-1 8 4,000. ft

Data Package 5’3
2. Critical Deaign Reviav Month 02 12,000. :

Data Package 3%

3. Receipt of Structures Data Month to 3,000. ‘"
Report (Spacecraft)

s 4. Spacecraft Ds-l Honth 53 13,000.
.‘w (Payload Integration SEPET Data)

5. Spacecraft DS-2 Hench 55 13,000.
(Payload Integration SEPE'I' Data)

6. Launch Dual-Launch Month 63 30,000.
Spacecraft DS-l and 05-2

1.0. 28-03523 /26
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Exhibit 10 . 22(1))

ll7
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WM 30 d: o! the umuon _ _ “mm.
'Produchon and tam School?!“ to rofioc‘t tho tier-«MW w. month 
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Exhibit 10 o 33

law

WM, ‘ { __ul .- lllll “‘ _ ‘ ‘ ._.. . ‘
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1185-89-15824

SECURITY AGREEMENT

This SECURITY AGREEMENT dated as of November 20, 1989,

. is by and between GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation,(the "Company") and those parties (the "Secured Parties") listed
on the signature pages hereof who have lent or deferred the pay-
ment of money to the Company and who have executed this Security
Agreement.

W

WHEREAS, the Secured Parties (other than GTE Spacenet

Corporation) are purchasing either (i) promissory notes of the
Company maturing on January 15, 1991 with an interest rate equal
to one percent over the prime rate and a warrant to purchase one
share of the Company's Common Stock at $8.00 per share for every
$40.00 of principal amount of the note purchased (the "Janu-
ary 1991 Note"); (ii) promissory notes of the Company maturing on
December 31, 1990 with an interest rate equal to three percent

over the prime rate (the "December'1990 Note"); or (iii) promis-
sory notes of the Company maturing on March 31, 1990 with an in-
terest rate equal to one percent over the prime rate (the
"March 1990 Note"); and

WHEREAS, GTE Spacenet Corporation has agreed to defer
until March 31, 1990 certain payments due it pursuant to certain
contracts between it and the Company (such deferred payments
shall be included within the term March 1990 Notes as used

herein);

WHEREAS, in order to secure the payment of the above-

referenced notes, the Company has agreed to grant to the Secured
Parties a security interest in those assets owned by the Company
which permit further encumbrances comprising the Company's hub
and earth station necessary to operate System 20 service, related
software and other related items necessary to operate the Com-

pany's hub in order to provide System 20 service (as more fully
described herein); and

WHEREAS, if an event of default occurs pursuant to this

Agreement, it is the Company's desire that those Secured Parties
with operational experience, such as Hughes Network Systems, Inc.,
Kenwood Corporation, Sony Corporation of America, Communications
Satellite Corporation and GTE Spacenet Corporation, be permitted

to operate the Company's hub.

/30
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1185—89-15824

now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and
the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto, each
intending to be legally bound hereby, agree as follows:

1. Min—1.059.331

To secure the prompt and complete performance of all
Obligations (as hereinafter defined) to the Secured Parties, the
Company hereby assigns to the Secured Parties and grants to the_
Secured Parties a lien upon and continuing security interest in
that property of the Company set forth on Exhibit A, attached
hereto and made a part hereof, and all cash and noncash proceeds
of any of the foregoing property, including, without limitation,
proceeds of insurance policies insuring any of the foregoing pro-
perty, and all products thereof and substitutions, additions, or
accessions thereto, now existing or hereafter acquired, and wher-
ever located (referred to herein as the "Collateral").

The security interest granted hereby is to secure the
payment and performance of all liabilities and obligations of the
Company to the Secured Parties of every kind and description,
whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to
become due, pursuant to: (i) the March 1990 Notes; (ii) the De-
cember 1990 Notes; and (iii) the January 1991 Notes. All such
liabilities and obligations are hereinafter jointly referred to
as the "Obligations." 1

2. Representations, Warranties and
Co ena ts o t e

(a) The Company represents and warrants to the Secured
Parties as follows:

(i) the Company is a corporation duly organized
and validly existing under the laws of the State of Delaware and
the place of its chief executive office and the majority of the
Collateral is at 1001 22nd Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20037;

(ii) the Company has never carried on business,
been known as or used any name other'$han Geostar Corporation;

(iii) the Company has good title to the Collateral
and none of the Collateral is subject to any mortgage, lien,
lease, security interest or encumbrance except that one air con"
ditioner is subject to the security interest of its lessor and
that the Company‘s assignment of its rights and obligations pur—
suant to the Uplink Service Agreement with GTE Spacenet Corpora-
tion is subject to the consent of GTE Spacenet which consent
cannot be unreasonably withheld;

.-_'=t“;i-fi-‘ct'y'-.vf,*f-.-,-E—:';gi:z;-,':_.-'.-:-.'--’-_:_-A;
~2- I3/
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1185-89-15824

(iv) the execution and delivery of this Agreement
and any instruments evidencing the Obligations will not violate
or constitute a breach of the Company's Certificate of Incorpora-
tion, by-laws, or any material agreement, law, regulation or re-
striction to which the Company is a party or is subject, except
as disclosed in (iii) above; and

(v) this Agreement and the Notes referred to
herein are within the corporate power of the Company and the
execution thereof has been duly authorized by all necessary

corporate action.

(b) The Company covenants and agrees with the Secured
Parties as follows:

(i) the Company will not change its name, its
principal place of business or its chief executive office or the
location of the Collateral without having given the Secured Par-
ties at least thirty (30) days prior written notice;

(ii) the Company will keep the Collateral insured
against loss and damage by fire, windstorm, water, theft and ma-
licious mischief in an amount not less than current replacement
value. The Company shall maintain the Collateral in good condi-
tion and shall keep the Collateral free and clear of any liens,
encumbrances or security interests except for the security in-‘
terest in the air conditioner of its lessor. The Company shall
not sell, except in the ordinary course of business and unless
substituted therefore, or hypothecate the Collateral, and shall
permit the Secured Parties to inspect the Collateral during rea-
sonable business hours, subject to the party in possession of the
premises where the equipment is located. After an event of de-
fault has occurred hereunder, the Secured Parties may act as the
Company's agent in adjusting or compromising any loss under any
such insurance policy and in collecting and receiving the pro-
ceeds from any such policy. If the Company shall default in its
obligation hereunder to insure the Collateral, then the Secured
Parties shall have the right (but not the obligation) to procure
such insurance and to charge the costs of same to the Company,
which costs shall be added to and become a part of the unpaid
principal amount of the Obligations, shall bear interest at the
rate in effect from time to time pursuant to the obligations,
shall be secured by the Collateral, and shall be repayable to the
Secured Parties on demand; and

  
 

(iii) the Company shall pay all expenses and take
any reasonable actions deemed advisable by the Secured Parties to
preserve the Collateral, upon request of the Secured Parties.

Jfifififififlfifimfififiwmyfixlh“pawumwwvwhw+w-
'~.-‘
 .m.~__r-.

I52

”Jan“
flimflmfifir
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imperial:

An event of default shall be deemed to have occurred

r pursuant to this Security Agreement, and the Secured Parties
“ shall be entitled to take such actions as are elsewhere provided

herein, in the event that (a) an event of default shall occur

pursuant to any of the instruments evidencing the Obligations and
shall not have been waived or cured in accordance with the terms

thereof; (b) the Company fails to observe or perform any other
covenant or agreement on the part of the Company contained in
this Security Agreement for a period of thirty (30) days after
the date on which written notice of such failure requiring the
same to be remedied shall have been given to the Company by the
Secured Parties, either jointly or severally: or (c) the Company
suffers a material loss that is not covered by insurance of any

of its property or assets required for the conduct of its busi-
ness.

4- lieLdiLs.

In case any one or more events of default specified in

paragraph 3 shall have occurred and be continuing (hereinafter
called an "Event of Default"), subject to the provisions of this
Security Agreement, the Secured Parties shall have, in addition
to all other rights and remedies given them by this Security

Agreement and the Obligations, those allowed by law, and the
rights and remedies of a secured party under the U.C.C. as en-

“ acted in any jurisdiction in which the Collateral may be located,
~r and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the hold-

ers of at least 51 percent of the principal amount of the Obliga-
tions then outstanding (hereinafter "a majority in interest of
the Holders") may immediately, without demand of performance and
without other notice (except as set forth below) or demand what-
soever to the Company, all of which are hereby expressly waived,
and without advertisement or publication (unless required by

law), sell at public or private sale for cash, upon credit, or
upon such other terms as the Secured Parties deem advisable in
their sole discretion (including by bidding in the Obligations or

any part thereof), or otherwise realize upon, the whole or, from
time to time, any part of the Collateral, or any interest which
the Company may have therein, and, after deducting from the pro-
ceeds of sale or other disposition of the Collateral all expenses

(including all reasonable expenses for legal services) shall ap-
ply the balance of such proceeds to satisfaction of the Obliga-
tionS, subject to any superior claim or right to those proceeds,
the Company remaining liable for any deficiency. Any remainder
of the proceeds after satisfaction in full of all of the Obliga-
tions and any other claims or rights to such proceeds shall be
paid to the Company. Notice of any sale or other disposition

-4- lgfig 
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shall be given to the Company at least fifteen (15) days before
the time any intended public sale or of the time any intended
private sale or other disposition of the Collateral is to be

4. made. which the Company hereby agrees shell be reasonable notice
a of such sale or other disposition. All notice is hereby waived

with respect to any of the Collateral which threatens to decline
speedily in value or is of a type customarily sold on a recog-
nized market. The Company agrees to assemble, or cause to be
assembled, at its own expense, the Collateral at such place or
places as a majority in interest of the Holders shall designate
by written notice. At any such sale or other disposition, any of
the Secured Parties may, to the extent permissible under appli-
cable law, purchase the whole or any part of the Collateral sold,
free from any right of redemption on the part of the Company,
which right is hereby waived and released. All rights, remedies,
powers and privileges of the Secured Parties hereunder are cum-
ulative and not alternative, and may be exercised concurrently or
seriatim, and are in addition to and not in lieu of any other
rights of the Secured Parties at law, in equity, under statute or
under any other agreement with the Company.

5. ' 'n - u er ssu ce .

The Company has executed and delivered to the Secured
Parties U.C.C. financing statements and such other documents,
instruments, supplemental security agreements and chattel mort-

, gages as a majority in interest of the Holders deem necessary,

a proper or desirable to obtain the benefits of this Security'9: Agreement. The Company authorizes the Secured Parties to effect
any filing or recording of any such financing statement or state-

_ments relating to the Collateral or amendments thereto without
the signature of the Company, and hereby appoints the Secured
Parties as its attorneys-in-fact (without requiring the Secured
Parties to act as such) to execute any such financing or other
statement or statements in the name of the Company, and to per-
form all other acts which a majority in interest of the Holders
deem appropriate to perfect and preserve the Collateral.

6. greener;-

The Company agrees that all costs and expenses (includ-
ing reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses for legal services of
every kind) of, or incidental to, the custody, care, management,
sale or collection of, or realization upon, any of the Collateral
or in any way relating to the enforcement or protection of the,
rights of the Secured Parties, shall become part of the Obliga-
tions and shall be entitled to the benefits of this Security

-5- (3%
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Agreement, and the Secured Parties may at any time apply to the
payment of all such costs and expenses all monies of the Company
or other proceeds arising from the possession or disposition of
all or any portion of the Collateral.

7. WWI—Inm-

Each of the Secured Parties and the Company hereby
agree that any payment on account of the Obligations that results
from the enforcement of the Secured Parties' lien_upon and secur-
ity interest in the Collateral shall be collected and paid rat-
ably, without preference or priority of any kind, according to
the amounts due and payable pursuant to each of the Obligations;
provided, however, that each Secured Party shall be entitled to
such ratable share only if he or it first pays his or its ratable
share of the costs and expenses incurred by any or all Secured
Parties or their agents in collecting such amounts. Each Secured
Party agrees that to the extent it receives payments or proceeds
inconsistent with the terms of this Section 7 that it will-hold
the same in trust for the benefit of the other Secured Parties
entitled to payment pursuant to this Section 7.

3- Hgtises.

All notices, requests, approvals, demands and other
communications given or made in connection with the terms and
provisions of this Security Agreement shall be deemed to have
been given or made when sent by registered mail, postage prepaid.
or by facsimile transmission, if:

(a) To the Company:

Geostar Corporation
1001 22nd Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20037

Attention: President
Facsimile Number: (202) 887-0874

(b) To the Secured Parties:

To each Secured Party at the address and facsimile
number indicated on the signature page hereofi"

or to such other address as any party to this Security Agreement
shall furnish in writing to the others.

-6- K65
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9. Termination.

When there is no longer any amount due and owing to a
particular Secured Party pursuant to any of the Obligations as a
result of the payment thereof, such Secured Party shall execute
and deliver to the Company ninety days following such payment all
documents and instruments as shall be necessary to evidence the
termination of this Security Agreement as to such Secured Party.

10. me d We cu d

The Secured Parties shall have the right at all times
to enforce the provisions of this Security Agreement in strict
accordance with the terms hereof, notwithstanding any conduct or
custom on the part of the Secured Parties in refraining from so
doing at any time or times. The failure of the Secured Parties

at any time or times to enforce their rights under such provi-
sions, strictly in accordance with the same, shall not be con-
strued as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary
to the specific provisions of this Security Agreement or as
having in any way or manner modified or waived the same. All
rights and remedies of the Secured Parties are cumulative and
concurrent, and the exercise of one right or remedy shall not be
deemed a waiver or release of any other right or remedy.

11. Applicable law.

The construction of this Security Agreement and the
rights and remedies of the parties hereto, shall be governed by
the substantive law of the State of Delaware.

12. Binding Effect and Entire Security Agreement.

This Security Agreement shall inure to the benefit of

each of the Secured Parties, their successors and assigns, and

shall be binding on the successors and assigns of the Company.
This Security Agreement may be amended or modified by a writing
signed on behalf of the Company and all of the Secured Parties.

-7- [36
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13. Euarszruiiliix-

The provisions of this Security Agreement are indepen-
dent of and separable from each other. If any provision hereof
shall for any reason he held invalid or unenforceable, such in-
validity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, but this Security
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

14. W-

This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-
ment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly exeu
cuted this Security Agreement as of the day and year first above
written.

ATTEST: GEOSTAR CORPORATION [

:2;2gfiilfllELC31;Li:}£§g§11__fl By:LEa=SE=§§§L£§§;Jfias=s=2===yc-

SECURED PARTIES:

 
 

  

  

33" _ . Joe'l R. Aiper
'1'- e: _ m T, Ca'msA—T S‘ySTefiSEN‘S'O‘J

Communications Satellite Corporation
Addressw

Clarksbur MD 20371

Telephone Number: 301-428-4770
Telecopier Number: 301-428-9443

/37
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13- Whim-

The provisions of this Security Agreement are indepen-
dent of and separable from each other. If any provision hereof
shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, such in—
validity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, but this Security
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

4 14- 993mm-

This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-ment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly oxen
cuted this Security Agreement as of the day and year first above
written.

ATTEST:

 
SECURED PARTIES:

.Name: :0. (—7 (57.45:.
Title: MCI- (Rho/mi“

w - -

”7.: L% VIC}.
Telephone Number:
Telecopier Number:

.8. A35
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13. mm.

a The provisions of this Security Agreement are indepen-
dent of and separable from each other. It any provision hereo£
shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, such in-
validity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or
entorceability or any other provision hereof, but this Security
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

'14. W-

This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-
ment.

IN WITNESS wHEREOF, the parties hereto have,duly exeu
outed this Security Agreement as of the day and year first above
written.

ATTEST- GEOSTAR CORPORATION

m3: .

Title: WIIIIam R. HeaIEtt Ea Rosemary B. Hewlett

Address 1501 Pa

WW4

Telephone Number: 415-857-2626
Telecopier Number: 415-857-4012

  

B?
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13- §£E££Ahlli§¥-

@ The provisions of this Security Agreement are indepen-dent of and separable from each other. If any provision hereof
shall for any reason he held invalid or unenforceable, such in-
validity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, but this Security
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

14- was.

This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-
ment .

IN WITNESS WHEREOE, the parties hereto have duly exeu
cuted this Security Agreement as of the day and year first above
written.

ATTEST: GEOSTAR CORPORATION

$344.one Q 5&5 By: with-E4 Z Lil/$1
SECURED PARTIES:

By: 
Title: 7'" ’1‘":

Address 
 

Telephone Number:
Telecopier Number:

-8; l‘fl’
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13. mm-

The provisions of this Security Agreement are indepen-
dent of and separable from each other. If any provision hereof
shall for any reason he held invalid or unenforceable, such in-
validity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, but this Security
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

14- QRBDEEIEAISio

This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-
ment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOE, the parties hereto have duly exeu
cuted this Security Agreement as of the day and year first above
written.

ATTEST:

SECURED PART I ES:

4%. ICLMW
Name: Kouki Hanada

Title: Managing Director

 

By:

Address 7- S -
Shibu a-ku.7bk 0.150 Ja an 

Telephone Number: 03-486-5572
Telecopier Number: 03-486—5726
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13- Will-£1.

dent of and separable from each other. If any provision hereof
shall for any reason he held invalid or unenforceable, such in-
validity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, but this Security
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

. The provisions of. this Security Agreement are indepen-

14. Coun a .

I This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more
' counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all

of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-
ment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly exe--
outed this Security Agreement as of the day and year first above
written.

ATTEST: GEOSTAR CORPORATION

SECURED PARTIES:

: g r;r—Q\(bb__BY
Name: CHR\STO?HEK 5. Kass

Address 88\ Datum}, *135
Z;; 5.;;;;;;M; To. SEAS]

Telephone Number: '5 0'5 _. 21‘” - (3'188
Telecopier Number: .. .. c‘ ,1 8‘1

-8- W
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13. whim.

The provisions of this Security Agreement are indepen-
dent of and separable from each other. If any provision hereof
shell for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, such in-
validity or unenforceability shall not effect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, but this Security
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

14- QQEBIEIEAI£§.

This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-
ment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly exe"
cuted this Security Agreement as of the day and year first above
written.

ATTEST: GEOSTAR CORPORATION
\

‘I CAI'J (0 - r By:

SECURED PARTIES:

 
 

 
 

for John N. Palmer

Name. John N.
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

For

Address Mobile Telecommunication Technologies Corp.
200 South Lamar St., Security Centre South
Jackson, MS 39201

Telephone Number: 601—944-1300
Telecopier Number:601—944-7l94
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13- 533513121113!-

‘ The provisions of this Security'Agreement are indepen-
dent of and separable from each other. If any provision hereof
shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, such in-
validity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, but this Security
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

14. cu t

This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-
ment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOE, the parties hereto have duly exeu
cuted this Security Agreement as of the day and year first above
written.

ATTEST: GEOSTAR CORPORATION

Qv‘hg‘g‘aéiiém : -- "“7" 

Name: Dav' Packard

Title:Security Pacific Bank
P. O. Box 1591

IAddress

n

Telephone Number:(415) 348-0282
Telecopier Number: 
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13. geyerahility.

The provisions of this Security Agreement are indepen-
dent of and separable from each other. If any provision hereof
shall for any reason he held invalid or unenforceable, such in-
validity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, but this Security
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

14- QQEBEQIEAISEo

This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-
ment.

the parties hereto have duly exeuIN WITNESS WHEREOF,
f the day and year first above

cuted this Security Agreement as 0
written.

ATTEST: GEOSTAR CORPORATION

Amen (Eu.

SECURED PARTIES:

ByL_éfléé!flLiidé;nne£géjfié£2Z:l;;dn 65523;“? cigféi‘fiflfii
Name: wz'l/z'flmé' 53',th
Title:

Address oxéfliflml$251922.LU4522“”.5; m
We”,W07”;

Telephone Number: 20/‘ 597’0}90
Telecopier Number: 90/, ¢¢3-0935
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13- Mamm-

The provisions of this Security Agreement are indepen-
dent of and separable from each other. If any provision hereof
shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, such in-
validity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, but this Security
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

14. Cou e s.

This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-
ment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties hereto have duly exen
cuted this Security Agreement as of t = day and year first above

 
written.

ATTEST:

SECURED PARTIES:
SONY CORP N 0F Ab IC

By:
Name : MARK FRANKEL '

Title: Vice President. I
Mobile Communications Division

Address One Son Drive

Park RidgeI NJ 07656

Telephone Number: (201) 930-7034
Telecopier Number: 
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13. Magnify

The provisions of this Security Agreement are indepen-
dent of and separable from each other. If any provision hereof
shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, such in-

validity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, but this Security

Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

14. Cou e .

This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-
ment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly exeu
cuted this Security Agreement as of t - day and year first above
written.

ATTEST:

Q5339, Q. £53m

SECURED PARTIES:
SONY CORP N OF A} IC

 
By:

Name: MARK FRANKEL

Title: Vice President, .
Mobile Communications DiVision

Address One Son Drive

Park RidgeI NJ 07656

Telephone Number: (201) 930—7034
Telecopier Number:

#6
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13. fieyerehilitx-

The provisions of this Security Agreement are indepen-
dent of and separable from each other. If any provision hereof
shall for any reason he held invalid or unenforceable. such in-
validity or unenforceability shall not effect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, but this Security
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.

'14. W-

This Security Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instru-
ment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOE, the parties hereto have duly exeu
cuted this Security Agreement as of the day and year first ebove
written.

TEST: GEOSTAR CORPORATION

By:

SECURED PARTIES:

By:
Name: Allen B. Rider, III
Title: Senior Vice President

HFS Financial Corporation
Milli—EEL—
__fij_cj1mnn_d_..l£s_23fl9-——

Address

Telephone Number: (804)782-3512
Telecopier Number: (804)782-3440

‘.

”7‘7
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By::;;2UtQ-<:§— GSbNUJ‘J‘
Title: Chant-Mb.» h CED

Address

 

Telephone Number:
Telecopier Number:

By:
Name:
Title:

Address

Telephone Number:
Telecopier Number:

By:
Name:
Title:

Address

Telephone Number:
Telecopier Number:

By:
Name:
Title:

Address

Telephone Number:
Telecopier Number;

 
4

(301) 428-5500
(301) 428-1635

 

Mg
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EXHIBIT A

W

1. Antennas

Two Ku band 5.5 meter diameter antennas
Two beacon antennas

Contractual rights to use two C band (upilnk) antennas at Woodbine

2. RF Frequency Converters

Four Ku band low noise receivers and converters to 70 MHz
Two beacon transmitters

Contractual rights to use two 70 MHz to c band converters and three
0 band transmitters at Woodbine

3. Hubs

Three inbound Hubs Including six acquisition units. twelve demodulators.
seven ranging units. automatic frequency and gain control units and

‘ ancillary power. control. routing and distribution units
Four outbound Hubs (two located at Woodbine) including modulator,

automatic frequency control and redundancy switching units

4. Communications Center

80 Codex modems with racks & power supplies
34 Robotics modems with racks & power supplies
Leased telephone lines and switches

5. Facilities

Three air conditioners

Two uninterruptibie power supplies
Rights to building diesel generator

6. Software

Geostar Proprietary Central Soitware ,
for data reduction. processing. distribution and communications
interlaces

11/15/89
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ELED§§_A§BEEMEEI

THIS PLEDGE AGREEMENT, dated December 11, 1989, by and

among GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (the "Pledgor")
and those parties listed on the signature pages who have lent or
deferred the payment of money to the Pledgor and have executed
this Agreement (collectively, the "Pledgees").

fl 1 I E E E 5 E I H:

flagfigxgund. Each of the Pledgees is providing funds to
the Company in the form of a loan or a deferral of payments to
finance the Company’s operations until it obtains more permanent
financing. As an inducement to the Pledgees to provide the loans
or defer the payments, the Pledgor has agreed to execute this
Agreement and, pursuant hereto, to pledge the Pledged Stock, as
defined in this Agreement, as security for the prompt satisfaction
of the obligations (the "Obligations") of the Pledgor pursuant to
and as defined in the instruments evidencing the loan and the

agreements providing for the deferral of payments (the "Notes").

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and

intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as fol-
lows:

l. "Elegg§§_§tg§3". The term "Pledged Stock" shall
mean the 100 shares of Common Stock of Geostar Europe, Inc., a

Delaware corporation (the "Subsidiary"), owned by the Pledgor,
together with all certificates, options, rights, or other dis-
tributions issued in substitution of or in exchange for any such
shares, and all proceeds of all of the foregoing.

2- WM- (8) As
security for the prompt satisfaction of the Obligations, the Pled-
gor hereby pledges to the Pledgees the Pledged Stock, grants the
Pledgees a lien on and security interest therein and agrees to
deliver to the Agent (as defined below) a certificate represen-

ting the Pledged Stock and a stock power duly executed in blank.

(b) Unless an event of default under the Notes

(an ”Event of Default") shall have occurred and be continuing,
the Pledgor shall be entitled. to receive for its own use cash
dividends on the Pledged Stock paid out of earned surplus. Upon
the occurrence of an Event of Default, Pledgees who are holders
of at least 51 percent of the principal amount of the Notes then
outstanding (herinafter "Pledgees representing a majority in in.
terest of the Notes") may require any such cash dividend; to be

50

Page 000152

. .
.

—.‘;:;...-r .
a. L-

._ '1 '. 33"f! .-
"m."

J.. _.

!_ ,

e'..
'-".4.

$3M

senaefleefls
m1

*Kflflfifi
‘9.W’s“

seemsmasflw
-:'{EH-t11:3;1'13S"?5‘4“:'

a.
.-./...“goal-R-u

‘'.'3"_Zitij'ifih471512.!



Page 000153

 

 
2369-89-15019 ,

delivered to the Agent (as defined below) as additional security
hereunder or applied toward the satisfaction of the Obligations.

(c) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default.
Pledgees representing a majority in interest of the Notes may,
without demand of performance or other demand, advertisement, or
notice of any kind to or upon the Pledgor forthwith realize upon
the Pledged Stock or any part thereof. and may forthwith, or agree
to, sell or otherwise dispose of and deliver the Pledged Stock or
any part thereof or interest therein, in one or more parcels at
public or private sale or sales, at any of the Pledgees' offices
or elsewhere, at such prices and on such terms (including, but
without limitation, a requirement that any purchaser of all or
any part of the.Pledged Stock purchase the shares constituting
the Pledged Stock for investment and without any intention to
make a distribution thereof) as it may deem best, for cash or on
credit, or for future delivery without assumption of any credit
risk, with the right to the Pledgees or any purchaser to purchase
upon any such sale the whole or any part of the Pledged Stock
free of any right or equity of redemption in the Pledgor, which
right or equity is hereby expressly waived and released. After
deducting from the proceeds of sale or other disposition of the
Pledged Stock all expenses (including all reasonable expenses for
legal services), the Pledgees shall apply such proceeds toward
the satisfaction of the Pledgor's Obligations to the extent per-
mitted by law. Any remainder of the proceeds after satisfaction
in full of the Pledgor's Obligations shall be distributed as re-

quired by applicable law.

(d) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default,
Pledgees representing a majority in interest of the Notes may.
until such Event of Default is cured or the satisfaction of the
Obligations, exercise all voting rights with respect to the
Pledged Stock; provided, however, that Pledgees shall have no
duty to exercise any such rights.

3. W- The
Pledgor represents and warrants that:

(a) It has all requisite power and authority to
enter into this Agreement, to pledge the Pledged Stock for the
purposes described in paragraph 2(a) hereof, and to carry out the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and has duly exer-
cised such power;

(b) It is the legal and beneficial owner of all
of the Pledged Stock;

(c) The Pledged Stock constitutes all of the is-
sued and outstanding capital stock of the Subsidiary;

-2- /5/
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(d) All of the shares of the Pledged Stock have
been duly and validly issued, are fully paid and nonassessable.
and are owned by the Pledgor free of any pledge, mortgage.
hypothecetion. lien, charge, encumbrance or security interest in
such shares or the proceeds thereof, except for that granted here-
under: and

(e) The Subsidiary is the legal and beneficial
owner of 70,588 shares of capital stock of Locstar S.A. (the
"Locstar Stock"), free of any pledge, mortgage, hypothecation,
lien, charge, encumbrance or security interest in such shares or
the proceeds thereof.

4. appointmens_gf_figent. Each of the undersigned
Pledgees hereby appoints Signet Trust Company to act as the agent
for all the Pledqees (the "Agent“; to_hold the Pledged Stock on
their behalf and perform such other acts and duties as Pledgeea
representing a majority in interest of the Notes may direct from
time to time; provided however, that no implied covenants or
obligations shall be read into this Agreement against the Agent.
The Agent shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the
rights or perform any of the duties at the request or direction
of Pledgees representing a majority in interest of the Notes
pursuant to this Agreement, unless Pledgees shall have offered
to the Agent reasonable security or indemnity against the costs,
expenses and liabilities which might be incurred by it in com-
pliance with such request or direction.

5. indemnification. The Pledgor agrees to reimburse
the Agent upon its request for all reasonable expenses, disburse-
ments and advances incurred or made by the Agent in accordance
with any provision of this Agreement. except any such expense.
disbursement or advance which may be attributable to its groee
negligence. willful misconduct or bad faith. The Pledgor also
agrees to indemnify the Agent for. and to hold it harmless
against. any loss. liability or expense incurred without gross
negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith on its part, arising
out of or in connection with its role as Agent, including the
cost and expenses of defending itself against any claim or ii-
ability in connection with the exercise or performance of any of
its powers or responsibilities hereunder.

6. W. The Agent my

resign at any time by giving written notice thereof to the Pledgor
and the Pledgees. The Agent may be removed at any time by the
written direction delivered to the Agent and the Pledgor by Pled-
gees representing a majority in interest of the Notes. The

-3- l5?

Page 000154

 



Page 000155

2369-89-15019

Agent's resignation or removal, as the case may he, shall not be
effective until the appointment of a successor Agent. Upon such
resignation or removal. Pledgees representing a majority in in-
terest of the Notes shall immediately appoint a successor Agent
who shall execute a document agreeing to be bound by the terms of
this Agreement. Such successor Agent shall have the same auth-
ority to act on behalf of all the Pledgees as the Agent did.

. 7. Elgdgg;L§_§ogenant. The Pledgor hereby covenants
that, until all of the Obligations have been satisfied in full,
it will not

(a) Without the prior written consent of Pledgees
representing a majority in interest of the Notes, sell, convey,
or otherwise dispose of any of the Pledged Stock or any interest
therein or create, incur, or permit to exist any pledge, mort-
gage, lien, charge, encumbrance or any security interest whatso-
ever in or with respect to any of the Pledged Stock or Locstar
Stock or the proceeds thereof or dividends thereon, other than
that created hereby or referred to herein;

(b) Without the prior written consent of Pledgees
representing a majority in interest of the Notes, approve or con-
sent to the issuance of any additional shares of any class of

capital stock in the Subsidiary; or any securities convertible
voluntarily by the holder thereof or automatically upon the occur-
rence or non-occurrence of any event or condition into, or ex-

changeable for, any such shares; or any warrants, options, rights,
or other commitments entitling any person to purchase or otherwise
acquire any such shares; or

(c) Without the prior written consent of Pledgees
representing a majority in interest of the Notes, sell, transfer,
lease or otherwise dispose or cause to be sold, transferred,
leased or otherwise disposed of, any of the Locstar Stock owned

by the Subsidiary.

8. In:1h££.fl2£i££§. The Pledgor will promptly de-
liver to the Agent all written notices, and will promptly give

the Agent written notice of any other notices, received by it
with respect to Pledged Stock or the Locstar Stock, and the
Pledgees will promptly give like notice to the Pledgor of any
such notices received by it or its nominee.

9. W. The Piedqor

will permit Pledgees and their duly authorized representatives to
make, at reasonable times, such examination, inspection and copying

/53
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of the books and records relating to the Pledged Stock‘as the
Pledgees may require. The Pledgees acknowledge that they have
had the opportunity to review the Memorandum and Articles of Asso-
ciation and Agreement between Shareholders of Locstar S.A.

10. Q2ntinued_Eerformonsofifiuriher.hssurances. The
Pledgor shall at any time, and from time to time, upon the writ-
ten request of Pledgees representing a majority in interest of
the Notes, execute and deliVer such further documents and do such
further acts and things as the Pledgees may reasonably request to
effect the purposes of this Agreement.

11. d' c - e . This Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of each Pledges, their successors and as-
signs, and shall be binding on the successors and assigns of the
Pledgor. This Agreement may be amended or modified in a writing
signed by the Pledgor and Pledgees representing a majority in
interest of the Notes, and each Pledgee shall be bound by any
such amendment or modification.

12. Igrminatign. Upon the satisfaction in full of all
Obligations and the satisfaction of all additional costs and ex-
penses of the Pledgees as provided herein, this Agreement shall
terminate and the Agent shall deliver to the Pledgor, at the Pled-
gor's expense, such of the Pledged Stock as shall not have been
sold or otherwise applied pursuant to this Agreement and shall
execute any and all documents necessary to evidence the termina-
tion of this Agreement.

13. WW. (1:) Beyond
the exercise of reasonable care to assure the safe custody of the
Pledged Stock while held hereunder, the Agent and Pledgees shall
have no duty or liability to preservo rights pertaining thereto
and shall be relieved of all responsibility for the Pledged Stock
upon surrendering it or tendering surrender of it to the Pledgor.

(b) No course of dealing between the Pledgor and
the Pledgees, nor any failure to exercise. nor any delay in exer-
cising, any right, power or privilege of the Pledgees hereunder
or under the Notes shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall
any single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege
hereunder or thereunder preclude any other or further exercise
thereof or the exercise of any other right. power or privilege.

(c) The rights and remedies provided herein and
in the Note and in all other agreements, instruments, and docu-
ments delivered pursuant to or in connection with the Obligations,

#54
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are cumulative and are in addition to and not exclusive of any
rights or remedies provided by law, including, but without limita-
tion, the rights and remedies or a secured party under the Unizorm

@ Commercial Code.
(d) The provisions or this Agreement are sever-

able, and if any clause or provision shall be held invalid or
unenforceable in whole or in part in any jurisdiction, than such
invalidity or unenforceability shall affect only such clause or

provision or part thereof in such jurisdiction and shall not in
any manner affect such clause or provision in any other juris-
diction or any other clause or provision in this Agreement in any
jurisdiction.

14. Notices. Except as otherwise provided in this
.‘ Agreement, any notice or other communication hereunder shall boy

' in writing and shall be deemed delivered upon personal delivery
or upon receipt if mailed by registered or certitied first class
mail, postage prepaid, or sent by facsimile transmission to the
parties at the following addresses:

(a) To the Pledgor:

Geostar Corporation
1001 22nd Street, N.w.
Washington, D.C. 20037

Telephone Number: (202) 887-0870

Q Telecopy Number: (202) 887-0874
Attention: Donald E. Brown

(b) To the Pledgees:

To each Pledges at the address
and facsimile number indicated

on the signature pages hereof.

(c) To the Agent:

Signet Trust Company
7 North Eighth Street
Vault Level

Richmond Virginia 23219
Telephone Number: (804) 771-7111
Telecopy Number: (804) 771-7610

Attention: Betty Speegle
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or to such other addresses or persons as the parties, from time

to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordance
with this section.

15. W. This Agreement shall in-
ure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors
and assigns of the parties hereto.

'16. figpligehl§_Lau. The substantive laws of the Dis-
trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement
and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto.

17. Integration. This Agreement constitutes the en-

tire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub-
ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

_18. qunterggrts. This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an orig-
inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOE, the parties hereto have duly ex-
ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first above
written.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

ATTEST: a

    
By:_ ' ' By:

Assistant Corporate Secretary Preside t Mar in R. Snoey,

[CORPORATE SEAL]

 

 

Name:
Title:

Address:

 

 
 
  

, Telecopier No.:

Telephone No.:.JEU;£flifilflL___ Telephone No.:
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or to such other addresses or persons as the parties, from time
to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordance
with this section.

15. suggessgts_and_nssisns. This Agreement shall in-
ure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors

and assigns of the parties hereto.

16. Applicable_Law. The substantive laws of the Dis-
trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement
and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto.

17. lntggzgtign. This Agreement constitutes the en-
tire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub-
ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

18. gggntezpaxtg. This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an orig-
inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly ex-

ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first above
written.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

w
Assistant Corporate Secretary
 

  Martin R. Snoey,

[CORPORATE SEAL]

 

 
Title: ‘_ ______.._ Title: Vigg [resident
Addressz________._.—_ Address: 1190 old Meadow Road

______,___._..__ Mclgan. ya 22192
Telecopier No.: - __ Telecopier No. :(ZQJ) &&§-LQ_11
Telephone No. :_____._.._ Telephone “0,;(293) 555-1599
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or to such other addresses or persons as the parties, from time
to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordance
with this section.

15. §uggessgr§_and_hssign§. This Agreement shall in-
ure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors

and assigns of the parties hereto.

16. Applicablg_Lag. The substantive laws of the Dis-
trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement
and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto.

l7. Integration. This Agreement constitutes the en-
tire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub-
ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

18. quntgxpartg. This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an orig-
inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly ex-
ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first above
written.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

BTTEST:

M 'QJ’EJWEL
By: By:

Assistant Corporate Secretary Martin R. Snoey, Presid nt

[CORPORATE SEAL]

 
o

‘ ,. . I f ' ' . I (/0-
By: ' I “if?! sy-énfté/ rt: 22/. //.‘%!Zgr/

' Name:
Name: William R: flgflgtz and

 
 

 

 
 

W MEIEZ B. Haulett m ‘ Title:
Address: 150] Eage Mill] Rd William R. Miriam .BshzfiuiglJILflfififli_____ _ LIBEL""""'
Telecopier No.: 515~851—5012 Telecopier “0.: 
Telephone No.:*_Al&flfiit252fi___ Telephone No.:
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or to such other addresses or persons as the parties. from time
to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordance

iii with this section.
15. 5u2911£2£§_3n§_5§119n§. This Agreement shall in-

ure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors

and assigns of the parties hereto.

16. A2211§§21§_La_. The substantive laws of the Dis-
trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement
and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto.

17. integration. This Agreement constitutes the en-
tire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub-
ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

18. gggntgrparts. This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an orig-
inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly ex-

ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first above

a written.

ATTEST:

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

5 . . ‘ 0/ , ‘By: LI@.0 EWML'4
Assistant Corporate Secretary Martin R. Snoey, Presid t

[CORPORATE SEAL]

Name:

Title:

Address:

Telecopier No.:_=£LL%,ZZ;jflZ1£ Telecopier No.:
Telephone No. :M Telephone No. :
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or to such other addresses or persons as the parties, from time
to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordance
with this section.

15. Suggessggg_§nd_fissign§. This Agreement shall in-
ure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors

and assigns of the parties hereto.

16. A22115§Ql§_L§g. The substantive laws of the Dis-
trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement

and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto.

17. integration. This Agreement constitutes the en-

tire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub—
ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

18. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an orig-
inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly ex-
ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first above
written.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

 

 

 

ATTEST:

Assistant Corporate Secretary Mar in R. Snoey, Presiden

[CORPORATE SEAL]

By:_________________ By. 304521-— Gag/'WJJ‘
Name:______.__.__.____ Name: In}, A Show
Title:_______________~ TitleWEI-Ia Off?
Addreas:__l____._._._~.. Addressuzww 

Telecopier No.: Telecopier No.63)“ £25-1g5
Telephone No. :_,___,_.__._.__ Telephone No.:(m12 $3.55;

/&(7
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or to such other addresses or persons as the parties, from time

to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordance

,¢,u with this section.

15. fig;§gg§g;§_3n§_flg§1gn§. This Agreement shall in-
ure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors

and assigns of the parties hereto.

16. Applicabl§_hag. The substantive laws of the Dis-
trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement

and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto.

17. mm. This Agreement constitutes the en-

tire sgreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub~
ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

18. gggntgrparts. This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an orig-
inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly ex-

ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first above

n written.

ATTEST:

By: ;RA<§U.CJR CW . By:
Assistant Corporate Secretary Martin R. Snoey, Presid nt

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

 

[CORPORATE SEAL]

  

KENWOOD CORPORATION

By: #. _LM=——_ BY:
 
 
 
 

 

Nammflzm Name:

Title: Managing Director Title:
Address:JZ;2‘§muuug_zjzgm2;___ Address:

- 150 Ja an —

Telecopier No.:.22:flfltfil££____ Telecopier No.:
Telephone No. :M‘ififlfl Telephone No.:

_7_ m
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or to such other addresses or persons as the parties, firom time
to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordancewith this section.

15. Successors and assigns. This Agreement shall in-
ure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors
and assigns of the parties hereto.

16. Apnligahle_Lau. The substantive laws of the Dis-
trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement
and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto.

17. Integrati g. This Agreement constitutes the en-
tire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub-
ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants.
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

18. gguntgggazts. This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an orig-
inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly ex-
ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first above
written.

Assistant Corporate Secretary

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

 
[CORPORATE SEAL]

By:
Name:

Title:
Address:

‘ . L

Telecopier o.:;ifii_33__fitlflji 7 Telecopier No.:
Telephone No.:_j2§_;é§;;§t1fl? Telephone No.:____________

Ml
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or to such other addresses or persons as the parties, from time

to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordance
with this section.

15. W. This Agreement shall in-

ure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors

and assigns of the parties hereto. ,

16. Applicable_Lgu. The substantive laws of the Dis-
trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement
and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto.

17. Integration. This Agreement constitutes the en-
tire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub-
ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

18. Counterpart . This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an orig-
inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly ex-
ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first above
written.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

  

  

 
 

 

 
 

ATTEST:

BYg;2gfiiLfllLBLSElélJilkétififil_. BY: .
Assistant Corporate Secretary Ma tin R. Snoey, Presid t

[CORPORATE SEAL]

c'”'_“

BY: By:
e: J. Robert u at Name:

Tnlmflifiiinausialflfim— Title:__________
Address:_AXL§LJ4muleuguxiuijntre SAddress:

.11flnmni_ui_12291_.___.

Telecopier No.: 601 44-714 Telecopier No.:
Telephone No.:_flfifll§£fl;fl¥flg___ Telephone No.:
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or to such other addresses or persons as the parties, from time
to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordance
with this section.

15. was. This Agreement shall in-
ure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors
and assigns of the parties hereto.

16. Applicablg_Lau. The substantive laws of the Dis-

trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement
and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto.

17. integration. This Agreement constitutes the en-

tire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub-
ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

18. gguntexpgrts. This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an orig-
inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly ex-
ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first above

5 written.

ATTEST:

WW BY:
Assistant Corporate Secretary

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

 
[CORPORATE SEAL]

Name:

Title:g(o Security Paciiic Bank Title:
Address:_El_Ql_E2£_l§22_‘____ Address:

an Mateo A 94401

Telecopier N°-=Ali_lil:§121__ Telecopier No.:
Telephone No.: 1 4 - 2 2 Telephone No.:

/6%/
-7-
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or to such other addresses or persons as the parties, from time
to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordance
with this section.

s 15. Eusssssora_snd_sssisns. This Agreement shall in-
ure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors
and assigns of the parties hereto.

16. Applicable_Lag. The substantive laws of the Dis-

trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement
and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto.

17. Integration. This Agreement constitutes the en-
tire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub-
ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

18. ggunterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an orig-
inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly ex-
ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first above
written.

5 GEOSTAR CORPORATION

  
 

. - By:

Assistant Corporate Secretary Ms tin R. Snoey, Preside

[CORPORATE SEAL]

By AJ 5 By:
Name: (Ln~n(“ ‘ Name:
Title: ____ Title:
Address: ‘ Address:
 

 

Telecopier No.: Telecopier No.:
 

Telephone No.:_ Telephone No.:

 
Page000167



Page 000168

  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

2369-89-15019

or to such other addresses or persons as the parties, from time
to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordance
with this section.

0

15. W. This Agreement shall in-
ure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors
and assigns of the parties hereto.

15- AERliEADl§_L§!. The substantive laws of the Dis-
trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement
and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto.

17. lategnatign. This Agreement constitutes the en-
tire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub-

ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

18. gggnterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an orig-

inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly ex-

ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first above
written.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

ATTEST:

 
Assistant Corporate Secretary .Martin R. Snoey, Presi ent

[CORPORATE SEAL]

SONY CORPORA 0F AME CA

By: By:

  

 
 
 
 
 

Name: MARE EEAEEEL "_. Name:

TRIMWHR Title:

Address:fijr_____gfimmu&nuufifin87£ivisionAddress:One Sony r ve, Par R1 fie.

Telecopier No. : 291-230;QHEL__ Telecopier No.:
 

Telephone No.:# Telephone No.:
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or to such other addresses or persons as the parties. from time
to time, may furnish one another by notice given in accordancewith this section.

b 15. . This Agreement shell in-
ure to the benefit of and shell be binding upon the successors
end assigns of the parties hereto.

16. Apnlicnhlg_ngu. The substantive laws of the Dis-
trict of Columbia shall govern the construction of this Agreement
and the rights and remedies of the perties hereto.

17. Integzenign. This Agreement constitutes the en-
tire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the sub-
ject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein.

18. gguntgrnerts. This Agreement may be executed in
two or more counterparts, each of which shell be deemed an orig-
inal, but all of which taken together shall constitute one end
the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOE, the parties hereto have duly ex-
ecuted this Agreement as of the date and year first abovewritten.

” GEOSTAR CORPORATION
ATTEST:

  By: U Q - By:
Assistant Corporate Secretary  Martin R. Snoey, Presi ent

[CORPORATE SEAL]

 
'-————-—-—.-______________

By: By=__________________________
Name: Neme:___._________
Titiammp. Title:
Address =JDLEnLflaln_$_LLesi_ Address:

Telecopier No.:
Zflfl:§ill__ Telephone No.:

 

 Telecopier No.:
Telephone No.:
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__ By: By:

a Name:_________._____.___. Name:
 
 

  
  

  

  

  
 

  
 
 

  
  

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

Title:_________.__......._ Title:
Address: Address:

Telecopier No. :.._____.___ Telecopier No.:
Telephone No. :_—_... Telephone No.:

by: By:
Name:__—__— Name:
Title: Title:

Address:__________ Address:

Telecopier No.:_____________. Telecopier No.:
Telephone No. :_________ Telephone No. :

‘ Name: ‘ Name:
! Address:____________ Address:

I Telecopier No. :___.,____.__ Telecopier No.:
a Telephone No.:_ Telephone No.:

____________________________.____

Name: Name:
Addre ss :__ Address :

. Telecopier No. :______ Telecopier No.:
Telephone No. :— Telephone No. :

The undersigned agrees to act as Agent under this

Agreement and to be bound by the terms hereot.

Agent:

Signet Trust Company
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AGREEMENT TO DEFER PAYMENTS

This Agreement between GTE Spacenet Corporation (”GTE“). a
Delaware corporation having its principal place of business at'lloo Old
Meadow Road. McLean. Virginia 22102. and Geostar Corporation ('Geostar“). a

HHEREAS, GTE and Geostar entered into numerous agreements which
require periodic payments by Geostar to GTE; and

WHEREAS, Geostar has requested that GTE defer certain of these
payments; and

HHEREAS, GTE has agreed to such deferral pursuant to the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

nov, THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregoing and of the
mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto
agree as follows:

1. C RTA N F N T N

"Bridge Loan" means that loans or loans extended to Geostar by any one
or more of the following: (i) any member or members of Geostar's Board
of Directors or their affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation or its
affiliates; (iii) Kenwood Corporation or its affiliates; or (iv) Hughes
Network Systems. Inc. or its affiliates: or (v) any other person or
entity making funds available to Geostar on terms substantially similar
to those of the previously identified lenders.

"Security Agreement" means that certain agreement between Geostar, and
some or all of the participants in the Bridge Loan which agreement
grants the signatories to the agreement a lien and continuing security
interest in specified property of Geostar (the ”Collateral“) as
security to the performance by Geostar of its obligations under this
Agreement and the Bridge Loan.

2. EAIMENlfi TQ BE QEEEBREQ

(a) GTE agrees to defer certain payments identified in Schedule A
hereto (the 'Deferred Payments“) payable to GTE: (1) relating to
or payable during the period from November 1, 1989 through March
31, 1990 to GTE pursuant to (A) the Revised Transponder and
Occupancy Lease between GTE and Geostar for Beostar‘s Receive
Only Payload on the GSTAR III Satellite dated November 3. 1989;
(B) the Transponder and Occupancy Lease between GTE and Geostar
for Geostar's Receive Only Payload on the SPACEHET III Satellite
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dated June 2?. 1986, as amended or revised: it) Transponder Sale
Agreement No. 467 between GTE and Geostar for Transponder 18 on
the SPACENET ill Satellite dated Hoveeber 23, l988. as amended
or revised: (0) Uplink Services Agreement No. 383 between GTE and
Geostar dated November 23. 1938; (E) Transponder Service
Agreement No. 466 between GTE and Geostar for transponder
services on the SPACEHET 11 Satellite dated November 23. 1988;
(ii) relating to amounts characterized as 'Fixed Payments" due
and payable by Geostar in Hay 1989. and February 1990 pursuant
to the Transponder and Occupancy Lease between GTE and Geostar
for Geostar‘s Receive Only Payload on the GSTAR [1 Satellite
dated Harch 4, 1985, as amended or revised: and (iii) relating
to an amount characterized as "Launch Services“ under the
Transponder and Occupancy Lease between GTE and Geostar for
Beostar’s Receive Only Payload on the SPACENET III Satellite
dated June 27, 1986, as amended or revised due and payable by
Geostar on September 30. 1988 (collectively the 'Contracts').

(b) Each Deferred Payment shall accrue interest from the date it
would otherwise be due and payable at a fluctuating annual
interest rate equal to one (1) percent over the rate announced
from time to time by Citibank. N.A. at its principal office as
its prime rate. such interest rate to be adjusted as of the date
of the announcement of any change in such prime rate. interest
shall be calculated on the basis of a 360 day year. All Deferred
Payments, together with all unpaid interest. shall be due and
payable on March 31. 1990.

(c) Collateral: Security Interest

(ll

(H)

In order to secure the payment of the Deferred Payments.
and in order to induce GTE to enter into this Agreement.
Geostar conveys a security interest in certain property of
Geostar. all as specified in the Security Agreement. Such
security interest shall be in addition to any security
interest in, or other right to. property of Geostar
conveyed to GTE under any other agreement between GTE andGeostar.

Nothing in this Agrlnment or the Security Agreement shall
be construed as creating any right in any third party,
including a participant in the Bridge Loan, to utilize the
facilities of GTE. including. but not limited to: (A) GTE’s
satellites and the transponders on such satellites; (B)
Transponder 18 on GTE's SPACEHET III Transponder; and (Cl
any ROSS Receive Only payload integrated into a GTE
satellite. Further, nothing in this Agreement shall be
construed as the consent of GTE to an assignment of any
rights of Geostar under any other agreement betvuen GTE and
Beostar. including, but not linited to. agreements under
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which Geostar acquired any right to use the facilities
identified in (A) through (0) of this subparagraph (ii).

(d) Any amounts described in Schedule A that would not have become
due or payable pursuant to the terms of the Contract under which
the obligation to pay GTE was originally created shall not become
Deferred Payments within the terms of this Agreement.

(2) Geostar represents and warrants that as of the date of this
Agreement it has not. and upon execution of this Agreement. it
will not. enter into any agreement that includes an obligation
(whether conditioned or unconditioned) on the part of Geostar to
take any action or defer from taking any action which if complied
with would: (i) create a conflict with. or cause a breach or
default of, this Agreement: or (ii) prevent Geostar from
complying with this Agreement; or (iii) ive rise to a third
party claim against Geostar or GTE which c aim asserts that all

or any part of this Agreement is void or voidable or otherwise
unenforceable.

3. AYH T

(a) This Agreement is expressly conditioned on payment by Geostar of
all sums identified in Schedule B as payments to be made during
calendar year 1989. Failure of Geostar to pay any such sum due
GTE -

(i) if past due as of November 1. 1989, on the earlier of (i)
within five business days of the disbursement of proceeds
from the Bridge Loan; or (ii) December 31. 1989, or

(ii) when due.

shall constitute a default of this Agreement and entitle GTE to
the remedies provided in Section 4 below.

(b) GTE acknowledges receipt of Geostar's check dated November 20.
1989 in the amount of 3558.800. Notwithstanding any previous
instructions to the contrary. Geostar agrees that $198,800 of
such sum represents payment of the sum identified in Schedule B
as 'Other - Southbean antenna' and the remaining $360,000 of such
sum represents partial payment of the sum identified in Schedule
B as 'GSTAR [I fixed payment due 8/31/89'.
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The occurrence of any one or more of the follovin shall const1tevent of default ('Event of Default') hereunder:g - “t. ‘n

(a) Failure to pay, when due. the principal. any interest. or
any other sum payable hereunder. and continuance of such failure
for five (5) business days after the date on which such
principal, installment of interest or other sum is due (whether
upon maturity hereof, upon any installment payment date, upon any
prepayment date, upon acceleration. or otherwise);

(b) The failure of Geostar generally to pay its debts as such
debts become due, the admission by Beostar in writing of its
inability to pay its debts as such debts become due. or the
making by Geostar of any general assignment for the benefit of
creditors:

(c) The commencement by Geostar of any case, proceeding, or
other action seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjustment,
liquidation, dissolution, or composition of it or its debts under
any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, or reorganization.
or relief of debtors, or seeking appointment of a receiver,
trustee, custodian, or other similar official for it or for all
or any substantial part of its property;

(d) The commencement of any case, proceeding, or other action
against Geostar seeking to have any order for relief entered
against Geostar as debtor, or seeking reorganization,
arrangement, adjustment. liquidation, dissolution, or composition
of Geostar or its debts under any law relating to bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, or relief of debtors, or seeking
appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, or other similar
official for Geostar or for all or any substantial part of the
property of Geostar, and (i) Geostar shall, by any act or
omission, indicate its consent to, approval of, or acquiescence
in such case, proceeding, or action, or (ii) such case,
proceeding, or action results in the entry of an order for relief
which is not fully stayed within seven (I) business days after
the entry thereof, or (iii) such case, proceeding, or action
remains undismissed for a period of fifteen (15) days or more;

(e) the occurrence of any Event of Default of any promissory
note relating to the Bridge Loan.

Upon the occurrence of any such Event of Default hereunder, the entire
principal amount hereof, and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon,
shall be accelerated, and shall be immediately due and payable, at the
option of GTE, upon written notice, and in addition thereto, and not
in substitution therefore, GTE shall be entitled to exercise any one
or more of the rights and remedies provided by applicable law, and
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5. GQVERNING LAH; gumsmgngu

The Agreement, including these Terms and Conditions, shall be construed
and enforced in accordance with, and the validity and performance

hereof shall be governed by. the laws of the State of Virginia.

5‘ EuflfllflllsflLjflLfiiflifllié

All remedies available to either party for breach of this Agreement are
cumulative and may be exercised concurrently or separately, and the
exercise of any one remedy shall not be deemed an election of such
remedy to the exclusion of other remedies.

7. Ehlyfifl

No term or provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach
excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed

by the party claimed to have waived or consented.

8. RELATIQNSHIP 9F THE PART1§§

This Agreement is not intended to. and shall not be construed to,
constitute or create a Joint venture. pooling arrangement, partnership,
agency or business organization of any kind. GTE and Geostar shall be
independent contractors for all purposes and neither party shall act
as or hold itself out as agent for the other or create or attempt to
create liabilities for the other party.

9. ENTIRE gofiggngwi

This Agreement, together with Schedules A and B. constitutes the entire
agreement between the parties in relation to this subject matter.
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as amending or terminating
any right or duty which exists between the parties pursuant to any
existing agreement between the parties.

10. IEBHIHAIIQH

This Agreement shall terminate Upon payment in full of all Deferred
Payments and accrued interest thereon.

oerenmnonememmzo -5- / 73

Geostar shall be deemed to be in default of each of the Contracts. and
GTE shall have the right to exercise any and all of its rights and
remedies provided in such Contracts. Failure to exercise said options
or to pursue such other remedies shall not constitute a waiver of such
options or such remedies or the right to exercise any of the same in
the event of any subsequent Event of Default hereunder.
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II. M

IN FITNESS HHEREDF. the parties have caused this Agreement to be
executed and do each hereby warrant and represent that their respective
signatory whose signature appea
indicated immediateiy below
appropriate corporate

GTE SPACENET C PD TION

action to execute this Agreement.
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GEOS CORPO TION

rs beiou has been and is on the date
duly authorized by ail necessary

I
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PROMISSORY NOTE

$2,000,000 . November 21, 1989
Washington, D.C.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation ("Maker"), promises to pay to the order of Sony Cor-
poration of America at the offices_of Maker, 1001 22nd Street,
N.w., Washington, D.C. 20037, or at such other place as the holder
hereof may direct, the principal sum of Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000), together with interest from the date hereof on the
unpaid principal amount at a fluctuating annual rate equal to one
percent (1%) over the rate announced from time to time by Citibank
N.A. at its principal office as its prime rate, such interest
rate to be adjusted as of the date of announcement of any change
in such prime rate. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of
a 360 day year and the number of days actually elapsed. The prin-
cipal amount of this Note, together with all unpaid interest ac-
crued hereon, shall be due and payable_on March 31, 1990. The
due date for the payment of the principal amount hereof or inter-
est hereon may be extended by the mutual written consent of the
Maker and the holder. Maker may, without payment of penalty or
premium, prepay the principal of this Note in whole or, from time
to time, in part. Any payments made on this Note shall be first
applied to interest accrued hereon and then to the principal
amount hereof. -

This Note is secured by a lien on, and a security in-
terest in certain assets of Maker as more fully described and in
accordance with the terms of that certain security agreement dated
November 20, 1989.

If any of the following conditions or events shall oc-
cur and be continuing (hereinafter referred to as an "Event of

Default"):

7(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal when
such amount is due and payable, or shall fail to pay other amounts
required to be paid pursuant to this Note when such amounts become
due and payable and the failure to pay such other amounts con-
tinues for a period of 15 days after the due date; or

(b) Maker shall become unable to pay its debts as
they mature or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its or
any of its creditors; or

(c) proceedings in bankruptcy, or for reorganiza-
tion of Maker, or for the readjustment of any of its debts, under
the Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or any part thereof, or under
any other laws, whether state or federal, for the relief of debt-
ors, now or hereafter existing, shall be commenced against Maker
and shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of their com-

mencement, or shall be commenced by Maker; or
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(d) a proceeding shall be instituted in which a
receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Maker or for any sub-
stantial part of its assets, or for the dissolution‘or the full
or partial liquidation of Maker. and such receiver or trustee
shall not be discharged within thirty {30) days of his appoint-
ment, or such proceedings shall not be discharged within thirty
(30) days of their commencement. or shall be commenced by Maker,
or Maker shall discontinue business or materially change the na-
ture of its business;

(e) the occurrence of any event of default under
any promissory note (with a maturity date of March 31, 1990, De-
cember 31, 1990 or January 15, 1991) or other agreement relating
to loans extended to the Company by, or under any arrangement or
other agreement for the deferral until March 31, 1990 of payments
owed by the Company to, any one or more of the following: (i) any
member or members of the Company's Board of Directors or their
affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation of America, Hughes Network Sys-
tems, Inc., Kenwood Corporation, GTE Spacenet Corporation or their
respective affiliates; or (iii) any other person or entity making
funds available to the Company on terms substantially similar to
the lenders identified in (i) or (11);

(f) the occurrence of an event having a material
adverse effect on the financial position of Maker as of the date
hereof, which has not been cured within 15 days of Maker's re-
ceipt of notice thereof.

then, and in any such event, the holder hereof may at any time
thereafter at its option, by written notice to Maker at its of-

fices, declare this Note to be due and payable, whereupon the
same shall mature and become due and payable (unless all defaults
shall have been remedied), together with interest accrued hereon.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on this Note
shall accrue at the maximum rate allowed by law from the date of
such occurrence.

Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other
person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note
hereby waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dis-
honor, protest and notice of protest. In the event that any past
due amounts on this Note are collected by or through an attorney
for the holder, Maker and every endorser of this Note and every
other person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this
Note shall reimburse holder for any reasonable attorney fees,
court costs or other collection costs incurred by holder to col-
lect such past due amounts.
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All rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed
by the laws of Delaware.

GEOSTAR CORPORAT I ON

% ATTEST: [Corporate Seal]
M— “By:
Assistant Corporate Secretary Donald E. Brown

Senior Vice President
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PROMISSORY NOTE

$500, 000 November 17, 1989
Washington, D.C.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation ("Maker"), promises to pay to the order of wrs
Financial Corp. at the offices of Maker, 1001 22nd Street, N.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20037, or at such other place as the holder
hereof may direct, the principal sum of Five Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($500,000), together with interest from the date hereof
on the unpaid principal amount at a fluctuating annual rate equal
to one percent (1%) over the rate announced from time to time by
Citibank N.A. at its principal office as its prime rate, such
interest rate to be adjusted as of the date of announcement of

any change in such prime rate. Interest shall be calculated on
the basis of a 360 day year and the number of days actually

elapsed. The principal amount of this Note, together with all
unpaid interest accrued hereon, shall be due and payable on
March 31, 1990. The due date for the payment of the principal
amount hereof or interest hereon may be extended by the mutual
written consent of the Maker and the holder. Maker may, without
payment of penalty or premium, prepay the principal of this Note
in whole or, from time to time, in part. Any payments made on

this Note shall be first applied to interest accrued hereon and

then to the principal amount hereof.

This Note is secured by a lien on, and a security in-
terest in certain assets of Maker as more fully described and in
accordance with the terms of that certain security agreement dated
November 20, 1989.

If any of the following conditions or events shall oc-
cur and be continuing (hereinafter referred to as an "Event of
Default"):

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal when
such amount is due and payable, or shall fail to pay other amounts
required to be paid pursuant to this Note when such amounts become
due and payable and the failure to pay such other amounts con-
tinues for a period of 15 days after the due date; or

(b) Maker shall be unable to pay its debts as

they mature or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its or
any of its creditors; or

(c) proceedings in bankruptcy, or for reorganiza-
tion of Maker, or for the readjustment of any of its debts, under

the Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or any part thereof, or under

any other laws, whether state or federal, for the relief of debt-
ors, now or hereafter existing, shall be commenced against Maker
and shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of their com-
mencement, or shall be commenced by Maker; or
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(d) a proceeding shall be instituted in which a
receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Maker or.for any sub-
stantial part of its assets, or for the dissolution or the full
or partial liquidation of Maker, and such receiver or trustee
shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of his appoint-
ment, or such proceedings shall not be discharged within thirty
(30) days of their commencement, or shall be commenced by Maker,
or Maker shall discontinue business or materially change the na-
ture of its business;

(e) the occurrence of any event of default under
any promissory note (with a maturity date of March 31, 1990, De-
cember 31, 1990 or January 15. 1991) or other agreement relating
to loans extended to the Company by, or under any arrangement or
other agreement for the deferral until March 31, 1990 of payments
owed by the Company to, any one or more of the following: (i) any
member or members of the Company's Board of Directors or their
affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation of America, Hughes Network Sys-
tems, Inc., Kenwood Corporation, GTE Spacenet Corporation or their
respective affiliates; or (iii) any other person or entity making
funds available to the Company on terms substantially similar to
the lenders identified in (i) or (ii);

(f) the occurrence of an event having a material
adverse effect on the financial position of Maker as of the date
hereof, which has not been cured within 15 days of Maker's re-
ceipt of notice thereof.

then, and in any such event, the holder hereof may at any time
thereafter at its option, by written notice to Maker at its of-
fices, declare this Note to be due and payable, whereupon the
same shall mature and become due and payable (unless all defaults
shall have been remedied), together with interest accrued hereon.
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on this Note
shall accrue at the maximum rate allowed by law from the date of
such occurrence.

Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other
person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note
hereby waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dis-
honor, protest and notice of protest. In the event that any past
due amounts on this Note are collected by or through an attorney

for the holder, Maker and every endorser of this Note and every
other person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this
Note shall reimburse holder for any reasonable attorney fees,
court costs or other collection costs incurred by holder to col-

lect such past due amounts.
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All rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed
by the laws of Delaware.

GEOSTAR ‘CORPORATION

@ ATTEST: [Corporate Seal]

l:;;gflé&éfil(E-{Jt5$§§2§5 By: L I ~ I
Assistant Corporate Secretary Martin R. noey

President
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PROMISSORY NOTE

$1. 000,000 November 17, 1999
Washington, D.C.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware

corporation ("Maker"), promises to pay to the order of William
E. Simon at the offices of Maker, 1001 22nd Street, N.“.,
Washington, D.C. 20037, or at such other place as the holder
hereof may direct, the principal sum of One Million Dollars
($1,000,000). together with interest from the date hereof on the
unpaid principal amount at a fluctuating annual rate equal to one
percent (1%) over the rate announced from time to time by Citibank
N.a. at its principal office as its prime rate, such interest
rate to be adjusted as of the date of announcement of any change
in such prime rate. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of
a 360 day year and the number of days actually elapsed. The prin-
cipal amount of this Note, together with all unpaid interest ac-
crued hereon, shall be due and payable on March 31, 1990. The
due date for the payment of the principal amount hereof or inter-
est hereon may be extended by the mutual written consent of the
Maker and the holder. Maker may, without payment of penalty 0:
premium, prepay the principal of this Note in whole or, from time
to time, in part. Any payments made on this Note shall be first
applied to interest accrued hereon and then to the principal
amount hereof.

This Note is secured by a lien on, and a security in-
terest in certain assets of Maker as more fully described and in
accordance with the terms of that certain security agreement dated
November 20, 1989.

If any of the following conditions or events shall oc-
cur and be continuing (hereinafter referred to as an "Event of
Default"):

_ (a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal when
such amount is due and payable, or shall fail to pay other amounts
required to be paid pursuant to this Note when such amounts become
due and payable and the failure to pay such other amounts con-
tinues for a period of 15 days after the due date; or

(b) Maker shall be unable to pay its debts as
they mature or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its or
any of its creditors; or

(c) proceedings in bankruptcy, or for reorganiza-
tion of Maker, or for the readjustment of any of its debts, under
the Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or any part thereof, or under
any other laws, whether state or federal, for the relief of debt-
ors, now or hereafter existing, shall be commenced against Maker
and shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of their com-
mencement, or shall be commenced by Maker; or

/$3
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(d) a proceeding shall be instituted in which a
receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Maker or‘for any sub-
stantial part of its assets, or for the dissolution or the full
or partial liquidation of Maker, and such receiver or trustee ‘
shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of his appoint-
ment, or such proceedings shall not be discharged within thirty
(30) days of their commencement, or shall be commenced by Maker,
or Maker shall discontinue business or materially change the na-
ture of its business;

(e) the occurrence of any event of default under
any promissory note (with a maturity date of March 31, 1990, De-
cember 31, 1990 or January 15, 1991) or other agreement relating
to loans extended to the Company by, or under any arrangement or
other agreement for the deferral until March 31, 1990 of payments
owed by the Company to, any one or more of the following: (i) any
member or members of the Company's Board of Directors or their
affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation of America, Hughes Network Sys-
tems, Inc., Kenwood Corporation, GTE Spacenet Corporation or their
respective affiliates; or (iii) any other person or entity making
funds available to the Company on terms substantially similar to
the lenders identified in (i) or (ii);

(f) the occurrence of an event having a material
adverse effect on the financial position of Maker as of the date
hereof, which has not been cured within 15 days of Maker's re-
ceipt of notice thereof.

then, and in any such event, the holder hereof may at any time
thereafter at its option, by written notice to Maker at its of—
fices, declare this Note to be due and payable, whereupon the
same shall mature and become due and payable (unless all defaults
shall have been remedied), together with interest accrued hereon.
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on this Note
shall accrue at the maximum rate allowed by law from the date of
such occurrence.

Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other
person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note
hereby waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dis-
honor, protest and notice of protest. In the event that any past
due amounts on this Note are collected by or through an attorney
for the holder, Maker and every endorser of this Note and every
other person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this
Note shall reimburse holder for any reasonable attorney fees,
court costs or other collection costs incurred by holder to col-
lect such past due amounts.
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All rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed
by the laws of Delaware.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

ATTEST: [Corporate Seal]

3 Mk \‘ : By: fiflflfin‘ 4Q gag;
Assistant Corporate Secretary Martin R. Snoey

President
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PROMISSOR! NOTE

$500,000 November 17, 1989
Washington, D,C.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware

corporation ("Maker"), promises to pay to the order of David
Packard at the offices of Maker, 1001 22nd Street, N.w., Washing-
ton, D.c. 20037, or at such other place as the holder hereof may
direct, the principal sum of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars
($500,000), together with interest from the date hereof on the
unpaid principal amount at a fluctuating annual rate equal to one
percent.(12) over the rate announced from time to time by Citibank
N.A. at its principal office as its prime rate, such interest
rate to be adjusted as of the date of announcement of any change

in such prime rate. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of
a 360 day year and the number of days actually elapsed and shall
be paid semiannually commencing on May 1, 1990. The principal
amount of this Note, together with all unpaid interest accrued
hereon, shall be due and payable on January 15, 1991. The due
date for the payment of the principal amount hereof or interest
hereon may be extended by the mutual written consent of the Maker
and the holder. Maker may, without payment of penalty or premium,
prepay the principal of this Note in whole or, from time to time,
in part. Any payments made on this Note shall be first applied
to interest accrued hereon and then to the principal amount
hereof.

Prior to the payment in full of this Note, the holder
ma", at its option, apply the outstanding principal amount of
this Note and any accrued interest hereon to the purchase of
Common Stock or any other equity securities offered by the Maker
in any private or public offering of its securities (other than
the sale of the Maker's Common Stock pursuant to warrants, options
or other rights to acquire equity securities outstanding on the

date hereof) during the period in which this Note is outstanding,
subject to and on the same terms and conditions as in such offer-
ing. The Maker shall promptly notify the holder in writing at
the holder's address of record set forth in the investment letter

dated November 1989 of any such offering following its commence-
ment. Maker shall also give holder at least 5 business days
notice of any closing pursuant to any such offering. In order to
exercise this right, the holder must surrender the Note at the
offices of Maker accompanied by written notice of holder's elec-
tion to so apply the principal amount and accrued interest on the
Note or any portion thereof.

This Note is secured by a lien on, and a security in-
terest in, certain assets of Maker as more fully described and
in accordance with the terms of that certain security agreement
dated November 20, 1989.

36 
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If any of the following conditions or events shall
occur and be continuing (hereinafter referred to as an "Event of
Default"):

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal when
such amount is due and payable, or shall fail to pay other

amounts required to be paid pursuant to this Note when such
amounts become due and payable and the failure to pay such other
amounts continues for a period of 15 days after the due date; or

(b) Maker shall be unable to pay its debts as
they mature or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its or
any of its creditors; or

(c) proceedings in bankruptcy, or for reorganiza-
tion of Maker, or for the readjustment of any of its debts, under
the Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or any part thereof, or under
any other laws, whether state or federal, for the relief of debt-
ors, now or hereafter existing, shall be commenced against Maker
and shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of their com-
mencement, or shall be commenced by Maker; or

(d) a proceeding shall be instituted in which a
receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Maker or for any sub-
stantial part of its assets, or for the dissolution or the full
or partial liquidation of Maker, and such receiver or trustee
shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of his appoint-
ment, or such proceedings shall not be discharged within thirty
(30) days of their commencement, or shall be commenced by Maker,
or Maker shall discontinue business or materially change the
nature of its business;

(e) the occurrence of any event of default under
any promissory note (with a maturity date of March 31, 1990, De-
cember 31, 1990 or January 15, 1991) or other agreement relating
to loans extended to the Company by, or under any arrangement or
other agreement for the deferral until March 31, 1990 of payments
owed by the Company to, any one or more of the following: (i) any
member or members of the Company's Board of Directors or their
affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation of America, Hughes Network Sys-
tems, Inc., Kenwood Corporation, GTE Spacenet Corporation or their
respective affiliates; or (iii) any other person or entity making :
funds available to the Company on terms substantially similar to i
the lenders identified in (i) or (11);

(f) the occurrence of an event having a material
adverse affect on the financial position of Maker as of the date
hereof, which has not been cured within 15 days of Maker's receipt
of notice thereof.

then, and in any such event, the holder hereof may at any time
thereafter at its option, by written notice to Maker at its of—
fices, declare this Note to be due and payable, whereupon the
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same shall mature and become due and payable (unless all defaults
shall have been remedied), together with interest accrued hereon.
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on this Note
shall accrue at the maximum rate allowed by law from the date of
such occurrence.

Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other
person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note hereby
waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dishonor, pro-
test and notice of protest. In the event that any past due
amounts on this Note are collected by or through an attorney for
the holder, Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other

person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note shall
reimburse holder for any reasonable attorney fees, court costs or
other collection costs incurred by holder to collect such past
due amounts. .

Maker shall contemporaneously herewith issue to the
holder named in the first paragraph of this Note a warrant, in
the form of Exhibit A hereto, to purchase one (1) share of
Maker's Common Stock for each Forty Dollars ($40) principal
amount of this Note.

All rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed
by the laws of Delaware.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

ATTEST: [Corporate Seal]

Hgg§§§ucig (9h Ui)%f§§§§ I By:
Assistant Corporate Secretary

  
Martin R. Snoey
President
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PROMISSORY NOTE

$1, 000, 000 November 17, 1989
Washington, D.C.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware

corporation ("Maker"), promises to pay to the order of Mobile
Telecommunication Technologies Corporation at the offices of
Maker, 1001 22nd Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20037, or at such
other place as the holder hereof may direct, the principal sum of
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), together with interest from the
date hereof on the unpaid principal amount at a fluctuating annual
rate equal to one percent (1%) over the rate announced from time
to time by Citibank N.A. at its principal office as its prime
rate, such interest rate to be adjusted as of the date of announce-
ment of any change in such prime rate. Interest shall be calcu-
lated on the basis of a 360 day year and the number of days
actually elapsed. The principal amount of this Note, together
with all unpaid interest accrued hereon, shall be due and payable
on March 31, 1990. The due date for the payment of the principal
amount hereof or interest hereon may be extended by the mutual
written consent of the Maker and the holder. Maker may, withoat

payment of penalty or premium, prepay the principal of this Note
in whole or, from time to time, in part. Any payments made on

this Note shall be first applied to interest accrued hereon and
then to the principal amount hereof.

This Note is secured by a lien on, and a security in-
terest in certain assets of Maker as more fully described and in
accordance with the terms of that certain security agreement dated
November 20, 1989.

If any of the following conditions or events shall oc-
cur and be continuing (hereinafter referred to as an "Event of
Default"):

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal when
such amount is due and payable, or shall fail to pay other amounts
required to be paid pursuant to this Note when such amounts become
due and payable and the failure to pay such other amounts con-
tinues for a period of 15 days after the due date; or

(b) Maker shall be unable to pay its debts as
they mature or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its or
any of its creditors; or

(c) proceedings in bankruptcy, or for reorganiza-
tion of Maker, or for the readjustment of any of its debts, under

the Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or any part thereof, or under
any other laws, whether state or federal, for the relief of debt-
ors, now or hereafter existing, shall be commenced against Maker
and shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of their com-

mencement, or shall be commenced by Maker; or
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(d) a proceeding shall be instituted in which a
receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Maker or_for any sub-
stantial part of its assets, or for the dissolution or the full
or partial liquidation of Maker, and such receiver or trustee
shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of his appoint-
ment, or such proceedings shall not be discharged within thirty
(30) days of their commencement, or shall be commenced by Maker,
or Maker shall discontinue business or materially change the na-
ture of its business;

(e) the occurrence of any event of default under
any promissory note (with a maturity date of March 31, 1990, De-
cember 31, 1990 or January 15, 1991) or other agreement relating
to loans extended to the Company by, or under any arrangement or
other agreement for the deferral until March 31, 1990 of payments
owed by the Company to, any one or more of the following: (i) any
member or members of the Company's Board of Directors or their
affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation of America, Hughes Network Sys-
tems, Inc., Kenwood Corporation, GTE Spacenet Corporation or their
respective affiliates; or (iii) any other person or entity making
funds available to the Company on terms substantially similar to
the lenders identified in (i) or (ii);

(f) the occurrence of an event having a material
adverse effect on the financial position of Maker as of the date
hereof, which has not been cured within 15 days of Maker's re-
ceipt of notice thereof.

then, and in any such event, the holder hereof may at any time
thereafter at its option, by written notice to Maker at its of-
fices, declare this Note to be due and payable, whereupon the
same shall mature and become due and payable (unless all defaults
shall have been remedied), together with interest accrued hereon.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on this Note
shall accrue at the maximum rate allowed by law from the date of
such occurrence.

Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other
person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note
hereby waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dis-
honor, protest and notice of protest. In the event that any past
due amounts on this Note are collected by or through an attorney
for the holder, Maker and every endorser of this Note and every

other person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this
Note shall reimburse holder for any reasonable attorney fees,
court costs or other collection costs incurred by holder to col-

lect such past due amounts.
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All rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed

by the laws of Delaware.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

ATTEST: [Corporate Seal]

MBaum
Martin R. SnoeyAssistant Corporate Secretary
President 
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PROMISSORY NOTE

$100,000 November 21. 1989
Washington, D.C.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware

corporation ("Maker"), promises to pay to the order of
Christopher Koss at the offices of Maker, 1001 22nd Street, N.w.,
Washington, D.C. 20037, or at such other place as the holder
hereof may direct, the principal sum of One Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($100,000), together with interest from the date hereof

on the unpaid principal amount at a fluctuating annual rate equal
to one percent (1%) over the rate announced from time to time by
Citibank N.A. at its principal office as its prime rate, such
interest rate to be adjusted as of the date of announcement of
any change in such prime rate. Interest shall be calculated on

the basis of a 360 day year and the number of days actually
elapsed and shall be paid semiannually commencing on May 1, 1990.
The principal amount of this Note, together with all unpaid in-
terest accrued hereon, shall be due and payable on January 15,
1991. The due date for the payment of the principal amount hereof
or interest hereon may be extended by the mutual written consent
of the Maker and the holder. Maker may, without payment of
penalty or premium, prepay the principal of this Note in whole
or, from time to time, in part. Any payments made on this Note
shall be first applied to interest accrued hereon and then to the
principal amount hereof.

Prior to the payment in full of this Note, the holder

may, at its option, apply the outstanding principal amount of
this Note and any accrued interest hereon to the purchase of
Common Stock or any other equity securities offered by the Maker
in any private or public offering of its securities (other than
the sale of the Maker's Common Stock pursuant to warrants, options
or other rights to acquire equity securities outstanding on the
date hereof) during the period in which this Note is outstanding,
subject to and on the same terms and conditions as in such offer—

ing. The Maker shall promptly notify the holder in writing at
the holder's address of record set forth in the investment letter

dated November 1989 of any such offering following its commence-
ment. Maker shall also give holder at least 5 business days
notice of any closing pursuant to any such offering. In order to
exercise this right, the holder must surrender the Note at the

offices of Maker accompanied by written notice of holder's elec-
tion to so apply the principal amount and accrued interest on the
Note or any portion thereof.

This Note is secured by a lien on, and a security in-
terest in, certain assets of Maker as more fully described and
in accordance with the terms of that certain security agreement
dated November 20, 1989.
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If any of the following conditions or events shall
occur and be continuing (hereinafter referred to as an "Event of
Default"):

(s) Maker shall fail to pay the principal when
'u. such amount is due and payable, or shall fail to pay other

amounts required to be paid pursuant to this Note when such
amounts become due and payable and the failure to pay such other
amounts continues for a period of 15 days after the due date; or

(b) Maker shall be unable to pay its debts as
they mature or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its or
any of its creditors; or

(c) proceedings in bankruptcy, or for reorganiza-
tion of Maker, or for the readjustment of any of its debts, under
the Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or any part thereof, or under
any other laws, whether state or federal, for the relief of debt-
ors, now or hereafter existing, shall be commenced against Maker
and shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of their com-
mencement, or shall be commenced by Maker; or

(d) a proceeding shall be instituted in which a
receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Maker or for any sub-
stantial part of its assets, or for the dissolution or the full
or partial liquidation of Maker, and such receiver or trustee
shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of his appoint-
ment, or such proceedings shall not be discharged within thirty
(30) days of their commencement, or shall be commenced by Maker,
or Maker shall discontinue business or materially change the

‘ nature of its business;
‘~ (e) the occurrence of any event of default under

any promissory note (with a maturity date of March 31, 1990, De-
cember 31, 1990 or January 15, 1991) or other agreement relating
to loans extended to the Company by, or under any arrangement or
other agreement for the deferral until March 31, 1990 of payments

owed by the Company to, any one or more of the following: (i) any
member or members of the Company's Board of Directors or their
affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation of America, Hughes Network Sys-
tems, Inc., Kenwood Corporation, GTE Spacenet Corporation or their
respective affiliates; or (iii) any other person or entity making
funds available to the Company on terms substantially similar to
the lenders identified in (i) or (ii);

(f) the occurrence of an event having a material
adverse affect on the financial position of Maker as of the date
hereof, which has not been cured within 15 days of Maker's receipt
of notice thereof.

then, and in any such event, the holder hereof may at any time
thereafter at its option, by written notice to Maker at its of-
fices, declare this Note to be-due and payable, whereupon the

H3
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same shall mature and become due and payable (unless all defaults

shall have been remedied), together with interest accrued hereon.
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on this Note
shall accrue at the maximum rate Allowed by law from the date of
such occurrence.

Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other

person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note hereby
waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dishonor, pro-
test and notice of protest. In the event that any past due
amounts on this Note are collected by or through an attorney for
the holder, Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other

person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note shall
reimburse holder for any reasonable attorney fees, court costs or

other collection costs incurred by holder to collect such pastdue amounts.

Maker shall contemporaneously herewith issue to the
holder named in the first paragraph of this Note a warrant, in
the form of Exhibit A hereto, to purchase one (1) share of
Maker's Common Stock for each Forty Dollars ($40) principal
amount of this Note.

All rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed
by the laws of Delaware.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

  
ATTEST: [Corporate Seal]

mm_ By: K. ,Af
Assistant Corporate Secretary M rtin R. Snoey

President
  

My
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PROMISSORY NOTE

$1,000,000 December 7, 1989
Washington, D.C.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation ("Maker"), promises to pay to the order of Kenwood
Corporation at the offices of Maker, 1001 22nd Street, N.w.,
Washington, D.C. 20037, or at such other place as the holder
hereof may direct, the principal sum of One Million Dollars
($1,000,000), together with interest from the date hereof on the
unpaid principal amount at a fluctuating annual rate equal to one
percent (1%) over the rate announced from time to time by Citi-
bank N.A. at its principal office as its prime rate, such inter-
est rate to be adjusted as of the date of announcement of any
change in such prime rate. Interest shall be calculated on the

basis of a 360 day year and the number of days actually elapsed.
The principal amount of this Note, together with all unpaid
interest accrued hereon, shall be due and payable on March 30,
1990. The due date for the payment of the principal amount
hereof or interest hereon may be extended by the mutual written
consent of the Maker and the holder. Maker may, without payment
of penalty or premium, prepay the principal of this Note in whole
or, from time to time, in part. Any payments made on this Note
shall be first applied to interest accrued hereon and then to the
principal amount hereof.

Prior to the payment in full of this Note, the holder
may, at its option, apply the outstanding principal amount of
this Note and any accrued interest hereon to the purchase of
Common Stock or any other equity securities offered by the Maker
in any private or public offering of its securities (other than
the sale of the Maker's Common Stock pursuant to warrants, options
or other rights to acquire equity securities outstanding on the
date hereof) during the period in which this Note is outstanding,
subject to and on the same terms and conditions as in such offer—

ing. The Maker shall promptly notify the holder in writing at
the holder's address of record set forth in the investment letter

dated November 1989 of any such offering following its commence-
ment. Maker shall also give holder at least 5 business days
notice of any closing pursuant to any such offering. In order to
exercise this right, the holder must surrender the Note at the

offices of Maker accompanied by written notice of holder's elec-
tion to so apply the principal amount and accrued interest on the
Note or any portion thereof.

This Note is secured by a lien on, and a security inter-
est in, certain assets of Maker as more fully described and in

accordance with the terms of that certain security agreement
dated November 20, 1989.

/?5
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If any of the following conditions or events shall occur
and be continuing (hereinafter referred to as an "Event of De-
fault"):

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal when
such amount is due and payable, or shall fail to pay other
amounts required to be paid pursuant to this Note when such
amounts become due and payable and the failure to pay such other
amounts continues for a period of 15 days after the due date; or

(b) Maker shall become unable to pay its debts as
they mature or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its or
any of its creditors; or

(c) proceedings in bankruptcy, or for reorganiza-
tion of Maker, or for the readjustment of any of its debts, under
the Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or any part thereof, or under
any other laws, whether state or federal, for the relief of debt-
ors, now or hereafter existing, shall be commenced against Maker
and shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of their com-
mencement, or shall be commenced by Maker; or

(d) a proceeding shall be instituted in which a
receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Maker or for any sub-
stantial part of its assets, or for the dissolution or the full
or partial liquidation of Maker, and such receiver or trustee
shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of his appoint-
ment, or such proceedings shall not be discharged within thirty
(30) days of their commencement, or shall be commenced by Maker,
or Maker shall discontinue business or materially change the
nature of its business;

(e) the occurrence of any event of default under
any promissory note (with a maturity date of March 31, 1990, De-
cember 31, 1990 or January 15, 1991) or other agreement relating
to loans extended to the Company by, or under any arrangement or
other agreement for the deferral until March 31, 1990 of payments
owed by the Company to, any one or more of the following: (i) any
member or members of the Company's Board of Directors or their
affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation of America, Hughes Network Sys-
tems, Inc., Kenwood Corporation, GTE Spacenet Corporation or their
respective affiliates; or (iii) any other person or entity making
funds available to the Company on terms substantially similar to
the lenders identified in (i) or (11):

(f) the occurrence of an event having a material
adverse affect on the financial position of Maker as of the date
hereof, which has not been cured within 15 days of Maker's receipt
of notice thereof.

then, and in any such event, the holder hereof may at any time
thereafter at its option, by written notice to Maker at its
offices, declare this Note t0 be due and payable, whereupon the

/%
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same shall mature and become due and payable (unless all defaults
shall have been remedied), together with interest accrued hereon.
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on this Note
shall accrue at the maximum rate allowed by law from the date ofsuch occurrence.

Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other
person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note
hereby waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dis-
honor, protest and notice of protest. In the event that any past
due amounts on this Note are collected by or through an attorney
for the holder, Maker and every endorser of this Note and every
other person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this
Note shall reimburse holder for any reasonable attorney fees,
court costs or other collection costs incurred by holder to
collect such past due amounts.

All rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed
by the laws of Delaware.

This Note replaces a promissory note dated December 7,
1989 for $1,000,000 previously issued by the Maker to Kenwood
Corporation which has been lost or misplaced. Kenwood Corpora-
tion and all subsequent holders of this Note agree and acknowl-
edge that this Note represents the entire amount of indebtedness
by Maker to Kenwood Corporation in connection with the loan made
to Maker on December 7, 1989 and that such prior promissory note
has been fully satisfied upon the acceptance of this Note.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

  

ATTEST: [Corporate Seal]

”fl/fl'aéflQ/Z/facra’ ~ ,3. 4....»
A ' Corporate-Secretary Martin R. Snoey
Treasurer President
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PROMISSORY NOTE

$1,000,000 November 29, 1989
Washington, D.C.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware

corporation ("Maker"), promises to pay to the order of Hughes
Network Systems, Inc. at the offices of Maker, 1001 22nd Street,
N.w., Washington, D.C. 20037, or at such other place as the
holder hereof may direct, the principal sum of One Million Dol—
lars ($1,000,000), together with interest from the date hereof on
the unpaid principal amount at a fluctuating annual rate equal to
one percent (1%) over the rate announced from time to time by
Citibank N.A. at its principal office as its prime rate, such
interest rate to be adjusted as of the date of announcement of
any change in such prime rate. Interest shall be calculated on
the basis of a 360 day year and the number of days actually
elapsed. The principal amount of this Note, together with all
unpaid interest accrued hereon, shall be due and payable on
March 31, 1990. The due date for the payment of the principal
amount hereof or interest hereon may be extended by the mutual
written consent of the Maker and the holder. Maker may, without

payment of penalty or premium, prepay the principal of this Note
in whole or, from time to time, in part. Any payments made on
this Note shall be first applied to interest accrued hereon and
then to the principal amount hereof.

This Note is secured by a lien on, and a security in-
terest in certain assets of Maker as more fully described and in
accordance with the terms of that certain security agreement
dated November 20, 1989.

If any of the following conditions or events shall oc-
cur and be continuing (hereinafter referred to as an "Event of
Default"):

, (a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal when
such amount is due and payable, or shall fail to pay other
amounts required to be paid pursuant to this Note when such
amounts become due and payable and the failure to pay such other
amounts continues for a period of 15 days after the due date; or

(b) Maker shall become unable to pay its debts as
they mature or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its or
any of its creditors; or

(c) proceedings in bankruptcy, or for reorganiza-
tion of Maker, or for the readjustment of any of its debts, under
the Bankruptcy Code, as amended. or any part thereof, or under
any other laws, whether state or federal, for the relief of debt-
ors, now or hereafter existing, shall be commenced against Maker
and shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of their com-
mencement, or shall be commenced by Maker; or
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(d) a proceeding shall be instituted in which a
receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Maker or_for any sub-
stantial part of its assets, or for the dissolution or the full
or partial liquidation of Maker, and such receiver or trustee
shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of his appoint-

- ment, or such proceedings shall not be discharged within thirty

@ (30) days of their commencement. or shall be commenced by Maker,or Maker shall discontinue business or materially change the na-
ture of its business;

(e) the occurrence of any event of default under
any promissory note (with a maturity date of March 31, 1990, De-
cember 31, 1990 or January 15, 1991) or other agreement relating
to loans extended to the Company by, or under any arrangement or
other agreement for the deferral until March 31, 1990 of payments
owed by the Company to, any one or more of the following: (i) any
member or members of the Company's Board of Directors or their
affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation of America, Hughes Network Sys-
tems, Inc., Kenwood Corporation, GTE Spacenet Corporation or their
respective affiliates; or (iii) any other person or entity making
funds available to the Company on terms substantially similar to
the lenders identified in (i) or (ii);

(f) the occurrence of an event having a material
adverse effect on the financial position of Maker as of the date
hereof, which has not been cured within 15 days of Maker's re-
ceipt of notice thereof.

then, and in any such event, the holder hereof may at any time
thereafter at its option, by written notice to Maker at its of-
fices, declare this Note to be due and payable, whereupon the
same shall mature and become due and payable (unless all defaults
shall have been remedied), together with interest accrued hereon. ”
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on this Note
shall accrue at the maximum rate allowed by law from the date of
such occurrence.

Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other
person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note
hereby waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dis-
honor, protest and notice of protest. In the event that any past
due amounts on this Note are collected by or through an attorney
for the holder, Maker and every endorser of this Note and every
other person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this
Note shall reimburse holder for any reasonable attorney fees,
court costs or other collection costs incurred by holder to col-
lect such past due amounts.
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All rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed
by the laws of Delaware.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

ATTEST: [Corporate Seal]

. (3' ' \Q&E‘ By:
Assistant Corporate Secretary

  
Martin R. Snoey
President
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PROMISSORY NOTE

$300, 000 , November 17, 1989
Washington, D.C.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware

corporation ("Maker"), promises to pay to the order of Communi-
cations Satellite Corporation at the offices of Maker, 1001 22nd
Street, N.W., Washington, 0.0. 20037, or at such other place as
the holder hereof may direct, the principal sum of Three Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($300,000), together with interest from the date
hereof on the unpaid principal amount at a fluctuating annual
rate equal to one percent (1%) over the rate renounced from time
to time by Citibank N.A. at its principal office as its prime
rate, such interest rate to be adjusted as of the date of
announcement of any change in such prime rate. Interest shall be
calculated on the basis of a 360 day year and the number of days
actually elapsed. The principal amount of this Note, together
with all unpaid interest accrued hereon. shall be due and payable
on March 31, 1990. The due date for the payment of the principal
amount hereof or interest hereon may be extended by the mutual
written consent of the Maker and the holder. Maker may, without
payment of penalty or premium, prepay the principal of this Note
in whole or, from time to time, in part. Any payments made on
this Note shall be first applied to interest accrued hereon and
then to the principal amount hereof.

This Note is secured by a lien on, and a security in-
terest in certain assets of Maker as more fully described and in
accordance with the terms of that certain security agreement
dated November 20, 1989.

If any of the following conditions or events shall
occur and be continuing (hereinafter referred to as an "Event
of Default"):

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal when
such amount is due and payable, or shall fail to pay other
amounts required to be paid pursuant to this Note when such
amounts become due and payable and the failure to pay such other
amounts continues for a period of 15 days after the due date; or

(b) Maker shall be unable to pay its debts as
they mature or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its or
any of its creditors; or

(c) proceedings in bankruptcy, or for reorganiza—
tion of Maker, or for the readjustment of any of its debts, under
the Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or any part thereof, or under
any other laws, whether state or federal, for the relief of debt-
ors, now or hereafter existing, shall be commenced against Maker
and shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of their com-
mencement, or shall be commenced by Maker; or

£0!
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(d) a proceeding shall be instituted in which a
receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Maker or for any sub-
stantial part of its assets. or for the dissolution'or the full
or partial liquidation of Maker, and such receiver or trustee
shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of his appoint-

ment, or such proceedings shall not be discharged within thirty
(30) days of their commencement, or shall be commenced by Maker,
or Maker shall discontinue business or materially change the na-
ture of its business; .

(e) the occurrence of any event of default under
any promissory note (with a maturity date of March 31, 1990, De-
cember 31. 1990 or January 15: 1991) or other agreement relating
to loans extended to the Company by, or under any arrangement or
other agreement for the deferral until March 31, 1990 of payments
owed by the Company to, any one or more of the following: (i) any
member or members of the Company's Board of Directors or their
affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation of America, Hughes Network Sys-
tems, Inc., Kenwood Corporation, GTE Spacenet Corporation or their
respective affiliates; or (iii) any other person or entity making
funds available to the Company on terms substantially similar to
the lenders identified in (i) or (11);

(f) the occurrence of an event having a material
adverse effect on the financial position of Maker as of the date
hereof, which has not been cured within 15 days of Maker's re-
ceipt of notice thereof.

then, and in any such event, the holder hereof may at any time
thereafter at its option, by written notice to Maker at its of-
fices, declare this Note to be due and payable, whereupon the
same shall mature and become due and payable (unless all defaults
shall have been remedied), together with interest accrued hereon.
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on this Note
shall accrue at the maximum rate allowed by law from the date of
such occurrence.

Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other
person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note
hereby waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dis-
honor, protest and notice of protest. In the event that any past
due amounts on this Note are collected by or through an attorney
for the holder, Maker and every endorser of this Note and every
other person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this
Note shall reimburse holder for any reasonable attorney fees,
court costs or other collection costs incurred by holder to col-
lect such past due amounts.
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All rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed
by the laws of Delaware.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

ATTEST: [Corporate Seal]
. fl

  
   Mart in R.
President

Assistant Corporate Secretary Snoey
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PROMISSORY NOTE

$500,000 November 1, 1989
Washington, D.C.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware

corporation ("Maker“), promises to pay to the order of William R.
Hewlett and Rosemary B. Hewlett at the offices of Maker, 1001
22nd Street, N.w., Washington, D.C. 20037, or at such other place
as the holder hereof may direct, the principal sum of Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($500,000), together with interest from the date
hereof on the unpaid principal amount at a fluctuating annual
rate equal to one percent (1%) over the rate announced from time
to time by Citibank N.A. at its principal office as its prime
rate, such interest rate to be adjusted as of the date of announce-
ment of any change in such prime rate. Interest shall be calcu-
lated on the basis of a 360 day year and the number of days actu-
ally elapsed and shall be paid semiannually commencing on May 1,
1990. The principal amount of this Note, together with all unpaid
interest accrued hereon, shall be due and payable on January 15,
1991. The due date for the payment of the principal amount hereof
or interest hereon may be extended by the mutual written consent
of the Maker and the holder. Maker may, without payment of
penalty or premium, prepay the principal of this Note in whole
or, from time to time, in part. Any payments made on this Note
shall be first applied to interest accrued hereon and then to the
principal amount hereof.

Prior to the payment in full of this Note, the holder
may, at its option, apply the outstanding principal amount of
this Note and any accrued interest hereon to the purchase of
Common Stock or any other equity securities offered by the Maker
in any private or public offering of its securities (other than
the sale of the Maker's Common Stock pursuant to warrants, options
or other rights to acquire equity securities outstanding on the
date hereof) during the period in which this Note is outstanding,
subject to and on the same terms and conditions as in such offer-
ing. The Maker shall promptly notify the holder in writing at
the holder's address of record set forth in the investment letter

dated November 1989 of any such offering following its commence—
ment. Maker shall also give holder at least 5 business days

notice of any closing pursuant to any such offering. In order to
exercise this right, the holder must surrender the Note at the
offices of Maker accompanied by written notice of holder's elec-
tion to so apply the principal amount and accrued interest on the
Note or any portion thereof.

This Note is secured by a lien on, and a security in-
terest in, certain assets of Maker as more fully described and
in accordance with the terms of that certain security agreement
dated November 20, 1989.
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If any of the following conditions or events shall

occur and be continuing (hereinafter referred to as_an "Event of
Default"):

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal when
such amount is due and payable, or shall fail to pay other
amounts required to be paid pursuant to this Note when such
amounts become due and payable and the failure to pay such other
amounts continues for a period of 15 days after the due date; or

(b) Maker shall be unable to pay its debts as
they mature or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its or
any of its creditors; or

(c) proceedings in bankruptcy, or for reorganiza-
tion of Maker, or for the readjustment of any of its debts, under
the Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or any part thereof, or under
any other laws, whether state or federal, for the relief of debt-
ors, now or hereafter existing, shall be commenced against Maker
and shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of their com-
mencement, or shall be commenced by Maker; or

(d) a proceeding shall be instituted in which a

receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Maker or for any sub-
stantial part of its assets, or for the dissolution or the full

or partial liquidation of Maker, and such receiver or trustee

shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of his appoint-
ment, or such proceedings shall not be discharged within thirty
(30) days of their commencement, or shall be commenced by Maker,
or Maker shall discontinue business or materially change the
nature of its business;

any promissory note (with a maturity date of March 31, 1990, De-

cember 31, 1990 or January 15, 1991) or other agreement relating
to loans extended to the Company by, or under any arrangement or
other agreement for the deferral until March 31, 1990 of payments
owed by the Company to, any one or more of the following: (i) any
member or members of the Company's Board of Directors or their
affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation of America, Hughes Network Sys-
tems, Inc., Kenwood Corporation, GTE Spacenet Corporation or their
respective affiliates; or (iii) any other pgrson or entity making
funds available to the Company on terms substantially similar to
the lenders identified in (i) or (ii);

a (e) the occurrence of any event of default under

(f) the occurrence of an event having a material
adverse affect on the financial position of Maker as of the date
hereof, which has not been cured within 15 days of Maker's receipt
of notice thereof.

then, and in any such event, the holder hereof may at any time
thereafter at its option, by written notice to Maker at its of-
fices, declare this Note to be due and payable, whereupon the

-2-
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same shall mature and become due and payable (unless all defaults

shall have been remedied), together with interest accrued hereon.
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on this Note

shall accrue at the maximum rate allowed by law from the date of
such occurrence.

Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other
person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note hereby
waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dishonor, pro-
test and notice of protest. In the event that any past due
amounts on this Note are collected by or through an attorney for
the holder, Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other
person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note shall
reimburse holder for any reasonable attorney fees, court costs or
other collection costs incurred by holder to collect such past
due amounts.

Maker shall contemporaneously herewith issue to the

holder named in the first paragraph of this Note a warrant, in
the form of Exhibit A hereto, to purchase one (1) share of
Maker's Common Stock for each Forty Dollars ($40) principal
amount of this Note.

All rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed
by the laws of Delaware.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

ATTEST: [Corporate Seal]
.s“\

. . jz E s4‘. '~”fl§ ‘3. BY: ' / J?v'4£:L0{
Assistant Corporate Secretary M rtin R. Snoey

President
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PROMISSORY NOTE

$1,000,000 November 17, 1939
Washington, D.C.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, GEOSTAR CORPORATION, a Delaware

corporation ("Maker"), promises to pay to the order of Hillside
Industries Incorporated at the offices of Maker, 1001 22nd Street,
N.w., Washington, D.c. 20037, or at such other place as the holder
hereof may direct, the principal sum of One Million Dollars
($1,000,000), together with interest from the date hereof on the
unpaid principal amount at a fluctuating annual rate equal to one
percent (1%) over the rate announced from time to time by Citibank
N.A. at its principal office as its prime rate, such interest rate
to be adjusted as of the date of announcement of any change in
such prime rate. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a
360 day year and the number of days actually elapsed. The princi-
pal amount of this Note, together with all unpaid interest accrued
hereon, shall be due and payable on March 31, 1990. The due date
for the payment of the principal amount hereof or interest hereon
may be extended by the mutual written consent of the Maker and
the holder. Maker may, without payment of penalty or premium,
prepay the principal of this Note in whole or, from time to time,
in part. Any payments made on this Note shall be first applied
to interest accrued hereon and then to the principal amount hereof.

This Note is secured by a lien on, and a security in-
terest in certain assets of Maker as more fully described and in

accordance with the terms of that certain security agreement dated
November 20, 1989.

If any of the following conditions or events shall oc-
cur and be continuing (hereinafter referred to as an "Event of
Default"):

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal when
such amount is due and payable, or shall fail to pay other amounts
required to be paid pursuant to this Note when such amounts become
due and payable and the failure to pay such other amounts con-
tinues for a period of 15 days after the due date; or

(b) Maker shall be unable to pay its debts as
they mature or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its or
any of its creditors; or

(c) proceedings in bankruptcy, or for reorganiza-
tion of Maker, or for the readjustment of any of its debts, under
the Bankruptcy Code. as amended, or any part thereof, or under
any other laws, whether state or federal, for the relief of debt-
ors, now or hereafter existing, shall be commenced against Maker
and shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of their com-
mencement, or shall be commenced by Maker; or

.267
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(d) a proceeding shall be instituted in which a
receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Maker or for any sub-
stantial part of its assets, or for the dissolutionor the Ifull
or partial liquidation of Maker, and such receiver or trustee
shall not be discharged within thirty (30) days of his appoint-
ment, or such proceedings shall not be discharged within thirty
(30) days of their commencement, or shall be commenced by Maker,
or Maker shall discontinue business or materially change the na-
ture of its business;

(e) the occurrence of any event of default under
any promissory note (with a maturity date of March 31, 1990, De-

cember 31, 1990 or January 15, 1991) or other agreement relating
to loans extended to the Company by, or under any arrangement or
other agreement for the deferral until March 31, 1990 of payments
owed by the Company to, any one or more of the following: (i) any
member or members of the Company's Board of Directors or their
affiliates; (ii) Sony Corporation of America. Hughes Network Sys-
tems, Inc., Kenwood Corporation, GTE Spacenet Corporation or their
respective affiliates; or (iii) any other person or entity making
funds available to the Company on terms substantially similar to
the lenders identified in (i) or (ii);

(f) the occurrence of an event having a material
adverse effect on the financial position of Maker as of the date
hereof, which has not been cured within 15 days of Maker's re-
ceipt of notice thereof.

then, and in any such event, the holder hereof may at any time
thereafter at its option, by written notice to Maker at its of-
fices, declare this Note to be due and payable, whereupon the
same shall mature and become due and payable (unless all defaults
shall have been remedied), together with interest accrued hereon.
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on this Note
shall accrue at the maximum rate allowed by law from the date of
such occurrence.

Maker and every endorser of this Note and every other
person liable for payment of the debt evidenced by this Note
hereby waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dis-
honor, protest and notice of protest. In the event that any past
due amounts on this Note are collected by or through an attorney
for the holder, Maker and every endorser of this Note and every
other person liable fer payment of the debt evidenced by this
Note shall reimburse holder for any reasonable attorney fees,

court costs or other collection costs incurred by holder to col-
lect such past due amounts.

208
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All rights and obligations hereunder shall be governedby the laws of Delaware.

GEOSTAR CORPORATION

ATTEST: [Corporate-Seal] ‘1

;;._. _ fl .1 E' . Q _ By: /7£‘ULL Q I '
Assistant Corporate Secretary Martin R. Snoey

President

0104
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AMENDMENT NO. 1 T0 AGREEMENT TO DEFER PAYMENTS

nus AGREEMENT is entered into as of this 305m of March, 1990 by and
between Geostar Corporation, a Delaware corporation ('Company"); and GTE
Spacenet Corporation ("Lender").

Background: Pursuant to that certain Agreement to Defer Payments
dated November 20, 1989, between Lender and the Company, the Lender has
agreed to defer $3,178,890 of payments plus interest charges owed by the
Company to the Lender (the “Deferred Payments"). In connection with the
Lender’s deferral of the Postponed Payments, the Company entered into an
Agreement to Defer Payments with the Lender, a Security Agreement with
the Lender, and a Pledge Agreement with the Lender and other lenders to

the Company to secure the financing provided thereby. The Company and
the Lender wish to amend only the Agreement to Defer Payments and only
as provided herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and intending to be
legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

1. In consideration of the Company’s continued efforts to obtain
financing, the Company’s reliance on the Lender's agreement to amend the
Agreement to Defer Payments while the Company is attempting to raise
such financing, and the agreement of those other lenders whose notes
become due and payable on March 31, 1990 to amend, consistent with this
Agreement, such promissory notes issued to them, the Company and the
Lender hereby agree to amend the Agreement to Defer Payments so that
effective March 31, 1990, the principal amount of the Deferred Payments
and all accrued interest thereon, or any portion of such principal or
accrued interest, shall be due and payable upon the demand of the
Lender. Demand for payment hereunder shall be made in writing to the
Company and shall be effective upon delivery to the Company's offices.
The Lender and the Company agree that, unless a prior demand for payment
of the principal or interest has been made by the Lender, interest on
the outstanding principal amount of the Deferred Payments shall be due
and payable on January 15, 1991, and thereafter semiannually on July 15
and January 15 of each year until the principal amount of the Deferred
Payments is paid in full.

2. The Lender and the Company agree that, to the extent not
inconsistent with this Amendment, all other terms of the Agreement to
Defer Payments, the Security Agreement and the Pledge Agreement shall
remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

3. The Lender hereby represents that such Lender is presently the
legal and beneficial owner of the rights to the Agreement to defer
Payments and that no other party has been assigned any of the Lender's
rights in that contract.
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4. Each party represents that it has the fuii power and authority
to execute this Agreement. This Agreement shaii inure to the benefit of
and shaii be binding upon the successors, transferees and assigns of the
parties hereto. Each party agrees to notify such successors,

:- _. transferees, and assigns of this Agreement amending the Agreement to
{Egg Defer Payments.

5. This Agreement and the other agreements referred to herein
constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to
the subject matter hereof and there are no other agreements, covenants,
representations or warranties except as set forth herein or therein.
This Amendment may be amended or modified oniy in writing signed by the
Company and the Lender.

6. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which
shaii be deemed an originai. but a1] of which taken together shaii
constitute one and the same instrument.

IN HITNESS HHEREOF, the parties hereto caused this Agreement to be
signed as of the day and year first above written.

LENDER: _ COMPANY:

GTE SPACENET CORPORATION " CURPO"

By: A J E QM?
‘ Name: 11F PISKg  

I Tit'le: Vite Pmigimi-

<§LH
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KENWOOD
“WOOD WHOM

Hr- Mild Be Bram afiefigfilzum_m.u
Senior Vice President and General Counsel 1m. .mfim

Cable :KEN'NODD TOKYO
Geoster Corporation

1001 22nd Street.

News. suit. 8‘0

H‘shinstofl. DeCe 20037 UeSeAe

March 29 . 1 990

Re: Bridge Loan

Dear Mr. Brown :

We are replying to your proposal for the extension of the bridge

loan payable date.

We will agree to extend the payable date troa March 30. 1990 to

June 30. 1990 on the following terms and conditions I'
u

(l) The Bridge Loan Aland-ant setting forth the extended payable

date (June 30. 1990) shall be executed as soon as possible.

Other cares and conditions of the Note. the Securities Agreeaent

and the Pledge Agreeeent shall reaain unchanged except such

aaendaents as will be agreed upon by Geostar and Kenwood.

provided. however. that Geoster agrees to issue a new proaissory

note to replace the present one if Kenwood so requests.

(2) The following additional clauses shall be included in the

Aeendaent or the new Note 3

(a) Geostar represents that all Lenders have agreed either

to the deferrals. or to aaending emu- Not“ to

be 'payable on du-nd' (in-steed or 'in default']

following March 31. 1990.

(a) Geostar agrees to keep Kenwood inforaed of any

developeent in financing. 0.2 ’1
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(3) The accrued interst on Kenlvood'e existing loan shall be remitted
to Kenn-road in cash by March 30. 1990 (Tokyo :1“).

(0 The principal amount of the loan and any interest thereon shall

be repaid in full by cash on June 30. 1990. Such principal amount
and/or interest shall not be converted to any stock or other

equity securities or shall not he applied to the purchase of
any stock or other equity securities.

duplicate copy of this letter.I If you agree to the above. please sign and return to us the
I Yours sincerely.

(envood Corporation

4%
Kouki Hanada

Managing Director 
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AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this _l.21:h_ day of March,
1990 by and between Geostar Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the
'Company"): and William Hewlett and Rosemary Hewlett (the "Lender").

- 111mm. In November and December 1989, the Lender and
other lenders provided funds (the ”bridge financing"). aggregating $12.1
million to the Company in the form of loans or deferrals of payments (the
"postponed payments"), to help finance the Company's operations until the
Company could obtain more permanent financing. In return for those
funds provided by the Lender. the Company issued promissory note to the
Lender, and the Company and the Lender and other lenders entered into a
security agreement and a pledge agreement in connection with the bridge
financing. The Company has not yet obtained the permanent financing
referred to above and wishes to obtain additional time in which to obtain
such financing by extending the maturity date of the promissory note. The
Lender, aware of the necessity to extend the maturity date, wishes to
assist the Company in its efforts to obtain more permanent financing by
extending such maturity date.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and intending to
be legally bound hereby the parties agree as follows:

1. In consideration of the Company's continued efforts to obtain
more permanent financing, the Company's reliance on the Lenders'
agreement to extend the maturity date in attempting to raise such
financing. and the agreement of other lenders to extend the maturity date
of their promissory notes or the deferral period of the postponed
payments, the Company and the Lender hereby agree to extend the
maturity date of the promissory note issued to the Lender in connection
with the bridge financing until December 31. 1991.

2. The Lender and the Company agree that Paragraph (e) of the
Event of Default section of the promissory note of the Lender is amended
to read in its entirety as follows:

(e) the occurrence of any event of default under any promissory
note or agreement to defer payments originally issued to, or entered
into, in November or December 1989 with Sony Corporation of
America, Communications Satellite Corporation. Hughes Network
Systems, Inc., Mobile Telecommunication Technologies Corp..

.219
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Kenwood Corporation. GTE Spacenet Corporation. Hillside Industries.
Inc., WFS Financial Corp.. William E. Simon. Christopher D. Koss,
William Hewlett and Rosemary Hewlett. and David Packard;

3. The Lender and the Company agree that all other terms of the

promissory note. the security agreement and the pledge agreement shall
remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

4. The Lender hereby represents that such Lender is presently

the legal and beneficial owner of the promissory note issued to it in
connection with the bridge financing and that no other party has been

assigned any of the Lender's rights in the instrument.

5. Each party represents that it has the full power and authority
to execute this Agreement. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall be binding upon the heirs. legal representatives. successors,
transferees and assigns of the parties hereto. Each party agrees to notify

such heirs, legal representatives. successors, transferees and assigns of this
Agreement extending the maturity date of the promissory note.

6. This Agreement and the other agreements referred to herein
constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to

the subject matter hereof and there are no other agreements. covenants,

representations or warranties except as set forth herein or therein. This
Agreement may be amended or modified only in writing signed by the

Company and the Lender.

7. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. each of
which ahall be deemed an original. but all of which taken together ahall
constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties hereto caused this Agreement to

be signed as of the day and year first above written.

LENDER: . GEOSTAR CORPORATION

William Hewlett and Rosemary Hewlett

  
William R. Hewlett B. Hewlett by

Title: Title:fl/mmws
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AEBEEMEEI

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this JOfl day of
March, 1990 by and between Geostar Corporation, a Delaware
corporation (the ”Company"); and Communications Satellite
Corporation (the "Lender").

W. In return for funds provided by the Lender, the
Company has issued a promissory note to the Lender (the "Note“).

and the Company and the Lender and other lenders have entered

into a security agreement and a pledge agreement to secure the
financing provided thereby. The Company and the Lender wish to
amend the Note.

NOW. THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregoing and

intending to be legally bound hereby. the parties agree as follows:

1. In consideration of the Company's continued efforts to

obtain financing, the Company's reliance on the Lender's agreement

to amend the Note in attempting to raise such financing, and the
agreement of other lenders to amend their promissory notes or the

agreement to defer payments. the Company and the Lender hereby

agree to amend the Note so that effective immediately prior to the

maturity date of the Note. the principal amount of and accrued

interest on the Note shall be due and payable upon the demand of

the Lender. Demand for payment hereunder shall be made in

writing to the Company and shall be effective upon delivery to the
Company's offices. The Lender and the Company agree that, unless a

prior demand for payment of principal or interest has been made by
the Lender, interest on the outstanding principal amount of the Note

shall be due and payable on January 15, 1991. and thereafter

semiannually on July 15 and January 15 of each year until the
principal amount of the Note is paid in full.

2. The Lender and the Company agree that Paragraph (a) of
the Event of Default section of the Note of the Lender is amended to

read in its entirety as follows:

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal or interest

thereon when such amounts are due and payable;
or

,2»
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3- The Lender and the Company agree that all other terms
of the Note, the security agreement and the pledge agreement shall
remain unchanged and in full force. and effect.

4. The Lender hereby represents that such Lender is
presently the legal and beneficial owner of the Note and that no

other party has been assigned any of the Lender‘s rights in that
instrument.

5. Each party represents that it has the full power and

authority to execute this Agreement. This Agreement shall inure to
the benefit of and shall be binding upon the heirs, legal
representatives, successors, transferees and assigns of the parties
hereto. Each party agrees to notify such heirs. legal representatives.
successors, transferces and assigns of this Agreement amending the
Note.

 
6. This Agreement and the other agreements referred to

herein constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with

respect to the subject matter hereof and there are no other
agreements, covenants, representations or warranties except as set
forth herein or therein. This Agreement may be amended or

modified only in writing signed by the Company and the Lender.

7. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of

which shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties hereto caused this
Agreement to be signed as of the day and year first above written.

LENDER: GEOSTAR CORPORATION

COMMUNICATIONS SATELLITE CORPORATION

 
   

  

 ‘fiflggégéft!!! By:QM
Jo— ’ ~ ”I” ' Name:

PmONT Title:
WM $31 BTB'HS NtSlaD

 _______fi___
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W

rms AGREEMENT n entered Into no or on. m day or March.
1990 by end between Geoetar Corporetlon. 1 bottom corporetion (the
'Cotnpeny'): end Sony Corporetlon of Amerlce (tho 'Lender“).

. The Lender end other lendere (the 'Other London")

provided to the Company in November end December 1989 en eurewo
of $12.4 million of (lunch: through loene or delerrele of peytnentt (the
“Bridge Pinnacles“). in return (or two million dollere provided by the
Lender en pert of the Bridge Finenoine. the Compeny hat tuned e
Fret-ninety Note to the Lender (the “Note”. deted November 2!. 1939).
end the Compeny end the Lender end Other Lender: heve entered into e
eecority eereoment end a pledge agreement to eecure the “filming
provided thereby. The Company end the Lender with to mend the Note.

NOW, THEREFORE. in coneldet'etion of the foregoing end intending to
be legally bound hereby. the pertiee agree ea follow:

1. In ecnelderetlon of the Com eny'e condoned effortt to obtain
financing. the Compeny'e reliance on e Lender: egreemeot to unend
the Note in ettentpting to rein anch flnenclng. end the ureement of
Other Lenders to emend their prominent note: or the egreemont to deter
peymente. the Con-spotty and the Lender hereby egree to amend the Note
on elm effective immedletely prior to tho motority date of the Note. the
princlpel emount of end accrued tntoreet on the Note ehall be doe end
peyeblo open the demoed of the Lender. Demend for peyment
hereunder ehell be rnede in writing to the Compeny end then be effective
upon written notice to the Compeoy It the Compeny'e ottlcee. The Lender
end the Com eny egree thet. unleea e prior demand for payment of
princlpel or ntereet he: been mode by the Lender. letereet on the
ootetendln: principel erncont of the Note ehail be due end peynhle on
lenoary 15. 1991. and thereetter eemiennueily on July 15 end Jenuuy
15 of etch yet! until the principal amount of the Note it paid in full.

2. The Lender end the Compeny egree thet hung: (a) o! the
Event of Default eectlon of the Note of the Lender to once to read in
ite entirety ee follower

(e) Maker ehell (oil to pey the prioetpu or internet
thereon when ouch ernonnte are due end peyeble; or

2/5
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'3. The lender end the Compeny eeree thet ell other terms of the

Note. the eecurity eereement end the pledge egnement ehell remain
nncheneed end in full force end effect.

4. The Lender hereby repteeente thet ench Lender ie pmentiy
the leeel end heneficiel owner of the Note end thet no other perty he
been eeelenod eny of the Lender'e righte In thet inetnlment.

5. Been petty representt thet it bet the full power end eothority
to execute thlt Agreement. Thie Agreement ehell inure to the benefit of
end theli be binding n n the heire. leeel ropreeentetivee. eueceeeort.
trentfereet end etelenr o the pertiee hereto. Etch petty epeet to notify
each heirt. legel repreeentetivee. eucceeeort. trentfereee end eeelent of
thin Agreement Intending the Note.

6. Title Agreement end the other eareementr referred to herein
conerime the entire eereernent emon; the pertiee hereto with retpect to
the tubjeot metter hereof end there ere no other eareemente. covenente.
repmentetlone or werrentiee except ee eet forth herein or therein. ‘l'hit
Agreement my be mended or modified only in writing eignetl by the
Company end the Lender.

1. Thlt Agreement then not he effective until the Other Lender-
here executed egreementt 'rrovidine thet the prinolpel mount of endeecrued intereet on the h den flnencin; will be peyehle on demend
following ite metnrlty dete.

I. This Agreement they he executed in eounterperte. etch of
which ehell he deemed en originei. hut eii of which telten together ehell
conttitute one end the tune inetrumont.

1N wmress WHEREOF. the pertiet hereto cented thie Agreement to
he tinned ee of the dey end you firtt ehove written.

mm: OMARWWW

 
11“.: Vice Preeident Title: Senior Vice fruition:

Helene unintention- Divteton Concrete h Ineernetienel

911‘?
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THIS AGREEMENT is entered into-as of this day of
March. 1990 by and between Oeostar Corporation. a Delaware
corporation (the “Company'): and William E. Simon (the 'Lender").

 

W. In return for funds provided by the Lender. the
Company" has issued a promissory core to the Lender (the 'Note").
and the Company and the Lender and other lenders have entered
into a security agreement and a pledge agreement to secure the
financing provided thereby. The Company and the Lender wish to
amend the Note.

NOW. THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregoing and
intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

1. in consideration of the Company's continued efforts to
obtain financing. the Company's reliance on the Lender's agreement
to amend the Note in attempting to raise such financing. and the
agreement of other lenders to amend their promissory notes or the
agreement to defer payments; the Company and the-Lender..-here_by
agree to amend the Note so that effective immediately prior to the
maturity date of the Note. the principal amount of and accrued
interest on the Note shall be due and payable upon the demand of
the Lender. Demand for payment hereunder shall be made in
writing to the Company and shall be effective upon delivery to the
Company's offices. The Lender and the Company agree that. unless a
prior demand for payment of principal or interest has been made by
the Lender. interest on the outstanding principal amount of the Note
shall be due and payable on January 15. l991. and thereafter
semiannually on July 15 and January 15 of each year until the
principal amount of the Note is paid in full.

2. The Lender and the Company agree that Paragraph (a) of
the Event of Default section of the Note of the Lender is amended to
read in its entirety as follows:

(a) Maker shall fall to pay the principal or mom;
thereon when such amounts are due and payable;

210
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3. The Lender and the Company agree' that all other terms
of the Note. the security agreement and the pledge agreement shall
remain unchanged end in full force and effect

4." The Lender hereby represents that such Lender is
presently the legal and beneficial owner of the Note and that no
other party has been assigned any of the Lender's rights in that
instrument.

5. Etch party represents that it has the full power snd
authority to execute this Agreement. This Agreement shall inure to
the benefit of and shall be binding upon the heirs. legal
representatives. successors. transferees and assigns of the parties
hereto. Each party agrees to notify such heirs. legal representatives.
successors. transferee: and assign: of this Agreement amending the
Note.

6. This Agreement and the other agreements referred to
herein constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with
respect to the subject matter hereof and there are no other
agreements. covenants. representations or warranties except as set
forth herein or therein. This Agreement may be amended___or _
modified only in writing signed by the Company and the Lender.

7. This Agreement'rnay he executed in counterparts. each of
which shall be deemed an original. but all of which taken together
shsll constitute one end the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHBRBOF. the parties hereto caused this
Agreement to be signed as of the day and year first above written.

1mm: GEOS'I'AR CORPORATION

William E. Simon

By:W By:Name: yet." w Name:
Title: 0: Title:
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THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this 3130174133; of
March. 1990 by and between Geostar Corporation, a Delaware
corporation (the 'Company"); and Hughes Network Systems, Inc. (the
'Lender").

W- In return for funds provided by the Lender. the
Company has issued a promissory note to the Lender (the "Note"),
and the Company and 'the Lender and other lenders have entered
into a security agreement and a pledge agreement to secure the
financing provided thereby. The Company and the Lender wish to
amend the Note.

NOW. THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and

intending to be legally bound hereby. the parties agree as follows:

1. In consideration of the Company's continued efforts to

obtain financing. the Company’s reliance on the Lender‘s agreement
to amend the Note in attempting to raise such financing. and the

agreement of other lenders to amend their promissory notes or the
agreement to defer payments, the Company and the Lender hereby
agree to amend the Note so that effective immediately prior to the
maturity date of the Note, the principal amount of and accrued
interest on the Note shall be due and payable upon the demand of

the Lender. Demand for payment hereunder shall be made in

writing to the Company and shall be effective upon delivery to the

Company's offices. The Lender and the Company agree that, unless a
prior demand for payment of principal or interest has been made by
the Lender, interest on the outstanding principal amount of the Note
shall be due and payable on January 15. 1991, and thereafter
semiannually on July 15 and January 15 .of each year until the
principal amount of the Note is paid in full.

2. The Lender and the Company agree that Paragraph (a) of
the Event of Default section of the Note of the Lender is amended to

read in its entirety as follows:

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal or interest
thereon when such amounts are due and payable;
or

m?-

Page 000224



Page 000225

3. The Lender and the Company agree that all other terms
of ihe Note. the security agreement and the pledge agreement shall
remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

4, The Lender hereby represents that such Lender is
presently the legal and beneficial owner of the Note and that no
other party has been assigned any of the Lender's rights in that

.instrument.

5. Each party represents that it has the full power and
authority to execute this Agreement. This Agreement shall inure to
the benefit of and shall be binding upon the heirs, legal
representatives. successors, transferees and assigns of the parties
hereto. Each party agrees to notify such heirs. legal representatives,
successors, transferees and assigns of this Agreement amending the
Note.

6. This Agreement and the other agreements referred to
herein constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with
respect to the subject matter hereof and there are no other

agreements, covenants, representations or warranties except as set
forth herein or therein. This Agreement may be amended or
modified only in writing signed by the Company and the Lender.

7. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. each of
which shall be deemed an original. but all of which taken together
shall constitute one and the same instrun. int.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto caused this

Agreement to be signed as of the dayland year first above written.

 

IL'NDER: GEOSTAR CORPORATION

HUGHES NETWORK SYSTEMS. INC.

coma—i
B ' By:

Name: Name:
Title: Title:
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AGREEMEEI

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this 3015 day of
March. 1990 by and between Geostar Corporation. a Delaware

corporation (the "Company”): and Mobile Telecommunications

Technologies Corp. (the "Lender").

W- In return for funds provided by the Lender. the

Company has issued a promissory note to the Lender (the "Note"),
and the Company and the Lender and other lenders have entered
into a security agreement and a pledge agreement to secure the
financing provided thereby. The Company and the Lender wish to
amend the Note.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and
intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

1. In consideration of the Company's continued efforts to

obtain financing, the Company's reliance on the Lender's agreement
to amend the Note in attempting to raise such financing. and the

agreement of other lenders to amend their promissory notes or the
agreement to defer payments. the Company and the Lender hereby
agree to amend the Note so that effective immediately prior to the
maturity date of the Note. the principal amount of and accrued
interest on the Note shall be due and payable upon the demand of
the Lender. Demand for payment hereunder shall be made in
writing to the Company and shall be effective upon delivery to the
Company's offices. The Lender and the Company agree that, unless a
prior demand for payment of principal or interest has been madeby
the Lender. interest on the outstanding principal amount of the Note
shall be due and payable on January 15, 1991, and thereafter
semiannually on July 15 and January 15 of each year until the
principal amount of the Note is paid in full.

2. The Lender and the Company agree that Paragraph (a) of
the Event of Default section of the Note of the Lender is amended to
read in its entirety as follows:

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal or interest
thereon when such amounts are due and payable:
or

2%
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3. The Lender and the Company agree that all other terms
of the Note. the security agreement and the pledge agreement shall
remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

4. The Lender hereby represents that such Lender is
presently the legal and beneficial owner of the Note and that no
other party has been assigned any' of the Lender’s rights in that
.instrument.

5. Each party represents that it has the full power and
authority to execute this Agreement. This Agreement shall inure to
the benefit of and shall be binding upon the heirs. legal
representatives. successors. transferees and assigns of the parties
hereto. Each party agrees to notify such heirs, legal representatives,
successors. transferees and assigns of this Agreement amending the
Note.

6. This Agreement and the other agreements referred to
herein constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with
respect to the subject matter hereof and there are no other
agreements. covenants, representations or warranties except as set
forth herein or therein. This Agreement may be amended or
modified only in writing signed by the Company and the Lender.

7. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties hereto caused this
Agreement to be signed as of the clay and year first above written.

LENDER: GEOSTAR CORPORATION

MOBILE WWCATIONS TECHNOLOGIES CORP.

By: _ gfi H W Byim
Name: ohn N. Palmer Name:

Title: Chairman Title:

527—5 
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AGREEMENT:

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this 30 day of
March, 1990 by and between Geostar Corporation. a Delaware
corporation (“.9 "W” and W9 Financial Corp; (the '.Lender“).

W. In return for funds provided by the Lender. the
Company has issued a promissory note to the Lender {the "Note"),
and the Company and the Lender and other lenders have entered
into a security agreement and a pledge agreement to secure the
financing provided thereby. The Company and the Lender wish to
amend the Note.

NOW. THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and
intending to be legally bound hereby. the parties agree as follows:

1. In consideration of the Company's continued efforts to
obtain financing. the Company's reliance on the Lender's agreement
to amend the Note in attempting to raise such financing, and the
agreement of other lenders to amend their promissory notes or the
agreement to defer payments. the Company and the Lender hereby
agree to amend the Note so that effecfive immediately prior to the
maturity date of the Note. the principal amount of and accrued
interest on the Note shall be due and payable upon the demand of
the Lender. Demand for payment hereunder shall be made in
writing to the Company and shall be effective upon delivery to the
Company's offices. The Lender and the Company agree that, unless a
prior demand for payment of principal or interest has been made by
the Lender. interest on the outstanding principal amount of the Note
shall be due and payable on January 15, 1991. and thereafter
semiannually on July 15 and January 15 of each year until the
principal amount of the Note is paid in full.

2. The Lender and the Company agree that Paragraph (a) of
the Event of Default section of the Note of the Lender is amended to
read in its entirety as follows:

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal or interest
thereon when such amounts are due and payable:or

225 
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3. The Lender and the Company agree that all other terms

of the Note. the security agreement and the pledge agreemem shall

remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

4. The Lender hereby represents that such Lender is

presently the legal and beneficial owner of the Note and that no
other party has been assigned any of the Lender's rights in that
instrument.

5. Each party represents that it has the full power and
authority to execute this Agreement. This Agreement shall inure to

the benefit of and shall be binding upon the heirs, legal
representatives. successors. transferees and assigns of the parties
hereto. Each party agrees to notify such heirs, legal representatives.
successors. transferees and assigns of this Agreement amending the
Note.

6. This Agreement and the other agreements referred to

herein constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with

respect to the subject matter hereof and there are no other

agreements, covenants, representations or warranties except as set

forth herein or therein. This Agreement may be amended or
modified only in writing signed by the Company and the Lender.

7. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts,‘ each of

which shall be deemed an original. but all of which taken together
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties hereto caused this
Agreement to be signed as of the day and year first above written.

LE‘IDEI: GEOSTAR CORPORATION

WFS FINANCIAL CORP.
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THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this 9-3 day of
March. 1990 by and between Geostar Corporation. a Delaware
corporation (the "Company"): and Hillside Industries. Inc. (the
"Lender”).

W- In return for funds provided by the Lender. the
Company has issued a promissory note to the Lender (the 'Note'),
and the Company and the Lender and other lenders have entered
into a security agreement and a pledge agreement to secure the
financing provided thereby. The Company and the Lender wish to
amend the Note.

NOW. THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregoing and
intending to be legally bound hereby. the parties agree as follows:

I. In consideration of the Company's continued efforts to
obtain financing, the Company‘s reliance on the Lender's agreement
to amend the Note in attempting to raise such financing. and the
agreement of other lenders to amend their promissory notes or the
agreement to defer payments. the Company and the Lender hereby
agree to amend the Note so that effective immediately prior to the
maturity date of the Note. the principal amount of and accrued
interest on the Note shall be due and payable upon the demand of
the Lender. Demand for payment hereunder shall be made in
writing to the Company and shall be effective upon delivery to the
Company's offic’ . The Lender and the Company agree that. unless a
prior demand for payment of principal or interest has been made by
the Lender. interest on the outstanding principal amount of the Note
shall be due and payable on January 15. 1991. and thereafter
scmiannually on July 15 and January 15 of each year until the
principal amount of the Note is paid in full.

 
2. The Lender and the Company agree that Paragraph (21) of

the Event of Default section of the Note of the Lender is amended to
read in its entirety as follows:

(a) Maker shall fail to pay the principal or interest
thereon when such amounts are due and payable;
or

:0"3
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3. The Lender and the Company agree that all other terms
of the Note, the security agreement and the pledge agreement shall

remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

4. The Lender hereby represents that such Lender is

6 presently the legal and beneficial owner of the Note and that noother party has been assigned any of the Lender's rights in that
instrument.

5. Each party represents that it has the full power and
authority to execute this Agreement. This Agreement shall inure to

the benefit of and shall be binding upon the heirs. legal

representatives, successors, transferees and assigns of the parties

hereto. Each party agrees to notify such heirs. legal representatives.
successors, transferees and assigns of this Agreement amending the
Note.

6. This Agreement and the other agreements referred to
herein constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with

respect to the subject matter hereof and there are no other
agreements. covenants. representations 01' warranties except as set

forth herein or therein. This Agreement may be amended or

modified only in writing signed by the Company and the Lender.

7. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. each of

which shall be deemed an original. but all of which taken together

0 shall constitute one and the same instrument.
;— 8- .504 lazy-lean

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto caused this

Agreement to be signed as of the day and year first above written.

LENDER: GEOSTAR CORPORATION

HILLSIDE INDUSTRIES, INC.

By; L M ' 3: By;
N e: 015', AA Irw-nfl Name:

Title: in ”‘2?- to , Mafia. Title:

_, g_#%41am%XnT/W,Moém¢
MMMW urw.

V,

5224
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AGREEMEEI

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this _Z_é_ day of
March. 1990 by and between Geostar Corporation, a Delaware
corporation (the ”Company"); and David Packard (the "Lender”).

W. In return for funds provided by the Lender. the
Company has issued a promissory note to the Lender (the ”Note"),
and the Company and the Lender and other lenders have entered
into a security agreement and a pledge agreement to secure the
financing provided thereby. The Company and the Lender wish to
amend the Note.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and

intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

1. In consideration of the Company's continued efforts to

obtain financing, the Company's reliance on the Lender's agreement
to amend the Note in attempting to raise such financing. and the

agreement of other lenders to amend their promissory notes or the
agreement to defer payments, the Company and the Lender hereby
agree to amend the Note so that effective immediately prior to the
maturity date of the Note, the principal amount of and accrued
interest on the Note shall be due and payable upon the demand of

the Lender. Demand for payment hereunder shall be made in

writing to the Company and shall. be effective upon delivery to the
Company's offices. The Lender and the Company agree that, unless a
prior demand for payment of principal or interest has been made by
the Lender, interest on the outstanding principal amount of the Note
shall be due and payable on January 15, 1991, and thereafter

semiannually on July 15 and January 15 of each year until the
principal amount of the Note is paid in full.

2. The Lender and the Company agree that Paragraph (a) of
the Event of Default section of the Note of the Lender is amended to

read in its entirety as follows:

(a) Malter shall fail to pay the principal or interest
thereon when such amounts are due and payable;
or
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3. The Lender and the Company agree that all other terms

of the Note, the security agreement and the pledge agreement shall

remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

4. The Lender hereby represents that such Lender is

presently the legal and beneficial owner of the Note and that no

other party has been assigned any of the Lender's rights in that
instrument.

5. Each party represents that it has the full power and

authority to execute this Agreement. This Agreement shall inure to
the benefit of and shall be binding upon the heirs. legal

representatives, successors. transferees and assigns of the parties
hereto. Each party agrees to notify such heirs. legal representatives,
successors, transferees and assigns of this Agreement amending the
Note.

6. This Agreement and the other agreements referred to
herein constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with

respect to the subject matter hereof and there are no other
agreements, covenants, representations or warranties except as set
forth herein or therein. This Agreement may be amended or

modified only in writing signed by the Company and the Lender.

7. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties hereto caused this

Agreement to be signed as of the day and year first above written.

LENDER: GEOSTAR CORPORATION

David Packard
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Geostar Positioning Corporation
State of Incorporation - Delaware

Geostar Messaging Corporation
state of Incorporation - Delaware

Geostar Europe, Inc.

State of Incorporation - Delaware
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors

Geostar Corporation

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement
(No. 33—26132) on Form 8—8 of Geostar Corporation of our report dated April 6,
1990, relating to the consolidated balance sheets of Geostar Corporation and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 1989 and 1983, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in shareholders' equity (deficit), and cash
flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 1989
which report appears in the December 31. 1989 annual report on Form lO-K of
Geostar Corporation.

Our report contains an explanatory paragraph that states that the Company's
recurring losses from operations, net working capital deficiency and the need
for additional financing raise substantial doubt about the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern. The consolidated financial statements and

schedules do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and
the classification of reported asset amounts or the amounts and classification

of liabilities that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Our report also contains an explanatory paragraph that indicates the Company
is negotiating an agreement with the manufacturer of its dedicated satellites
which would allow the Company to defer the construction of the satellites for
at least 1 year. In the event the Company subsequently terminates the current
contract, certain termination payments would be required and capitalized costs
associated with this contract would be expensed.

Our report also refers to a change in the Company‘s method of accounting for
internal costs associated with the Geostar System made in 1987.

KFMG 6?” 41M
KPMG FEAT MARWICK

Washington, D.C.
April 13, 1990
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL HEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned,

a director of Geostar Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Geo-
star"), hereby makes, designates, constitutes and appoints
Martin R. Snoey, Donald E. Brown and Michael J. Breslin and each
of then (with full power to act without the other), as the under-
signed's true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full
power and authority to act in any and all capacities for and in
the name, place and stead of the undersigned in connection with
the filing with Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, of Geostar's
Annual Report on Form 10-K and all amendments thereto (collec—
tively, "Geostar's Form 10-K“).

Such attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them,
are also hereby granted full power and authority, on behalf of
and in the name, place and stead of the undersigned, to execute
and deliver Geostar's Form 10~K and all such reports, amend-
ments, qualifications and notifications, to execute and deliver
any and all such other documents, and to take further action as
they, or any of them, deem appropriate in connection with
Geostar’s Form 10—K. The powers and authorities granted herein
to such attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, also in-
clude the full right, power and authority to effect necessary
or appropriate substitutions or revocations. The undersigned
hereby ratifies, confirms, and adopts, as his own act and deed,
all action lawfully taken by such attorneys-in-fact and agents,
or any of them, or by their respective substitutes, pursuant to
the powers and authorities herein granted. This Power of At-
torney expires by its terms and shall be of no further force and
effect on December 31, 1990.

IN WITNESS figEREOF, the undersigned has executed this
document as of theSho day of March, 1990.
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL HEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned,
a director of Geostar Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Geo—
star"), hereby makes, designates, constitutes and appoints
Martin R. Snoey, Donald E. Brown and Michael J. Breslin and each
of them (with full power to act without the other), as the under-
signed's true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full
power and authority to act in any and all capacities for and in
the name, place and stead of the undersigned in connection with
the filing with Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, of Geostar's
Annual Report on Form 10-K and all amendments thereto (collec-
tively, "Geostar's Form 10-K").

such attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them,
are also hereby granted full power and authority, on behalf of
and in the name, place and stead of the undersigned, to execute
and deliver Geostar’s Form 10-K and all such reports, amend-
ments, qualifications and notifications, to execute and deliver
any and all such other documents, and to take further action as
they, or any of them, deem appropriate in connection with
Geostar's Form 10-K. The powers and authorities granted herein
to such attorneys-in—fact and agents, and each of them, also in-
clude the full right, power and authority to effect necessary
or appropriate substitutions or revocations. The undersigned
hereby ratifies, confirms, and adopts, as his own act and deed,
all action lawfully taken by such attorneys-in-fact and agents,
or any of them, or by their respective substitutes, pursuant to
the powers and authorities herein granted. This Power of At-
torney expires by its terms and shall be of no further force and
effect on December 31, 1990.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this
document as of the ZOUIdaY of March, 1990.
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned,
a director of Geostar Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Gec-
star“), hereby makes, designates, constitutes and appoints
Martin R. Snoey, Donald E. Brown and Michael J. Breslin and each
of them (with full power to act without the other), as the under-
signed's true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full
power and authority to act in any and all capacities for and in
the name, place and stead of the undersigned in connection with
the filing with Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, of Geostar's
Annual Report on Form 10—K and all amendments thereto (collec—
tively, "Geostar's Torn lO-K“).

Such attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them,
are also hereby granted full power and authority, on behalf of
and in the name, place and stead of the undersigned, to execute
and deliver Geostar's Form 10-K and all such reports, amend—
ments, qualifications and notifications, to execute and deliver
any and all such other documents, and to take further action as
they, or any 0: them, deem appropriate in connection withGeostar's Form lO-K. The powers and authorities granted herein
to such attorneys-in—ract and agents, and each of them, also in-
clude the full right, power and authority to effect necessary
or appropriate substitutions or revocations. The undersigned
hereby ratifies, confirms, and adopts, as his own act and deed,
all action lawfully taken by such attorneys-in-fact and agents,
or any of them, or by their respective substitutes, pursuant to
the powers and authorities herein granted. This Power of At—
torney expires by its terms and shall be or no further force and
effect on December 31, 1990.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this
document as of the 2;; day of March, 1990.
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

b mow ALL HEN BY THESE PRESENTS. that tho undoraignod,a director or coootar Co oration, o Doiawaro corporation (”Goo-
otar"). horoby makes, do! qnatoo, conotitutoo and appoint-
Martin R. Snooy, Donald 2. Brown and Michaol J. Broolin and oach
or them (with toll powor to act without tho othor), as tho under-
aignad'a truo and lawrul attorneys-in~£act and agents. with full
power and authority to act in any and all capacitioo tor and in
the name, piano and otoad of tho underoiqnod in connoction with
the filing with Bocuritioo and Ixohango commioaion pursuant to
the securities Exchango Act or 193‘, as amondod, or Goootar’a
Annual Report on form 10-K and all onendmonto tharoto (collec-
tLValy, "Goostar'o rorn lo-x").

Such attornoyauin-tact and ogonto, or any or them,
are also horohy granted full pcwor and authority. on behalf or
and in tho namo, place and otoad o! the undoroiqnod, to axocuta
and dolivor Gooatar'o Form 10-! and oil ouch roporto. amend-
manta. qualifications and notificationo, to oxocuto and dalivor
any and all such othor doounonto, and to tako rurthor action as
they, or any of thom, doom appropriato in oonnoction with
Gaoatar'o torn io-R. The poworo and outhoritioo qrantod horoin
to such attornoyavin-zact and agents, and oach o: thou, also in—
cluco tho rull right, powor and authority to otioot nocoosary
or appropriato substitutions or rovocationo. Tho undersigned
hereby ratitioo. continua, and adopts, oo his can act and dead.

0 all action lawfully takon by own attornoyoe-in-toct and agents,or any or than, or by thoir roa cctivo oubatitutoo, pursuant to
tho powara and outhoritioa hero n granted. Thin Power or At-
torney oxpiroo by it: torno and ohall bo at no furthor force and
effect on Doconbor 31, 1990.

IN WITNES VEEREOF, tho undoroignod has oxecutod this
document as at tho day a! Hatch, 1990.

.'a.|1
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

D KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned,
a director of Geostar Co oration, a Delaware corporation ("Geo-star"), hereby makes, degggnates, constitutes and appoints
Martin R. Snoey, Donald E. Brown and Michael J. Breslin and each
of them (with full power to act without the other), as the under-
signed's true and lawful attorneys-in-tact and agents, with full

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, of Geostar’s
Annual Report on Form 10—K and all amendments thereto (collec-
tively, "Geostar’s Form 10-K").

Such attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them,
are also hereby granted full power and authority, on behalf of
and in the name, place and stead of the undersigned, to execute
and deliver Geostar's Form lo-K and all such reports, amend-
ments, qualifications and notifications, to execute and deliver
any and all such other documents, and to take further action as
they, or any of them, deem appropriate in connection with
Geostar's Form 10-K. The powers and authorities granted herein
to such attorneys—in-fact and agents, and each or them, also in-
clude the full right, power and authority to effect necessary
or appropriate substitutions or revocations. The undersigned
hereby ratifies, confirms, and adopts, as his own act and dead,
all action lawfully taken by such attorneys-in-fact and agents,3’ or any of them, or by their respective substitutes, pursuant to
the powers and authorities herein granted. This Power of At—
torney expires by its terms and shall be of no further force and
effect on December 31, 1990.

IN WITNESS fihEREOF, the undersigned has executed this
document as of the 2* day of March, 1990.
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

i mow ALI. MEN or mass PRESENTS, that the undersigned,
a director of Geostar Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Geo-
star"). hereby makes, designates, constitutes and appoints
Martin R. Snoey, Donald E. Brown and Michael J. Breslin and each
of them (with full power to act without the other), as the under—
signed's true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full

Such attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them,
are also hereby granted full power and authority, on behalf of
and in the name, place and stead of the undersigned, to execute
and deliver Geostar's Form 10-K and all such reports, amend-
ments, qualifications and notifications, to execute and deliver
any and all such other documents, and to take further action as
they, or any of them, deem appropriate in connection with
Geostar’s Form 10~K. The powers and authorities granted herein
to such attorneys-in-ract and agents, and each or them, also in—
clude the full right, power and authority to effect necessary
or appropriate substitutions or revocations. The undersigned
hereby ratifies, confirms, and adopts, as his own act and deed,
all action lawfully taken by such attorneys-in-fact and agents,a) or any of them, or by their respective substitutes, pursuant to
the powers and authorities herein granted. This Power of At—
torney expires by its terms and shall be of no further force and
effect on December 31, 1990.

IN WITNESS flyEREOF, the undersigned has executed this
document as of the 2' day of March, 1990.

. £5! 1 “yer fitflaee
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

’1 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned,a director of Geostar Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Geo-
star"), hereby makes, designates, constitutes and appoints
Martin R. Snoey, Donald E. Brown and Michael J. Breslin and each
of them (with full power to act without the other), as the under-
Signed's true and lawful attorneys-in—fact and agents, with full
power and authority to act in any and all capacities for and in
the name, place and stead of the undersigned in connection with
the filing with Securities and Exchange commission pursuant to
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, of Geostar's
Annual Report on Form 10—K and all amendments thereto (collec-
tively, "Geostar's Form 10-K").

such attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them,
are also hereby granted full power and authority, on behalf of
and in the name, place and stead of the undersigned, to execute
and deliver Geostar's Form 10-K and all such reports, amend-

ments, qualifications and notifications, to execute and deliver
any and all such other documents, and to take further action as
they, or any of them, deem appropriate in connection with
Geostar's Form 10-K. The powers and authorities granted herein
to such attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, also in—
clude the full right, power and authority to effect necessary
or appropriate substitutions or revocations. The undersigned
hereby ratifies, confirms, and adopts, as his own act and deed,

p» all action lawfully taken by such attorneys-in-fact and agents,
‘ or any of them, or by their respective substitutes, pursuant to

the powers and authorities herein granted. This Power of At-
torney expires by its terms and shall be of no further force and
effect on December 31, 1990.

IN WITNESS(fiE§REOF, the undersigned has executed thisdocument as of theIQ ay of March, 1990.

g M: r. JM 4

mu""m
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Including Power to make Charitable and Other Glfls

Ki‘lum All mm In Uhrar Inmate:

marl. WILLIAM E. Stnott .residing at sand Spring 3°th 1"ew Jersey . do hereby constitute and appoint

WILLIAM E. SIMON JR., 12 Dellwood Parkway East. Madison, New
J. PETER SIMON. 248 Oak Ridge Avenue. Summit. New Jersey

my Attorneys-in-Fact. and each of them my Attorney-in-Fact. for me and in my name.
place and stead. to make. sign. seal. endorse. swept, execute. acknowledge and deliver any
and all contracts. agreements. specialties. acquittanoes. assignments. leases. transfers. deeds.
instruments of conveyance. mortgages. bonds. notes. checks. drafts. bills ofeschange. orders
for the payment of money and other instruments and obligations of every kind. whether of a
similar or a different nature; and generally to do all things which in the judgment afraid
Attorneys are necessary or advisable to be done for me or on my behalf. either within the
State of New York or elsewhere in the world. in connection with my affairs and business or
in connection with my property as hereinafter defined; and in particular. without in any way
limiting the broad and general powers which it is my intention to confer upon said
Attorneys. in my behalf and for my account. and either in my name or otherwise:

(I) to receive all dividends and interest which may be or become payable on any
shares of stock. bonds. notes or other securities as hereinafter defined:

(2) to buy and sell stocks. bonds and other securities and commodities and other
property through any firm or firms of brokers or otherwise. and to pay customary
brokerage and other commissions and expenses in connection therewith;

(3) to vote as my proxy at any meeting of a corporation. association or other
entity. or of securityholders of a corporation. association or other entity. in respect of
any stock or other securities held by me and for that purpose to sign any proxy or other
instrument:

(4) to commence and carry on. or to defend. all actions. suits or other proceedings
which affect or may afl'ect anything in which I or my property may be in any wise
concerned. and to settle or discontinue the same:

(5) to demand. sue for. enforce payment of and receive and give discharges for all
moneys. debts. rents and other claims of every kind belonging to me;

(6) to settle. compromise or submit to arbitration all accounts. claims and disputes
between me and any other person as hereinafter defined:

(7) to deposit all income and other moneys becoming payable to me or realized
from my property with any bank. trust company. partnership or other person. as said
Attorneys shall deem advisable. and to withdraw. by check or otherwise. and invest the
same in such investments. or to use the same for such other purposes. as said Attorneys
shall deem advisable;

M5
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(8) to make such arrangements for the custody or safekeeping of any or all of my

property as said Attorneys shall deem advisable. and from time to time to change or
terminate any arrangements for such custody or safekeeping which have heretofore
been or shall hereafter be made;

(9) to consent to and participate in any reorganization. liquidation. merger.
consolidation or readjustment of any corporation. association or other entity the stocks
or other securities of which I may hold. and in connection therewith to exchange such
securities for new securities and to make such payments or other commitments as said
Attorneys shall deem advisable:

(IO) to pay. out ofmy funds. any and all debts. taxes. expenses and amounts now
or hereafter owing. or believed by said Attorneys to be owing. by me to any person:

(ll) to borrow money in such amounts as said Attorneys shall deem advisable.
and to execute therefor notes. bonds or other obligations on such terms as said
Attorneys shall deem advisable:

(I2) to give security for any money so borrowed by the mortgage or pledge ofany
of my property and to execute. acknowledge and deliver such instruments as said
Attorneys shall deem appropriate to make such mortgage or pledge effective;

( 13) to sell. convey. exchange 0: otherwise dispose of any or all of my real estate.
leases. leaseholds or other property partaking of the nature of real estate. for such
prices and upon such terms and conditions. and either with or without covenants and
restrictions and either at private or public sale. all as said Attorneys shall deem
advisable. and to sign. seat. execute. acknowledge and deliver contracts of sale or
exchange. assignments and deeds or other instruments ofconveyance. and to mortgage.
develop. alter. repair. improve. insure. let or lease. manage and otherwise deal with
any or such real estate or other property and each and every part thereof. in such
manner and to such extent and for such length of time and upon such terms and
conditions as said Attorneys shall deem advisable;

(H) to make. execute and file any and all declarations. returns. waivers. consents
and other instruments or forms relating to Federal. State. municipal and other taxes or
assessments. including income. property. excise and other taxes of whatever nature and
whether imposed by any domestic or by any foreign authority. and in connection with
any such taxes or assessments due or claimed or believed to be due from me or in
respect of any property or rights which I may own or in which i may have any interest.
to appear and represent me before the United States Treasury Department. or the
Internal Revenue Service. or any representatives thereof. or the State Tax Commission
of New York or any other governmental or municipal body or authority of whatever
nature. domestic or foreign. or any representatives of any thereof. and to conduct and
transact any case. claim or matter whatsoever before said Department. Service.
Commission or other body or authority or the representatives of any thereof in respect
of any and all things pertaining to any such taxes or assessments. and in connection
therewith to exercise all such rights and privileges. and to have such access to all
records and papers. as I might exercise or have; '

(15) to have access to any and all safe deposit boxes or vaults held by me or in my
name and to withdraw the contents thereof;

2 W
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_ (l6) on such terms as said Attorneys shall deem advisable. to appoint agents or
hire employees or retain legal counsel or other advisers for the purpose of carrying out
any action authorized by this instrument and to revoke any such appointment or mm. 3
or retainer: and

( I?) to execute in my name all instruments of any kind which said Attorneys shall
deem advisable or convenient for the exercise of any of the powers conferred by this
instrument.

Wherever used in this instrument. the term “securities" shall mean and include bonds.

notes. debentures. mortgages. obligations. warrants and stocks of any kind or class, and
such other evidences ofindebtedncss and certificates of interest as are usually referred to by

\ the term "securities": the term “property" shall mean and include real. personal and mixed

property of every kind and wherever situate (including. without limiting the generality of
the foregoing. securities as above defined) and shall include every kind of right. title and
interest. legal or equitable and whether beneficial or otherwise. in or to any of the foregoing:
and the term “person" shall mean and include any individual: corporation. association.
partnership. government. bureau. agency or other entity. whether domestic or foreign. of
any kind and whether acting on his. her or its own or in any fiduciary or other capacity or
interest.

I hereby give and grant to said Attorneys full power and authority to make gifts on my
behalf (i) to charitable organizations in the form ofcash or property or interests in property

provided that in the judgment of said Attorneys such gifts are deductible for tax purposes.
and /or (ii) to individuals. to trustees or to custodians under the Uniform Gifts to Minors
Act in the form of cash or property or interests in property. whether in amounts equal to the
annual exclusion for gift tax purposes or in greater or lesser amounts.

1 hereby give and grant to said Attorneys full power and authority to place all or any
part of my assets in a revocable trust of which i shall be the sole beneficiary (but with
power of withdrawal reserved to my said Attorneys for any purpose authorized or permitted
under this power of attorney) with remainder payable to my estate, in such form as may be
approved by Messrs. Cravath. Swaine dc Moore or by my regular legal counsel. with any
one or more individuals (including one or more of my said Attorneys) and/or a corporation
as trustee or trustees thereof.

T m Mted by this instrument shall extend not only to all property which 1

9,? its 3 Walso to all property which. while this power of attorney shall.06“ . . .Tit? fimcflw. i or said Attorneys. acting hereunder. shall acquire by
purchase. exchange. gift. devise. bequest or in any other manner.

Each of said Attorneys shall have full power to appoint a substitute or substitutes to

exercise in his place and stead. and as my attomey-in-fact or attorneys-in-fact. any or all of
the powers (including the powers granted by this paragraph) which by this instrument 1
have conferred upon said Attorneys. and at the pleasure ofsaid Attorney to revoke any such

appointment.

i hereby give and grant to said Attorneys full power and authority to do and perform
every act or thing which said Attorneys shall deem necessary or advisable in and about the
premises as fully to all intents and purposes as i could do if I were personally present and
acting and i hereby ratify and confirm all that said Attorneys any substitute or substitutes
appointed as above provided shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

3
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Each of said Attorneys and each substitute. if any. appointed as above provided shall
have all the powers. including discretionary powers. which are granted to said Attorneys by
any of the provisions ol'this instrument and. acting alone and without notice to anyone. may
exercise any or all of said powers in the same manner and with the same efl'ect as if
appointed by this instrument as my sole Attorney-in-Fact.

THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY SHALL NOT BE AFFECTED BY MY

SUBSEQUENT DlSABlLlTY OR INCOMPETENCE.

lN wrmess wueaeor. I have hereunto set my hand and seal

19%

 )I
In the presence of:

. / t" M _"Qgéz. .. ..4. .é... If:.................
Witness

STATE OLF7Zm $3 .
COUNTY or " .

On this 7 day 0%”? before me personally came. to me known to be th individual described in and who executed the foregoing
power or attorney. and acknowledged that executed said instrument.

 
Notary Public
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they, or any of them, deem appropriate in connection with
Geostar’s Form 10-K. The powers and authorities granted hereinto such attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, also in-clude the full right, power and authority to effect necessaryor appropriate substitutions or revocaticns. The undersignedhereby ratifies, confirms, and adopts, as his own act and deed,all action lawfully taken by such attorneys-innfact and agents,or any or them, or by their respective substitutes, pursuant tothe powers and authorities herein granted. This Power of At-torney expires by its terms and shall be of no further force and
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned,
a director of Geostar Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Geo—
star"), hereby makes, designates, constitutes and appoints
Martin R. Snoey, Donald E. Brown and Michael J. Breslin and each

of them (with full power to act without the other), as the under-
signed's true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full
power and authority to act in any and all capacities for and in
the name, place and stead of the undersigned in connection with
the filing with Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, of Geostar’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K and all amendments thereto (collec-
tively, "Gecstar's Form lO-K").

Such attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them,
are also hereby granted full power and authority, on behalf of

and in the name, place and stead of the undersigned, to execute
and deliver Geostar’s Form 10-K and all such reports, amend-
ments, qualifications and notifications, to execute and deliver
any and all such other documents, and to take further action as
they, or any of them, deem appropriate in connection with
Geostar's Form lO-K. The powers and authorities granted herein
to such attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, also in-
clude the full right, power and authority to effect necessary
or appropriate substitutions or revocations. The undersigned
hereby ratifies, confirms, and adopts, as his own act and deed,
all action lawfully taken by such attorneys-in-fact and agents,
or any of them, or by their respective substitutes, pursuant to
the powers and authorities herein granted. This Power of At-
torney expires by its terms and shall be of no further force and
effect on December 31, 1990.

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this

document as of the zouuday of March, 1990.
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Lb
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL HEN 3y THESE pRESENTs, that the undersigned,
a director of Geostar Corporation. a Delaware corporation ("Geo-
star"), hereby makes, designates, constitutes and appoints
Martin R. Snoey, Donald E. Brown and Michael J. Breslin and each
of them (with full power to act without the other), as the under-
signed's true and lawful attorneys-in—fact and agents, with full
power and authority to act in any and all capacities for and in
the name, place and stead of the undersigned in connection with
the filing with Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, of Geostar's
Annual Report on Form 10-K and all amendments thereto (collec-

tively, "Geostar's Form lO-K").

Such attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them,
are also hereby granted full power and authority, on behalf of
and in the name, place and stead of the undersigned, to execute
and deliver Geostar's Form 10-K and all such reports, amend-
ments, qualifications and notifications, to execute and deliver
any and all such other documents, and to take further action as
they, or any of them, deem appropriate in connection with
Geostar’s Form lO-K. The powers and authorities granted herein
to such attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, also in-
clude the full right, power and authority to effect necessary
or appropriate substitutions or revocations. The undersigned
hereby ratifies, confirms, and adopts, as his own act and deed,
all action lawfully taken by such attorneys-in-fact and agents,
or any of them, or by their respective substitutes, pursuant to
the powers and authorities herein granted. This Power of At-
torney expires by its terms and shall be of no further force and
effect on December 31, 1990.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this

document as of the mum day of March, 1990.
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